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May 10, 1977 

The House met at 10:00 A.M. 

Mr. Speaker in the Chair. 

1-fR. SPEAKER: Order, please! 

Tape No. 2429 I NM- 1 

MR. HTJRPHY: Mr. Speaker, if I may ask the indulgence of the House 

for just a fe't-7 short moments. It is not actually.,I do not think, 

a thing that is customarily done but as a member for St. John's Centre 

I would like to ask the indulgence of the House if I could pay 

tribute,or extend congratulations today to a very fine lady, a name 

well-knmm in the city of St. John's, Mrs. W, J. Duggan, who 

celebrates her ninety-first birthday today at present at the 

Hoyles Home. And the reason I bring it to the attention of 

the House, Sir, is the fact that her family down through the 

years has been one that has contributed a great deal to the 

culture of this Province,and I refer particularly to her late 

husband, Billy Duggan, 't-7ho was k..."lr>wn as Uncle Tim for many 

years and carried on a programm~ The Barn Dance, her 

son,Dermot Duggan,who is associated with the Department 

of Tourism and a wonderful artist,and another son,:t-lickey,who 

is a famous orchestra leader. And I say, Sir, if I am pardoned~ 

but I think a person like that, who has not been perhaps one 

learned in the law or one that has been honoured by any great 

institution~! think left her mark on this~ not only the city 

of St. John's but on the Province generally as a wonderful lady 

with a wonderful family.,and I think the family has made a very 

great contribution, Sir, to the culture of this Province of ours, 

· particularly in the first fifty years of this century. She is 

ninety-one years old today and is in good health at Hoyles Homes, 

so I would like to take the opportunity to express t~ her,and I think 

on behalf of all of us here, Sir, very many wishes for a very happy 

birthday. 

MR. SPEAKER: The hon, Leader of the Opposition. 
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MR. ROBERTS: Mr. Speaker, tt·_e han. gentleman's action as he 

said is somewhat unusual~but it is nonetheless welcome and we 

on this side are happy to join in this expression of birthday 

wishes to Mrs. Duggan and we hope that she has many more years 

of health and happiness and many more years of receiving 

congratulations from the House, Sir. 

PRESE1~ING PETITIONS: 

~m.. SPEAKER: The han. Leader of the Opposition. 

MR. ROBERTS: I ask leave, Sir, to present a petition signed 

by 630 of my constituents, almost all of them residents of the 

town of St. Anthony, all of them from that part of the Straits 

of Belle Isle riding. 

MR. NEARY: Not the seal fishery? 

MR. ROBERTS: No, it is not the- for the sake of my friend 

from LaPoile nrr. Neary), this one is not the seal fishery although 

there is more action coming on the seal front in the next 

day or so. 

Sir, this petition is similar to those 

which have been presented by a number of others of my colleagues. 

I believe all have been presented from this side of the House. It 

is a petition that has come in response to the request made by the 

Grand Orange Lodge of this Province, requesting that the sale of 

alcoholic beverages on Sundays be banned and be restricted, 

The petition comes to me under the sign 

and seal of 
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MR. ROBERTS: the Grand Orange Lodge of 

Newfoundland, from Mr. Ernest Warren,the Grand Secretary, 

and it was taken up by the officers and the members of 

the Lodge at St. Anthony which is L.O.L. No. 126. 

The prayer of the petition, Sir, 

is quite straightforward; it requests that the government 

take action to ban the sale of alcoholic beverages on 

Sunday, and I assume, although it has never been 

spelled out, that this would be both in clubs and 

taverns on the one hand,and in hotels and restaurants 

on the other hand. There may be a distinction made in 

the eyes of the petitioners, but if so, I do not 

understand - not that I do not understand it, I am not 

aware of them having made such a distinction. They want 

the sale of all alcoholic beverages banned on Sundays in 

the Province. 

Sir, the prayer of the petition, I 

think, is one which we ought to take very seriously. The 

prohibition of alcoholic beverages sales will not in 

itself stop people consuming them and we have had the 

unfortunate experience in this Province, this country as 

we then were -and before that we had the experience in 

the United States - which shows that prohibition in itself 

does not work. But there may very well be a very strong 

case for banning the sale of alcoholic beverages on 

Sunday, one day of the seven. 

In the last few years, I suppose 

the last ten or fifteen years, there has been a great 

increase in the number of clubs and licensed establishments 

throughout the Province and I tend to divide these into 

two types; the ones which sell liquor and wine and spirits, 

beer and the like with meals, and on the ·other hand, the 

clubs and taverns and various kinds . of operations which 

sell liquor and wine and beer and spirits by the glass or 

by the bottle or by the drink, however these are sold. 
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HR. ROBERTS: I think these are two different 

types of operations. 

There has been a vast increase in 

both types of operations, Sir, and indeed, I do.not 

think there is now a part of the Province where alcoholic 

beverages are.not freely available. Even on the Northern 

Peninsula,which was a stronghold of Methodism, we now 

have a government liquor store in St. Anthony that has 

operated for seven or eight years without any complaint 

of which I am aware, any complaint from anybody, any 

citizen or group in the area. \'~e have a number of 

taverns. 

The town of Grand Bank, one of 

the strongholds of the Methodist Church in this Province, 

has had a government liquor st-ore and a number of 

licensed establishments operating for a number of years, 

and again, as far as I am aware,without any massive public 

protests. So I think that the ·sale cf alcoholic beverages 

is accepted by our people. They may not like it but they 

do accept it. 

But, Sir, more and more people, 

and I number myself among these, are becoming very deeply 

concerned about the effects of the sale of alcoholic 

beverages. The price that we are paying is a high one 

and the price that we are going to pay in the years ahead 

will be even higher in the terms of the damage to families, 

of the damage to people's lives. You could cost that out 

in dollars, what it has cost us in hospitals; it must be 

thousands, many hundreds of thousands, possibly millions 

of dollars a year, but even more than that, in terms of 

human suffering, the cost of alcoholic beverages is a 

very great one. 

This is not the place to debate 

the fact, but I think the government ought to be doing more 

by means of alcohol education. I do feel that but there 
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MR. ROBERTS: will be an opportunity to debate 

that at another time. But I do think, Sir, this 

suggestion is one that we ought to take seriously. It 

would end the sale of beverages in all clubs and I 

guess in all restaurants too on Sunday, and it would mean 

that whatever_you could do on a Sunday legally, you 

could not legally go out and get a beer or get a drink. 

I think there is something to be said for that, Sir. 

Certainly there·are 630 of my constituents who support 

that request. 

There have been a number of other 

petitions. I think my friend from Terra Nova (Mr.Lush) 

presented one. The gentleman from Twillingate (Mr. 

Smallwood) presented one, and if I am not mistaken the 

gentleman for LaPoile(Mr. Neary) had one. 

MR. NEARY: No, Baie Verte. 

MR. RIDEOUT: No, for Fogo. 

MR. ROBERTS: My friend from Fogo (Capt. Winsor) 

had one. There have been a number of them and I would guess 

there will be others in the days and weeks ahead. 

The Orange Lodge, the Grand Lodge 

of this Province is sponsoring this petition and it is 

obviously meeting a substantial and a ready response from 

people around the Province. I present it, Sir, with the 

hope that it will be taken very seriously and I would 

hope that the government within the near future will make 

a policy statement on this. The minister responsible is 

the Minister of Finance, as I understand it. He is 

responsible for the administration of the Liquor Commission. 

It reports to him. I would hope he would 
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Hr. Roberts. 

speak in this matter. If he does not I would hope that he will 

shortly be in a position to announce the government's response 

to the request of these people. I think their request is one 

with much merit. I think it must be taken seriously, and I hope, 

Sir, we will see a response by the government whether they want 

to restrict the sale of all alcoholic beverages, whether they 

want to restrict the sale in some kinds of operations or whether 

they feel that the system which we now have will not be improved 

by making this change and thus they will not make the change. 

I present the petition, Sir, and I do so, as I say, 

with the strong request that the government take it with the seriousness 

which I think it merits and that we do have a response from the 

government very shortly. 

MR. SPEAKER: 

:t-1R. DOODY: 

The han. Minister of Finance. 

Hr. Speaker, in view of the fact that there 

have been a number of such petitions,as the hon. member has pointed 

out, I feel that I should say a word or two in support of the petition 

There appears to be two different issues, and one of them invariably 

creeps into the prayer of the petition. It would seem that the petition 

is one .based on the fact that alcoholic beverages are being sold on 

Sunday rather than on the fact that there are too many alcoholic 

beverages being consumed in the Province. And to that effect I would 

suggest that probably as more people make their views known on that 

situation then government will apply itself to developing a policy 

along the lines which will respect the opinions of those people 

most directly affected. It may very well be that there may be areas 

of the Province which may think that the sale of alcoholic beverages 

on Sunday is a very acceptable thing and something that is a very 

normal and reasonable sort of an event. We may very well find that 

parts of the Province may be dry on Sundays and other ·parts of the 

Province may very "·ell be floating in demon rum.. I personally feel that 
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·-·-
Mr. Doody. 

the solution to the alcohol problem - and there certainly is one -

in this Province is not the closing of bars or the lifting of 

licences. 

MR. ROBERTS: It certainly is not prohibition. 

MR. DOODY: Prohibition was tried before, and the net result 

was to ·turn a lot of honest people into crooks and a lot of 

crooks into mill~onaries, and the resultant- '-... hardship was certainly 

an example which we should not try to duplicate. Those people 

who want a drink, whether the law says that you cannot have a drink 

on Sunday or not, are going to find it and are going to have it. 

The regulation of the sale of alcoholic beverages, I think, is 

the most important factor in that particular area. 

But,as I say,if there are enough people in the 

Province and enough areas of the Province who feel that it is wrong 

to serve alcoholic beverages on Sunday, then certainly this 

government will look at that problem and develop a policy along 

these lines. 

MR. SPEAKER: The hon. member for LaPoile. 

MR. NEARY: The response of my hon. friend, the Minister of 

Finance, to the prayer of the petition, Sir, is typical of the attitude 

of this government. They will not lead. If they are pushed into it -

this is what the minister is saying· - if they are pushed into it 

by political pressure, then they may make some changes. 

MR. SPEAKER: Order, please! 

I must call the hon. gentleman's attention 

that · in my opinion he is commencing to debate the matter, and that 

he should restrict his comments to the support of the petition, and 

matters very closely related thereto. 

The hon. member. 

MR. NEARY: Mr. Speaker, in supporting the prayer .of the petition, 

Sir, I do hope that the government will not wait to see if there will be 
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Mr. Neary. 

other petitions and then yield to politi7al pressure~ that the 

goverrunent will take the lead in this matter~ and conform to the 

wishes of the prayer of the petition and ban drinking on Sundays. 

After all, 1-Ir. Spea'"ker, Sunday is supposed to be a day of rest and 

prayer, .and it is .the one day in the week, Sir, when people should be 

spending most of their time with their family. Instead of that, 

Mr. Speaker, as was indicated by the two gentlemen who have spoken 

on the petition, Sunday, I would say, is the time that Newfoundlanders 

really swi~g it. The clubs on Sunday night are bursting at the 

seams. You have got rock and roll going on all over the Province, 

heavy rock and light rock, and it seems, Mr. Speaker, that 

Sunday nights in certain parts of the Province is the night that she 

really swings. 
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Mr. Nearx: 

And it is the one day in the week, Sir, as I said,when people should 

be spending their leisure time with their families. After all, 

there is work the next day, Sir. If they are out swinging on 

Sunday night hm.; are they going to get up and go to work the next 

day, go to the univ~rsity, go to the vocational schools, go to 

the college? They probably would be a little muddled the next day~ 

I ;.;rould think, Hr. Speaker. So I think it is a good ide& to 

ban the sale of -booze and beer on Sundays, and anybody who wanted 

to have a beer on a Sunday could always go down to the retail 

store on Saturday and pick up his half dozen~bring it home, put it 

in his fridge, and if he wanted to have a beer or a glass of vline 

with his dinner on Sunday he can still have that. 

You knmv, Mr. Speaker, the one field in which we have 

advanced further than any other in this Province is in the field of 

the distirbution of booze and beer. My han. friend from Bonavista 

South (Hr. Morgan) is looking at me there wondering if I am going 

to bring up - because all of these petj_tions are sponsored by the 

LOA, and my hon. friend~by public tender~ bought _an LOA building 

down in Salvage \vhich the han. gentleman is now converting into a 

night club or a restaurant of some kind. No doubt there will be 

the sale of booze. I do not know whether my bon. friend will open 

it up on Sundays or not. 

MR. HORGAN : It ;.;rill not be open on Sundays, I can tell you that. 

MR. NEARY: Hell that is good, Sir, I am glad to hear that. This 

is the irony of it all, Sir: the LOA is sponsoring the petition and 

my han. friend is opening up a club in a former LOA building. 

But the number of signatures to the petition, Mr. Speaker, 

are increasing. The ~ovement is gathering momentum, and I have no 

doubt at all, Sir, that there will be other petitions brought into 

this han. Rouse, and I hope, Mr. Speaker, before too long that the 

government will start to take the lead in this matter, and not be 

pushed into making a decision. 
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MR. SPEA..TCER: The han. Minister of Consumer Affairs and the 

Environment. 

MR . A. HURPh"'Y : Hr. Speaker, I just want to say one or t~,TO 

words with reference to this matter, and I think ~·7e have got to 

realize that the whole question of alcohol has become quite a 

problem, and now we ~re referring particularly,of course,to the 

Sunday drinking.And I certainly hope, Sir, that this government or 

any other government does not get back to the fact where we open 

between the hours of twelve and three, and the hours of five and 

eight~like it was in~orce for some years and, I think, it was the 

greatest travesty,if you like, of an Act that ever was,~vhere so 

many mothers and what not had the dinner on the table at twelve 

o'clock or one o'clock, and of course, everybody hung on until the 

bar closed at three and back again at five. 

And if I may just localize it a little bit, I remember at 

that particular time that the l~st Mass at the Basilica was eleven 

o'clock and you got out just about noon and you had the grateful,just 

by the door, as soon as she was ended, and it was a steady crack 

across the road over to the Cottage Garden on Freshwater Road. 

MR. DOODY: You still got Sunday dinner at home. 

MR. MURPHY: Yes. And the han. Leader of the Opposition referred 

to serving food~ or something 'td th a meal. And I can remember one 

lady - I did work for the Bre~.;rery for twelve 'years - told me the 

story that - I think, it was in the Commission of Government days 

vlhere you could not have a beer unless you had something with it, and 

she bought a package of crackers, I think, the 1st. of January and 

she used to send them up every week up to the drycleaners to be cleaned 

so she could put them on the table again for the next week. So it 

was a little bit of a joke. 

But the whole question, Sir, of alcohol is quite a 

problem. I heard the hon. member for LaPoile (Hr. Neary) describe 

a hangover- I have never had one, at least not from liquor; but I 
;1 

have had many hangovers,perhaps the Reuse of Assembly gives me more 

hangovers than any amount of liquor could do. But again it is a very 

serious matter, Sir, and I think it covers the whole area of drinking, 
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Mr. Murphy: 

and it sort of broke my heart when I fought against it,and I do 

not want to get side-tracked in this, was when the former government 

passed an Act lowering the drinking age in 1971, and I thought it 

was rather a foolish move at that time. And I still think, Sir, that 

Sunday opening is a Yery good matter for to start off to discuss 

the whole question of the Alcoholic Liquors Act, Sir. And I am sure -

and I do know fo.r a fact that the 1'1inister of Justice is quite 

concerned and that the thing will be looked into and the whole 

matter of drinking - and again I >-muld like to say this that we always 

said it was not the use of alcohol was the problem, it was the abuse 

of alcohol was the problem,and these are things that we have to look 

at. 

0 0 0 

HR. SPEAKER: The hon. }finister of Finance. 

HR. DOODY: I have a i'etition, Mr. Speaker. 

MR. SPEAKER: Do ~.;re have leave to revert to petitions? 

SOME RON. MEMBERS: Agreed. 

MR. DOODY: This petition is being offered to the House on behalf 

of literally hundreds of residents of Bell Island . P~d the prayer 

of the petition relates, of course, to the transportation problem 

bet\.;reen the Island and Portugal Cove, and 
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MR. DOODY: 

specifically to the inadequacy of the service that is currently 

being offered by the company which has the franchise. The 

particular problem as outlined in the prayer of this petition 

reads, Sir, as follows, "And whereas the franchise granted to 

Newfoundland Transportation Company Limited on December 1, 1955 

has given said company exclusive rights to the operation of 

the ferry service between Portugal Cove and Bell Island 9 and 

whereas the service provided by said company has been 

inadequate since its very inception and has grown continually 

more inadequate due to increase in traffic offering, and 

whereas the inadequacy of service is stifling economic 

development of Bell Island because of long waiting periods 

at either terminal, and whereas the company adamantly refuses 

to take steps which would improve the service, especially 

more frequent scheduling and clearing up of all traffic offering, 

therefore be it resolved that the hon. House of Assembly 

instruct Newfoundland Transportation Company Limited to 

conform to the Ferries Act, 1954 and rules and regulations 

emanating therefrom and to the terms of conditions of the 

Board of Commissioners of Public Utili ties of Newfot.mdland, and 

be it further resclved that Ne~foundland Transportation Company 

Limited immediately restore the service previously instituted 

but recently cancelled, namely clearing up all traffic offering 

which cannot be accommodated during regular scheduled trips 

because of inadequate capacity." 

Now, Mr. Speaker, the company has - this was brought to 

my attention some little while ago by a number of people - the 

company had reverted to its old policy of 'the last trip,and 

that was it', and those cars which were left on either side 

were literally left there and off would come the service for 

the evening. We did have_some correspondence with the Board 
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MR. DOODY: 

of Public Utilities and with the company. And I understand 

from the people who asked us to_ pre~ent this petition that 

this part of the service has improved. I might say that 

the Catherine is on the run now and while it is a larger 

boat theoretically in terms of carrying capacity of motor 

traffic it is still most inadequate. Indeed it is smaller 

than the Guy. The problem is basically one of the Federal 

Government's refusal to recognize the fact that this boat is 

not large enough. But perhaps more importantly is the fact 

of the inter-action between provincial and federal government, 

the company that has the franchise and the ongoing complexity 

of applying the various rules and regulations from Ottawa 

from the Province. And the ultimate sufferers are the people 

on Bell Island who have had a very, very difficult time with 

their ferry service over the past years. The Federal 

Government had taken responsibility for it. They would dearly 

like the Province to take it over. The cost of it is exorbitant. 

A recent hearing by the Board of Commissioners of Public i 

Utilities denied an exorbitant rate increase which was asked 

for by that company. As a result of this or perhaps because 

of it or perhaps in spite of it, the people on the Island 

contend that the service has detoriated even further since 

that time. 

So, Sir, I hardly endorse the prayer of this petition. 

I do feel that the people on the Island have a legitimate right 

to reasonable transportation. I have no hesitation whatsoever 

in, as I say, forwarding this petition to this hon. House, 

presenting it to this hon. House and forwarding it to the 

department to which it relates. Thank you, Sir. 

MR. SPEAKER: The hon. member for Terra Nova. 

MR. RIDEOUT: Mr. Speaker, I would like to stand and support 

this petition. As a matter of fact I have the greatest sympathy 



May 10, 1977. Tape 2433 RH - 3 

MR. RIDEOUT: 

for all those areas in the Province that are serviced by 

ferries. It is a mo,st frustrating experience I except to 

have to live on an island and to be serviced by a ferry, 

particularly when that ferry service is inadequate and 

carried on at the whims of the operator. And I am a little 

surprised really ·\·>"i th ·this one because some time ago I stood 

here in this House and debated this issue of the- I think 

Bell Island ferry is the only one in the Province that 

comes under the Public Utilities Board. The other ferries 

in the Province are not controlled, are not regulated by 

anybody, either federal or provincially - and that surprises 

me that there are some complaints with this particular service 

that comes under the Public Utilities Board. 
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't-l.P .• LUSH: And that causes me to question the kinds of 

action that I was asking for that all ferries in the Province actually 

he placed under the Public T!tilities Boaro. And, Sir, I ,,Tould supg-est 

that if a company is not follm.,ring out the regulations of the Ferry Act 

then there is certainlv something 't-Trong with the le~islation or either 

that the Public Ftilit ies Board is not given sufficient authority to 

see that the companies are following the Ferries Act or follov!ing the 

legislation to the Jetter of the law and if that is so then I think ir 

is incumbent upon the government to see that the legislation has teeth, 

to see that the Public Utilities Board can ensure that there is an 

effective service. 

And, }fr. Speaker, just one point in closing it. 

This is the case ~vhere the ferry service that comes under the authority 

or the control of the Public Utilities Board,hon. members c'lo not have 

to stretch their imrnagination too much to sort of speculate as to what 

may be happening in those areas v,There the ferry s;:stems are not under 

any regulatory bocly, just free to operate at vTill. Anc1 again, 

~·r. Speaker, I support this petition because I knn-vT exactly v,That it is 

like having the ferry system of St. BrendariTs in my o"~ district~and 

as I said I am surprised that a ferry system that is under the Public 

PtUities Board is having difficulties. I know in my own district the 

same thing happens that the - As a m~tter of fact right now the ferry 

services are supposed to be on two trips a day,and I checke~ only to find out 

that it is only doing one. And there is nobody to come to that co~peny 

and say you must provide two trips a day~and indeed if there ~re people 

there the operator "Till not do it unless there is eight or ten cars or 

something like this. ..A..nd I vmuld urge the government to certainly look 

into all the ferry syste!l'1B in this Province and to do what has to be done 

to give the PubJ.ic Utilities Board the proper authority to ensure that 

the particular, this one, the Be-ll Island one .,is follot-Ting the Ferries 

Act. And, }~r. Speaker, I would urge that they extend the legislation to 

include all ferry systems under ·· the Public Ptilities Board. but certainly 
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}11'. LUSH: give them the authoritv, give them the legislation that 

will enahle the~ to enforce the regulations of the Ferries Act. 

~ .• SPEAT(ER: The hon. merober for LaPoile. 

J.:TI'"" NEARY: ~-rr. Speaker, I do not know if placing the Bell Island-

Portugal Cove ferry service under the Public Utilities Board 1-1as a good 

thing or a bad thing:. I do not knoH if it was an asset or a liability, 

Sir. I am inclined to think that it is probably more of a liability 

than anythin~ else because, }~r. Speaker, what actually happenec:l,for 

the benefit of my hon. friend, is that the Board of Commissioners of 

Public Utilities granted a franchise to the Newfoundland Transportation 

Company to operate a ferry service on the Tickle. As a result of that 

franchise all competition 1-1as eliminated. 

1'~ .• LUSF: 

}'T. NEARY: 

They c:lo not compete every year sort of thing? 

There is no competition at all, Sir. Competition was 

eliminated and probably one of the weaknesses in this whole matter 

is that this co~any has been able to do what it likes over the past 

years and certainly nobody in this Province has had more to say about 

that transportation service than !!!yself because, Sir, all my relatives 

anc:l friends and neighbours over on Bell Island are involved and my 

former constituents that I represented in this House for fourteen years. 

yp_, S:HALLWOOD : ~.Jith honour. 

}fR. NEARY: I hope with a certain degree of honour, Sir. 

YF. S~~L\.JOOD: And unending usefullness. 

And what we have here today in the way of transportation, 

Sir, is probably due in large measure to some of my efforts in trying to 

11R. NEAPY: 

get that second ferry to take the place of the Kipawo which is nm.:r operating 

down in the Terra Nova National Park. But, Sir, let me say this, 

11r. Speaker, without getting into the realm of debate, that when the 

Government of Canada called public tenders~there in 1975~I think it 

was, called public tenders for the operation of a ferry service beb·Jeen 

Bell Island and Portugal Cove and the tenders appeared in the rie1..rspaper 

and submissions were made by more than one company, by more than just 
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~ . • NEA~Y: the Ne~"foundland Transportation Company, submissions were 

made t-y tt-•o companies. The la,.;yers for t he Ne~-rfoundland Transportation 

Company discovered a loophole wherebv they could have the tenders 

cancelled. Can you i~Pgine, Mr . Soeaker, the Roard of rommissioners 

of Public Utilit ies in t his Province dic tating to the big Government 

of Canada, Uncle Ottawa '"ho i~ pumpinEZ a million dollars into that 

ferry service in subsidizes a year. The 

': 
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>fR.NEARY: 

Province, the Board of Commissioners of Public Utilities saying to 

the Government of Canada, you cannot call public tenders for 

spending the taxpayers money. 

MR. DOODY: You had better ship down to St. John's harbour now. 

It t.;rill be cheaper and you can carry more cars. (Last part 

in_audi~l~_. ) 

MR. NEARY: That is right, Sir. That is absolutely right. The 

Government of Canada had to cancel. 

AN RON. ME.HBER: (Inaudible.) 

MR. NEARY: The franchise is granted by the Board of Commissioners 

of Public Utilities. It is provincial. 

MR. ROBERTS: It is provincial, under provincial legislation. 

MR. NEARY: I beg your pardon? 

AN RON. 1!-lli:t!-fBER: The Public Utilities Board should not give 

them a franchise forever, should they? 

MR. NEARY: Well,they had a franchise forever. They have had it 

for how long now - they must have had it for twenty-odd years, is it? 

AN RON. NEJ:-fBER: Twenty-two years. 

MR. NEARY: Twenty-two years. And, Hr. Speaker, the Government of 

Canada, the water transport committee of the Department of Transport 

called public tenders. They wer~ determined to improve that service once 

and for all, to provide the people of Bell Island with the best service 

available by calling public tenders and have submissions made. But 

the government, the Province, the Board of Commissioners ·of Public 

Utilities said no, you cannot do that. So the Government of Canada 

was forced to deal with the Newfoundland Transportation Company and 

forced to subsidize the Newfoundland Transportation Company to the tune 

of $1 million a year >oJhether they liked it or not. What a scandal this 

>.;rould make across Canada, Sir. The Government of Canada being dictated to 

by a provincial regulatory body and say, You cannot call public tenders 

for the spending of the taxpayers' money. 
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HR. MURPHY: Is it covered by provincial law? 

HR. NEARY: Yes, Sir, it is covered by provincial law. 

MR. DOODY: It is not, it is not covered by provincial law. 

MR. MURPHY: No, no. 

!-1R. NEA..ltY: It is, Mr. Speaker, covered by provincial law. The 

Board of Commissioners of Public Utilities are the ones that granted 

the franchise. So when the people of Bell Island had an opportunity 

to get their _service improved,to get the service they wanted,they were 

barred by this franchise that was granted back in the early 1950's 

And, Mr. Speaker, I would like to ask a question'ltoo. In two 

provincial elections in this Province, the party that is now in 

power went around the Province campaigning on the grounds that if they 

were elected that they would immediately look into the possibility of 

making communities that were serviced by ferries a part of the Trans­

Canada Hight>1ay system, extend the high~o1ay system and make it free. 

That statement was made on Bell Island in St. Pat's Theatre prior to 

the 1972 election by none other than the hon. Premier of this Province. 

HR. ROBERTS: Another unkept promise. 

MR. NEARY: and then made subsequently in the follm,ring election. 

AN HON. NEHBER: Can you prove that? 

MR.NEARY: Yes, Sir. Sir, I had my spies in the hall that night. 

And then it ~.,ras published in the newspaper., 

11R. DOODY: Did not have a meeting (inaudible.) when I ran there was 

not a meeting. 

HR. NEARY: In St. Pat's Theatre, Sir, there was a meeting held on 

behalf of the Tory Party, they had a political rally in St. Pat's 

Theatre. I do not know - my hon. friend might remember that that was 

the night that they started to tear the - no, -it was the hockey player 

who ran at that, the hockey player who ran -

AN RON. -ME!-ffiER: (Inaudible.) 
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MR. NEARY: That is right, the hockey player. 

MR. DOODY: I made no promises. 

HR. NEARY: The gentleman who got all . the rural development loans 

and the piece of farm equipment and has not done any farming yet. 

But, Hr. Speaker, I would like to know what has happened to that 

promise. And then what about the causeway that they are now talking 

about. The minister did not tell us anything about the study that is 

being done. Put the study on the table of the House so we can all 

have a look at it. Mr. Speaker, I could go on for hours talking about 

the problems involved in that ferry service, Sir. But I only have 

limited time, Your Honour. But maybe in a later debate I may have 

something to say about it. But I have no hesitation at all, Sir, in 

supporting the prayer of the petition. 

NIL SPEAKER: Before recognizing the han. minister, I would draw the 

attention of members and welcome to the House of Assembly on their 

behalf thirty-five grade eight students from the central high school of 

St. Bride's. They are accompanied by two teachers, Mrs. Florence Coffey 

and Hiss Patricia Nash. I know all han. members join me in welcoming 

these students and their teachers. 

SOME RON. ME1-1BERS: Hear, hear~ 

MR. SPEAKER: The hon. lfinister of Transportation. 

MR. MORGAN: Mr. Speaker, I support the petition tabled by my colleague 

with regards to the need for improved transportation services to the 

Island community of Bell Island. First of all, I would like to clarify 

a misunderstanding put forward _to the House by the hon. gentleman from 

Terra Nova(Mr. Rideout) because there are regulatory authorities over 

the ferry services in the Province. And if any citizen or groups of 

citizens are dissatisfied \vith the ferry services throughout the Prov!Lnce 

with regards to the places like - other than 
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1~R. MORGAN : Bell Island - like for · example St. Brendan's and Greer:spond 

and FOfO an~ these places that the ere, the Canadian Transportation 

Commission :Ln 0.t ta~va, the v.ra.ter transport- division of that Commission 

is strictly responsible for the level of senrice provicec" by these 

ferry services based on the fact that these ferry services are 

subsidize(! by the }finistry of Transport, and they are subsidized by 

the Ministry of Transport upon recommendations put forward by the 

CTC and the -

HR. ROBERTS: 

I-'fP.. :~-~ORGAN: 

Jl~, . SPEAKEP: 

~-· MORGAN: 

MR. SPEA.cT(FP: 

As all (Inaucible). 

Mr. Speaker, i-f I could speak without being interrupted. 

The hon. member wishes to speak uninterrupted -

So, P.r. Speaker, the -

Excuse me, please! The han. gentleman ~·!ished me to 

rule in his favour. The han. gentleman 1vishes to continue his speech 

1..rithou~ interruption. 

~'R. "'1'0RGA'!IJ: Mr. Speaker, so that is a very serious misunderstanding 

put fo!\-rard to the House of Assembly c:md to the media of the Province 

because all ferry services do h~ve some regulatory authority over them 

governing the level of service, and over there on Bell Island which was up 

until a fe\v years ago all of them are now under the control of the CTC 

in Ottawa. They can dictate the level of service. If an operator is 

not providing the level of service satisfactory to the residents 

concerned,they can fake the case to the ere and the. CTC shoula,in my 

view,and it has been made knov.~ to them on a nt~ber of occasions in the 

past year, hold public hearings and give the people a chance to put 

fon..rard their views of how the service can be improved. 

Nm.,; with regards to Bell Island the situation there 

is rather complicate(! because of the fact the Federal Government subsidizes 

the operation and just recently, in fact within the past year~the CTC was 

told, and I r-epeat,was told, they made no decision themselves yet they 

~,rere subsidizing the operation, they '"ere tolrl by the Federal Cabinet, 

a · unilateral decision ~!as made by the Federal Cabinet without consultation 
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Hith this Province.,that we are not !?:oing to increase the 

subsidizes of the ferry services in the Province including Bell Island. 

And because of that of course the operator had no choice but to make 

an application for an increase in fares. '·!hen the application ~.ras made~ 

it vras decided that the Provincial Pegulatory AuthorHy which is delegated 

authority hy the Federal GovernT!lent to deal with the application. They 

- . -
dealt ~dth the application and of course we sa't.T the results. They did 

not ~et the increase they ~-·anted. But this all came about because the 

Federal Cabinet unilaterally decided, v.rithout consultation ~vith the 

operators, without consultation vdth th_e Province, without consultation 

~.;r:i.th the Public Vtilites Board of Commissioners in the Province, they 

decided they were to ':J in other vmrds, hold a line on the subsic!izes. 

Therefore the petitioners are now of the opinion,according to a petition 

table~ by my colleague today in the House, that they are of the opinion 

that ·because of the r1ecision T'lade by the Board of Public t'tilities not to 

grant an increase in their fares, because of the hold the line on the 

subsidizes that the service is now deteriorating to the Island and thi~ 

is unfortunate, very unfortunate. In fact the ferry service throu!?hout 

the "Province only by the skin of our teeth, and I repeat,only by that, 

v.rhen "'•i thin a matter of t~·!O days before the end of Harch, 197 7, the 

Federal Government was going to pull off all the ferry services in the 

Province, all seven total, pull them off. I mean pull there off hy saying 

~·Ye are not going to subsiclize any more in Newfoundland, do the same to 

us as they did in B.C. 

But because of our strong protests and the meetings 

in Ot ta~:-:a back and forth, because of that the Federal Cabinet decided to 

change their decision and to carry on the subsidizes for at least, and I 

repeat, for at least one more year. And that is the conditions were are 

novr operating under. But it is their attitude and their policy to drop 

the subsidizes on all ferry services in the Province and have the Province 

take over the operations. 

So, }fr. Speaker, in closing my remarks on the petition 

I again like to indicate that this department is willing to meet w:!.th the 
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~f.P . NORGAN: operator and with the citizens of the area or their 

coi!Ul'i ttee, I t hink they call themselves the Courputers -

1-!R • NEARY : The ColllTI'lU ters • 

YR. Jvl(l'RGAN : Yes, Mr. Yic'Y.erson and those - I am getting mixed up in 

Vickers and commuters - Association or gr oup on the Islanc or in fact 

any other organize~ Rroup representing these petitioners,meet with 

them and the operators and if necessary the CTC and the Public Board 

of Utilities and try to find Hays and means of improving the service 

to the Island . And of course ,,.,i t h regards to the rest of t.~e Province 

we \vill continue our pressures in Ottawa to maintain these services and 

t o impro\re them in the future. 
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PRESENTING REPORTS BY STANDING AND SPECIAL COMMITTEES: 

MR. SPEAKER: The han. minister on presenting reports by standing 

and special committees. 

k~ HON. MEMBER: By leave. 

MR. ROUSSEAU: By leave. 

MR. SPEAKER: Agreed. 

HR-. ROUSSEAU: Thank you very much. I would like to table the 1976 

annual report of the ~.Jorlanen 1 s Compensation Board. 

SOME HON. 11EMBERS: Hear, hear! 

ANSWERS TO QUESTIONS FOR WHICH NOTICE HAS BEEN GIVEN: 

MR. SPEAKER: The hon. Hinister of Fisheries. 

HON. W. CARTER: Hr. Speaker, I want to supply an answer to a question 

put to me some time ago by the hon. Leader of the Opposition concerning 

the location of the herring processing plant in Southern Labrador. 

HR. ROBERTS: Plants. 

HR. CARTER: Plant, · plant. ~tr. Speaker, a decision has been made on 

the basis of a meeting held by the officials in the Department of 

Fisheries and the Canadian Saltfish Corporation and others to at least 

for this year, to have the plant operated at L 1Anse-au-Clair. There 

vlas representation made to the department to have it operating at 

L 1 Anse-au-Loup I think it was. But the fishermen 1 s committee met, 

fish~rmen from I believe Red Bay down to L 1Anse-au-Clair at which time 

a vote vJas taken. And it was all but unanimous, that certainly for this 

year that the plant should be operating at L 1Anse-au-Clair. Indeed there 

were fifty people in attendance, fifty fishermen representing pretty 

well all of the communities that I have mentioned. There are at least 

between the areas I have mentioned, and all but one but the persons 

in attendance supported the proposition that the plant, at least for 

this year., should be located in L 1 Anse-au-Clair. 

ORAL QUESTIONS: 

MR. SPEAKER: The hon. Leader of the Opposition. 

NR. ROBERTS : In the absence of most of the ministers who count. Sir. 

it is difficult to ask a question. Could I begin by asking - I presume 

the Minister of Mines and Energy is the acting House Leader - where is 
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HR. ROBERTS: 

the Premier, the Hinister of Justice, the Minister of Finance, Sir, 

three men of 1.-hom we 't-7ish to ask questio_ns? Sir,. the senior ministers, 

whe~e are they? There is the Minister of Finance. Where are the 
J 

other two, Sir? 

AN HON. MEMBER: ·Hr, Speaker -

l'ffi.. ROBERTS: No, hold on now. Answer the question now. 

MR. SPEAKER: The bon. minister. 

MR. PECKFORD: Mr. Speaker, the bon. the Premier and the bon. Minister 

of Justice have commitments early this morning and should be in the 

House very shortly. 

MR. ROBERTS; They are the people who forced the House to meet at 

ten in the morning, Mr. Speaker. They might do us the courtesy to 

be here. 

}lR. PECKFORD: A point of order, Hr. Speaker. 

HR. SPEAKER: A point of order. 

MR. PECKFORD: A point of order. That comment by the bon. Leader of 

the Opposition is completely out of.order. This is the Oral Question 

period and not a time for debate. 

MR. ROBERTS: To that point of order, Sir. Maybe I am out of order,but 

so is the action by the Premier and the Minister .of Justice in forcing 

this House to meet at ten after having been here at eleven and then 

ignoring it and treating it with contempt by not being here to answer 

questions, Sir. Now may I ask a question to the Uinister of Finance, 

who has been very faithful in his attendance? 

MR.. SPEAKER: Order, please! On the specific point of order brought 

up by the han. Minister of Mines and Energy. He was in fact correct and 

the h?n· Leader of the Opposition's remarks w~re of the nature of debate. 

}lR. ROBERTS: A question for the Minister of Finance~1-1ho has done us the 

courtesy, who has done the courtesy to appear in the House as he always 

does,and we are greatful to him and I wish to acknowledge his courtesy 

as opposed to the contempt shown by his colleagues including the Hinister 
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}ffi.. ROBERTS: 

of Hines and Energy. Mr. Speaker, if I may ask -

MR. MORGAN: 

HR. SPEAKER: 

:MR. HORGAN: 

On a point of order, Mr. _Speaker. 

A point of order. 

Mr. Speaker, on a point of order. The bon. Leader of 

the Opposition has ·an two occasions noH indicated that my colleague 

tl}_e ho_n . __ Minister of Jus ~ice and our Premier is showing contempt for 

the House of Assembly. Hr. Speaker, the bon. Minister of Mines and 

Energy has clearly indicated to the House of Assembly that the bon. 

the Premier and the bon. Hinister of Justice are presently on 

commitments by holding meetings outside of the House of Assembly. 

And therefore they are not holding this House in com tempt. 

HR. ROBERTS: To that point of order, Mr. Speaker. First of all, 

let it be established the Premier is in the building .because he and I 

came in together at nine o'clock. Secondly, Sir, I have indicated 

that it is contemptuous of a member not to attend the service of the 

Rouse. And if I can find the appropriate standing orders, Sir, there 

is a standing order which requires members to attend the service of the 

House of Assembly unless they are otherwise excused. And I would submit 

that neither the Premier or the Minister of Justice has been excused 

or has asked to be excused. If they schedule commitments, Sir, that 

take them away from the House that is contemptuous~ in my opinion, Sir·; 

in my submission. It is the }linister of Justice and the Premier who 

have insisted the House meet at ten o'clock in the morning. He have 

accommodated them. Hy colleagues are here. We have a limited time for 

questions 1 and we are give~ the bush league ministers, Sir • With the 

exception of the Minister of Finance and the Minister of Fisheries, 

we are not given any of the ministers of whom important questions should 

be asked. How are we to ask them?· All '"e are ' told is, "Oh, notice is 

taken," and then nothing happens, Sir . . I think it is contemptuous of 

the Hinister of Justice and the Premier not to be here. I do not have 

the appropriate Standing Order 1 but there 

I 
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MP. ROBERTS : is a standing order in our standing rules, Sir, that says 

all members must atteno the service of the House unless they are excused. 

I do not have the exact wording and the index is so appallingly bad in 

our standing orcers.,but I am sure--Your Honour is familiar with it ano 

I Hould submit, Sir, that these ministers have shown contempt by not 

being present for Ques.tic:_n _P~riod. There are only two, four, six, eight, 

less than half the Cabinet, Sir, are here for Question Period today, 

eight out of the sixteen or seventeen ~~inisters of the Crm,Tll. That is 

not good enough~ Sir. 

:!'-fP_, PECKFOP.D: To that point of order, r~r. Speaker. Those comments 

by the Leader of the Opposition are small almost beyond words to describe~ 

to try to inoicate that ministers are not turning up and are being 

contemptuous of the Rouse. Every member, members on the opposite side, 

all the members of the Opposition are not present right now in this 

hon. House. Some of them just came back to the House after being away 

for several days ~and so on it goes. Let it be recorded that it '"as 

this administration that has put in the standing orders a Question 

--- -~ 

Pericd that Liberal policy ~ictated would not be. 

11R. SPEAKER: Order~please! The specific standing order~but as 

I recall the point of order was raised to the effect that the proper 

procedure for asking questions was not being follm,Ted. The appropriate 

Standing Order? 80 ~ "Every member is bound to attenc the service of 

the House unless leave of absence has been given him.'' The implementation 

of that, or '"hat is to be done if that is not observed is not self-evident. 

I '"ould think~,.,rithout ruling on_it, but I would think that it .._Tould probal:ly 

be a matter of a substantive motion which the House woulc decide. 

However if I understand the specific point of order,aii.d these matters 

arose up in a peripheral manner.,the specific point of order wlth respect: 

to the. Question Period;oi woulc quote N.ay, page 327, which is very close 

to our Standing Order 3l,"that questions which seek an expression of 

opinion or which contain arguments, unnecessary e_pithets, offensive 

expression, a~gumentative should net be included in questions." 
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'!--!J' • SPEAKE P : So the substantive point of order is that questions 

shC'Iuld seek information,and ans"~:.;rers if given should give it \vithout 

requirinP. or entailing debate. 

The bon. Leader of the Opposition. 

1~. R0BEP_TS : The question -

~fJL NEAPY: I vmuld like to move, Mr. Speaker, that the han. Premier 

be impeached for not attending these sittings of the House,if that is 

in or.der. I understood Your Honour stated that a substantive motion 

could be. made at this particular time. 

MR. SPEAKF.R: Unless I heRrd argument to the contrary I am not a"~;.;rare 

of a motion to impeach -

~- . ROBE1'TS : C~nsure, censure~ 

1''1'. . SPEAY..EP: I could not accept that motion. I have never heard of 

one to impeach a member. 

""~. ROBERTS: Sir," the Earl of Stafford was impeached and lost his head 

1:-'r. Speaker, may I - Although I must say my 

sympathies are t,:rith the gentlei!l.an from LaPoile. J-~r. Speaker, hereUts 

the Premier. I shall wait. Fe is coming nov.r . The Premier is just in 

time, we are beginning Question Period. 

S.m~ HON. }"E~EP.S: Hear, hear! 

1-':R. P.OBEPTS: l'~r. Speaker, my auestion is for the Premier. It is a 

very important subject, Sir. Caul~ he tell us what additional steps the 

gC~vernment are taking to cope with the unemployment situation that has 

been revealed by the latest figures from Statistics Canada which show 

that officially, anc1 I think the unofficial figures are at least u..-rj_ce 

these, that nineteen point two per cent of the work force in this 

Province were unemployed durni'lg =:the month of March, the highest v7e 
.· 

have ever achieved during our entire history? Hhat extra measures are 

the government planning to put into effect to cope with this? 

l'~L SPEAKER: The hon. Premier. 

PP.F.MIER ~OORES: He all realize, Mr. Speaker, that _the unemployment 

problem is serious. He also realize that it is serious not just here 

but across Canada~but extremely serious here. He are the first to admit 



May 10, 1977 Tape 2438 JM - 3 

PP~ER ¥00RES: that. I would also say, Sir, that together .... -ri.th 

the Federal C~vernment we have been working on priorities to make work 

to try to bring short-term alleviation to the :fore. in this regard. 

But it is a difficult problem but we are doing everything we can to 

compat it. 

}'!R . l>OBERTS: A supplementary, Mr. Speaker. 

M1'. . SPEA..XER: A supplementary. 

I thank the Premier for the information,such as it vJas, 

in his answer. r~uld he tell us when we can expect some definite 

announcements? We have been h~aring for some years now this talk about 

priorities and planning underway. Hhen will He get some announcetnents? 

The people are out of work now. 

1-fR . SPE.~T<.EP : The hon. Premier. 

PREMIER MOOP~S: Yes, I realize that, Mr. Speaker. There will be 

more people out of work in netober but the fact is, SiT, that we will 

do it as quickly as possible. 

~.f!'. . ROBF.P.TS : A furth~r supplementary. 

~ . SPEAKER : 

'MR. ROBERTS: 

A further supplementary. 

~!r. SpealceT, can the Premier tell us lvhat forecast his 

administration has made with respect to unemployment in the Province 

this yeaT? no they expect it to rise beyond the present figures and if 

so, by how much? 
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}ffi. SPEAKER: The bon. Premier. 

PREMIER HOORES: The best that l-7e can calculate - and this is in 

conjunction once again with the federal people who have the mechanism 

to do this probably as well as we do or better, Mr. Speaker -is that 

unemployment this year will average approximately the same as it did 

last year. 

MR. ROBERTS: Well~we are well behind already. 

MR. SPEAKER: A supplementary, the bon. member for LaPoile. 

HR. NEARY: The Board of Trade are presenting their annual 

brief to the government I believe today or tomorrm.;r, Would the 

bon. the Premier reverse the tables and ask the President of the 

Board of Trade what action the membership of the board are going to 

take in the private sector to deal with the problems of the economy 

of this Province,especially unemployment among young people? Will 

the Premier try to find out from the President of the Board of Trade 

if they have any plans within their membership to give young people 

the initial experience that they need in order to find jobs? 

}ffi. SPEAKER: The hon. Premier. 

PREHIER MOORES: I will certainly take that under consideration, }1r. 

Speaker. 

}ffi. SPEAKER: The hon. Leader of the Opposition. 

MR. ROBERTS: ~x. Speaker, a question for the Premier on a different 

topic. We will be back_to unemployment. But could the Premier tell us, 

and this is something I think under active discussion in a number of 

other provinces now, Hanitoba and Prince Edward Island are two~ c6uld 

he tell us whether the administration a~e giving active consideration to 

the question of raising the legal age at which liquor may be consumed in 

this Province? 

MR. SPEAKER: The hon. Premier. 

MR. MOORES: No, Mr. Speaker, not at this time. 

MR. ROBERTS: 'Ank1 told us that you were. 

MR. SPEAKER: The hon. member for LaPoile. 
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·--
MR.NEARY: Mr. Speaker, I have a question for the Minister of Mines 

and Energy. Sir, would the minister tell the House if Newfoundland 

Hydro Corporation is providing a bus service between the Philip 

Building here and Elizabether Avenue and the Centrec Building 

out in Donovans Industrial Park, if the Newfoundland Hydro Corporation 

provides a bus service for the employees to bring them out in the 

morning ·and bring them back in the evening? 

l1R. ROBERTS : Yes, they have a free bus service. 

That is why our rates are going up. 

HR. SPEAKER: The han. Minister of Hines and Energy. 

}ffi. PECKFORD: Mr. Speaker, I will check the information out for the 

bon. member and have an answer for him next week. 

MR. NEARY: A supplementary, Hr. Speaker. 

MR. SPEAKER: A supplementary, then the han. gentleman for Burgee-Bay d'Espoir. 

MR.NEARY: Would the minister also find out the name of the 

people from whom the bus is chartered and the amount. 

MR. ROBERTS: And was it done on tenders? 

l1R. NEARY: -And was it done on public tenders, and the amount 

of the charge? 

MR. ROBERTS: How much are they charging the,people \ilho are,·using it~ 

MR. PECKFORD: Yes, Mr. Speaker, I will check out all those matters 

that are· relevant as wentioned by the hon. member for LaPoile. 

HR. SPEAKER: The bon. member for Bellevue. 

MR. W. CALLAN: In the absence of the Minister of Forestry and 

Agriculture,perhaps the Premier could tell the House why is it that 

applications for Crown land in this Province take so long to be 

processed? 

~1R. SPEAKER: The hon. Premier. 

PREMIER MOOP£S: I will take notice of the question, Mr. Speaker. 

}~. CALLAN: A supplementary, Mr. Speaker. 

}1R. SPEAKER: A supplementary. 
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MR. CALLAN: A supplementary. Mr. Speaker~ in the statistics that 

we got there, the budget and so on, there is one civil servant for 

every nineteen people in this Province. Mr. Speaker, down in the 

Cro~vn lands, I have been told by the officials down there, that 

they are short on secretarial staff. And this is one of the reasons 

why the processing - of applications takes so long. Now my second 

q11estion. is this: . Hr. Speaker, I wonder if it is necessary for the 

process to take so long? For example, in the Department of Health, 

to get the health inspector in Harbour Grace to inspect a piece of 

land at Norman's Cove, you know, the application has to go to the 

centre office here in St. John's,and then to be redistributed. Arid 

so far a letter that was sent out to Harbour Grace on the twentieth 

of April has not arrived there. Hhy the bureaucracy? 

AN RON. }ffiMBER: (Inaudible.) 

MR. SUfMONS: A supplementary, }1r. Speaker. 

}ffi. SPEAKER: I recognize the hon. member for a question .but not a 

supplementary, but for a question. 

MR. SIMMONS: Oh, I see. Well I would like to ask the Premier a 

question in the continuing absence of the Ninister of Forestry. A 

couple of years ago, one of the former Ministers of Forestry announced 

that there was going to be re-organization of Crown lands and as a 

result the long delays in getting applications processed would be 

reduced from several months down to one to two -months. I believe it 

is the present Minister of Health who announced that, that it would be 

brought up to date by June of 1976. And I am wondering ·now,and my 

question to the Premier is what went wrong? Why has this not been done? 

Was the transfer to the new building a factor or more importantly when 

can we expect it to be brought up to date?. 

MR. SPEAKER: The hon. Premier. 

PREMIER MOORES: First of all, 
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PPP·.fiE'P YCIOPES: Hr. Speaker, I think, I am not absolutely sure of 

this figure but I think we have doubled the staff in rrown Lands. I 

think it has been speede~ up. I think Crown Lands has been one of 

the real problem areas for a lonp: vJhile.,and there were outstanding 

applications for as long as five years back at one stage. It was just 

unbelieveable. Steps have been taken, Sir, to decentralize the 

process where they do not have to refer to St. John's. I ~now there 

are offices in Grand Falls and Corner Brook -

AN RON • YE:"~F.R : Gander. 

J~1 - 1 

PPEY'IER }~C'OPES : 

it will r:o -

HP. POBEP_TS : 

Gander rather, Corner Brook novJ and hopefully in time 

Goose Bay but 

PPP-aEP 1-~00'R.ES: Hell in Gander and Corner Brook they make decisions 

on their ovm,as I understand it. 

HP. PDBEP.TS : There is one in Goose Bay that sends them back from 

t'Ance Au Cla~r to Goose Bay to Corner Brook to St. John'~. 

PHEYIEP }~00k'_ES: Either '"ay, }1r. Speaker, everything possible is be in~ 

done in the Crovm Lands division. It is a <1ifficult area to administer 

hut there is room for improvement a~d it is . of concern to us, but I rather 

the ~inister were . here because I know he has some specific plans which 

he could give to the House. 

~.fP. • SPEAK.F.'P : 

!'"F.. L'E!SH: 

of Health. 

T~e hon. member for Terra Nova. 

Yr. Speaker, I want to ask a question to the Yinister 

SOME RON. ME}ffiEP.S: Hear, hear! 

MR. LUSH: I wonder if the minister can inform the House as to what 

action the government plans to take to regulate and control ambulance 

services in the Province? 

1'"1'.. SPEAKER : 

}"P_. CQLLINS: 

The bon. Hinister of Health. 

Mr. Speaker, I believe I indicated to the hon. member 

during the debate on the estimates, I am not sure i-f I did or not, but at 

any rate ~Te do realize that the grea.t number of ambulances vJhich are in 
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V~. COLLINS: place in the Province novr should be regulated. He are 

very proud, ~-{r. Speaker, of the ambulance service ,,Tbich we provide, . the 

road ambulance. The time has come I think ~,Then '"e must look Rt ~..rays and 

means of offering training to the ~rivers. A great number of the drivers 

have allready b.een trained. At any rate,the whole matter of the subject 

of discussion this past two or three weeks with the Public Utilities 

Board in terms of regulations and also with other interested agencies 

to try and bring about a better operat]on. As I say, 1-~r. Speaker, ,,1e 

are very proud of the ambulance service but it needs some refinemer.ts. 

:!''R. SPEAKER: The bon. member for Fogo. 

CAPTAIN "ITNSOR: Yr. Speaker, a question to the bon. the Premier. 

Can the Premier tell the House whether he has met privately with 

Premier Levesque of Quebec to discuss ~ammon problems pertaining to 

Newfoundland? 

}"'P • SPEAK.E:P : 

PREMIER :HOOPES : 

~r. Speaker. 

CAPTAIN HINSOP: 

}"'P.. SPEAKE'P._: 

CAPTAIN WINSOR: 

The bon. Premier. 

No, I have not met privately with Premier Levesque, 

A supplementary, 1-!r. Speaker. 

A supplementary. 

Is the Premier contemplating such a meeting within 

the foreseeable future? 

. MR. SPFAKER : 

PRE¥.1ER Y.OOPES : 

}ffi.. SPEAKEP. : 

The bon. Premier • 

Not at the present time, 1-f.r. Speaker, no. 

The han. member for LaPoile follm.1ed by the bon. 

gentleman for BurReo-Bay D'Espoir. 

}ffi. NEARY: ¥r. Speaker, I would like to put a question to the hon. 

Premier in connection with the North side of the Argentia Naval Station. 

Hould the Premier tell the House whether negotiations have been finalized 

yet for the Province to take over the buildings and the property on the 

Northside of the Argentia Naval Station? 

!-ffi.. SPEAKEP.: The bon. Premier. 

PREHIER MOORES : Yr. Speaker, in conjunction with my colleague from 
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Placentia i"e have had ongoinf! discussions with the 

Federal Government for quite some time on this. l~en in Otta'tva I met 

Pith the American Ambassador there and He discussed it further as well 

as with Hr. Jamieson, the secretary of State,and tme would think that 

that should be finalized in the earJy immediate future. As a matter of fact 

,,.e plan one further trip to Ottawa to deal with the principals concernec'! 

to get everything put into place but I think it is gettin.g at that 

stage nm.•. 

!'liP • NEARY : A supplementary question, Sir. 

"!-.'!F.. SPE.AKEr.: A supplementary. 

:l'fP. NEARY: 1•Jould the Premier indicate, just gjve us an approximate 

time v.rhen the ne~otiations l>1ill be finalized? 

NR. SPEJ...K.ER: The bon. Premier. 

PP.E~EP }1"00P.ES :- It depends when I can get permission to leave the 

Rouse, ~r. Speaker. 

}'F.. NEARY: A suprlementary question, ~1r. Speaker. 

JlfP • SPEAKER: A supplementary. 

lT. NEARY: Pould the hon. t .he Premier tell the House if DP.EE has 

a plan rea~y to implement on the North sic'!e of the Argentia Naval 

Station if and ~,•hen the property is turned over to zthe Province? 

1'-IF.. ~PEAKER: The bon. Premier. 

P:RElnEP MOOP..ES: Partially, ~'r. Speaker. 

HR. NEARY: Mr. Speaker, a supplementary question. 

l'~R. SPEAKER: A final supplementary. 

}ffi.. NEARY: Would the ~'inister of Fisheries tell the House if anything 

has been done about the excellent refrigeration facilities at Argentia? 

The minister -vms talking about some time ago about using _it for storirg 

.·fish for a distribution centre and so forth. Has anything been done 

about these facilities? 

The bon. ¥inister of Fisheries. 

"MR. W. CARTER: }~r. Speaker, v!e have had an engineering firm take a look 
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HP.. ~~r. CARTER: at the buildings an~ just find out to advise 

government as to if they can be rehabilitated, tf the cold storage 

capabilities there could be rehabilitate0.. That report has 
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}ffi. W.CARTER: not being completed yet. 

MR. SPEAKER: Hon.member for Burgee-Bay D'Espoir. 

MR. SIMMONS: "ttr. Speaker, a questio~ for my friend the Minister 

of Education. He indicated earlier that ·there would be a start made 

on : the Polytechnical this year, can he now indicate whether the 

design of the building or buildings is completed and when tenders 

w-ill be- -called on · the new Polytechnical? 

MR. SPEAKER: The hen Minister . of Education. 

MR. HOUSE: Mr. Speaker,there is an allocation in the budget for 

a start this year. I indicated when we were presenting the bill 

that we ~.,.auld not be able to make any definitive decision until 

we had our negotiations with DREE people. That 

has been in process and progress now and I cannot be 

definite about whether it will start in the next month or two but 

we are hopeful something will be got going this year. 

MR. SIMMONS: 

MR. SPEAKER: 

1'-'ffi.. SIMMONS: 

A supplementary. 

A supplementary. 

Mr. Speaker, ~ ... hen the minister says there is noney 

in t?.e budget -or a vote in the budget for a start~does he mean 

a design start or is he talking of an actual start in construction 

this ;•ear? 

MR. SPEAKER: The "tfinister of Education. 

MR. HOPSE: Mr. Speaker, the design has been completed and most 

of the preliminary plans have been drawn up. He have comtemplated 

a physical start this year~but as I say we cannot be definitive 

about it until we see what imput we are going to ,get from DP~E 

people& They may want some changes and that may necessitate further 

design or a different design but we hope it would not be much 

different from what we have planned now. 

MR. STMMONS: 

MR. SPEAKER: 

MR. SIMMONS: 

A supplem~ntary. 

A supplementary. 

Mr. Speaker, the minister's references to DREE, 

are we to understand fro5 that that the negotiations with DREE 
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HR. SIMMONS: have to do with a·final determination of what 

the facility vrill include or is it negotiation to do with 

possible financial involvement? Perhaps I could put it another 

way; does the government at this time have a firm commitment 

from DREE as to the nature of its involvement in the project or 

is the negotiation aimed at getting such a commitment? 

MR. HOUSE: It is aimed at getting some imput into the actual 

construction costs and of course when we presented our package -

artd that was the whole idea of getting the bill through early 

enough before we presented the package-we sent along definite 

plans and obviously if they are going to have an imput they 

may '-1ant some changes,so this is in the process of negotiations 

nm·7 and I cannot comment any further on it. 

MR. SIMl10NS: A supplementary. 

MR.. SPEAKER: A final supplementary, the hon. member for 

Burgee-Bay D'Espoir~ then the hon member fo~ St. G~orges. 
! 

MR. SIMMONS: Mr. Speaker, one is tempted to say it sounds like 

the same old trick where they announce and then go looking for 

money after. Mr. Speaker, my supplementary~· is the minister 

indicating or is he prepared to indicate that whether or not 

the project gets underway this year will depend on whether or 

not funds are receivable from DREE? 

MR. HOUSE: The han minister. 

MR. HOUSE: Mr. Speaker, when we are negotiationg for so~ething 

of that nature I think it would be wrong and perhaps a.little 

premature for me to indicate what we are going to do if they do 

- -
not come across . So "''\ole would have to await their .decision 

before I can make a statement to that affect. 

MR. SH1MONS: But it Will not go ahead if you do not get the money 

from DREE. 

}lR. SPEAKER: Hon.member for St. Georges. 

MRS MaciSAAC: This if for the Premier. With respect to the 

severance. pay announced for the employees of Labrador Linerboardr 

I wonaer if the Premier could tell us how many people will be 

involved and how many will qualify for the severance pay? 
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PREUIER MOORES : 

Mr. Speaker, no I cannot at: this time. iYha t: I can do for the hon. 

member for St. Georges is as soon as the detail has been worked 

aut to let her know. My understan.ding en it is that any person 

who is there at the time of completion gets a certain amount.,and 

any person who leaves before that gets a certain amount and so on. 

But what I can do is get the Minister of Manpower-and the 

't'finister of Finance who · have been involved to fully advise the 

hon.member for St. Georges. 

MRS MaciSAAC: A supplementary,Mr. Speaker. 

MR . SPEAKER : A supplementary. 
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MRS. MACISAAC: I wonder if the Premier would attempt 

to find out what classes of people would qualify~--~hat _SY.P~ 

of jobs? 

MR.. SPEAKER: The hon. Premier. 

PREMIER MOORES: Yes, Mr. Speaker, I will. 

MR. CALLAN: A supplementary, Mr. Speaker. 

MR. SPEAKER: ·A supplementary, the hon. member for Bellevue. 

MR. CALLAN: Mr. Speaker, I wonder if the Premier could exPlain 

why the fifty-odd workers at the Come By Chance Refinery have not 

yet received their severance pay? 

MR. SPEAKER: The hon. Premier. 

PRE:l'-UER MOOORES: If the hon. member could give us a list, Mr. Speaker. 

He is very late in doing so if he knew about it before now. 

'MR. SPEAKER: The bon. member for LaPoile. 

MR. NEARY: Mr. Speaker, my question for the Mlnister of 

MUnicipal Affairs and Housing, Sir. There are three water and 

sewer projects now left high and dry, one in Pouch Cove, one 

in Torbay and one in Placentia where the' bond holders have be~n 

called in because of lack of performance or bankruptcy. In the 

case of the Placentia \vater and sewer system. that so far 

has cost over $1.5 million and no houses are hooked up, will the 

minister indicate to the House when work is going to be resumed 

on this project? 

MR. SPEAKER: 

MR. DINN: 

The hon. Minister of Municipal Affairs and Housing. 

Mr. Speaker, it is very difficult to ·answer that 

question. The funds have been put in place in Placentia. All the 

funds,as I understand it9 have been-spent. -There are no services 

provided to the people and,as I understand it, I do not know if it 

is right now or not, but as I understand it the lawyer is preparing 

to, I think it is Mr. P.J. Lewis, is preparing to serve writs .on 

the contractor and I believe the consultant. 

MR. NEARY: 

}1R., SPEAKER: 

Mr. Speaker, a supplementary question. 

A supplementary. 
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MR. NEARY: After three years, Sir, there has not been one 

house connected in Placentia. Would the minister tell the 

House why it is so difficult and why it · takes so long to get 

the bond holders to perform after a company has ~ither withdrawn, 

been kicked out because of lack of performance,or gone into 

bankruptcy? Why does it take so long to call on the bond holders 

ro finish the work? 

MR. SPEAKER: The hon. Minister of Municipal Affairs and Housing. 

MR. Dil\TN: Mr. Speaker, I have no idea of why it takes so 

long, I do kn~' t~at they intend in some cases to contest the calling 

of the bond and whether they are obligated to perform or not and 

they want it settled by the courts and to this point in time, in the 

case of Placentia,there has been no writs issued on either the bonding 

company, the contractor, or the consultane. 

MR. NEARY: A supplementary. 

MR. SPEAKER: The hon. member for LaPoile, a supplementary. 

MR. NEARY: Why steps has the minister taken to protect the 

public treasury in cases like this? Does the minister's department 

play any role in providing assistance to the municipalities who 

become involved in long legal battles in the courts over these 

matter. 

MR. SPEAKER: The hon. Minister of Municipal Affairs and Housing. 

MR. DINN-: Mr. Speaker, it is very difficult, as the hon. 

member well knows, to interfere into what happens between- a 

municipalit~ and a contractor or a bonding company or someone 

else,for an outside , ~gent - to -interfere. 

MR. NEARY: 
I 

But it is public money. It is the government- that 

is putting up the money. 

MR. DI1TN: The money in the case of Placentia, Mr. Speaker, 

as I have already indicated to the bon. member, is spent. 

MR. NEARY: No,it is not. 

MR. DINN: No services installed. 

MR. NEARY: No, the work has not been completed. 
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ORDERS OF THE DAY: 

MR.. SPEAKER: The hon. member for LaPoile. 

MR. NEARY: What are we on, Mr. Speaker? 

MR.. SPEAKER: No order has been called yet. 

MR. NEARY: Well, Mr. Speaker, I move the House,adjourn, 

Sir, until three o'clock this afternoon. 

Mr..PECKFORU: Motion -six; ==========----
MR. SPEAKER: That is the orders is it? 

HR. MCNEIL: Mr. Speaker, before I get -

MR. SPEAKER: Order, please! I cannot put the hon. gentleman's 

motion. there is no seconder,and subsequently another motion has 

been called which is motion six. Before recognizing the hon. 

member for Stephenville (Mr. McNeil),! will point out that a 

matter was raised earlier by the hon. member for LaPoile_ 

(Mr. Neary). He made a motion which I did not accept, one 

of impeachment. At the time I was unable to cit~ an authority, 
L \ 

I.did not v.Jish to ajourn the House.,but I have identified an 

authority which I should give in citation as to my ruling. 

May, page 66, "Impeachment by the Commons 

for high crimes and misdemeanors beyond the reach of the law, for 

which no authority in the state will prosecute,might still be 

regarded as an ultimate safeguard of public liberty though·. 

it has not bee employed since the beginning of the nineteenth 

century." The last impeachment, according to May, was in 1806. 

And he concludes by saying_that, "By the law of Parliament, 

all persons, whether peers or commoners,may be impeached for any 

I 
crimes whatever although impeachments have generally been 

. \ 

reserved for extraordinary crimes and extraordinary offenders." 

But I would not think the hon. Premier's momentary absence would 

have been an extrordinary crime. 

MR. NEARY: Absenteeism, gross neglect and mismanaga~ent. 

--
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MR. SPEAKER: The hon. member for Stephenville. 

MR. I.J. MCNEIL: Hr. Speaker, before I get into my speech 

I would like to move an amendment, it is to be seconded by my 

hon. colleague from Port au Port (Mr. Hodder), to strike out 

PK - 1 

the words after "resolved that" and to replace thee with the 

following:"This House affirms its faith in the future of Labrador 

Linerboard Limited and records its belief that there is no 

justification for closing the mill now,and that it ought not to 

close,not ought, excuse me, ought not to be closed by the 

government . " There are extra copies here. 

MR. SPEAKER: It has been moved by the hon. member for Stephenville, 

seconded by the hon. member for Port au Port (Mr. Hodder) to strike 

out all of the words after "resolve:i that",and to replace them with 

the following: "This House affirms its faith in the future of the 

Labrador Linerboard Limited and records its belief that there is 

no justification for closing the mill now, and it ought not to be 

closed by the government." 

The hon. member for Stephenville. 

MR. MCNEIL: I thank you, Mr. Speaker. 

Mr. Speaker, as the amendment reads,we feel that 

Labrador Linerboard should not close and that the government has 

not acted in the best interest of our Newfoundland people. ·The 

government set up an Advisory Board which was given the task to 

look into all aspects of the operation and advise the government 

on their findings. They were given in the terms of reference 

between four and six months. 

In the last six months in Stephenvi1le,with the 

appointment of the new manager, Mr. Sweeney, there has been a air 

of optimism; finally the people began-£Dbelieve that Labrador 

Linerboard for the first time ever could be turned around. The 

Advisory Board put forward recommendations, its new president gave 

., 
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Mr. McNeil: 

a new life into the area. The top management, the workers and 

even the town's people themselves thoug~t, and still do today, that 

Labrador Linerboard can be turned around and made into a viable 

operation. But they did not expect that our Newfoundland government 

would turn their backs on them. The least they expected was that 

o~r g'?ve:~ent would turn their backs on them when they needed 

them most. The people in Bay St. George have been sold for a 

few pieces of silver by our Moores P.C. Government. They are 

more concerned for trying to balance their books than looking at 

the welfare of our people 1 when the facts are pointing that 

Labrador Linerboard can possibly be turned around. This is 

coming from people ~from the Advisory Board who are suppose to be 

experts in their field. They are not politicians, they are business-

men. 

Nm..r t·:rhen you look at the Advisory Board group, the 

Advisory Board group as · set up, the Chairman is Mr. 'fi_ttemc_lre, President 

of Price. Other members of the Board would be Mr. Bennett,the 

President of the Iron Ore Company of Canaca, a respected Canadian 

businessman, another man >vould be John Andrews,Executive Vice­

President of Consolidated Bathrust, a respected Canadian businessmen, 

Jack Sheeley,President of Bowaters Canada, a respected Canadian 

businessmen, Lewis Ayre.,Chairman of.:.Ayres Limited, a \oJell known 

and respected Newfoundlander 7 and a businessman, Ford Hewlett, 

President and General Manager of Hewlett's Sons Limited. again 

a respected businessman; and then we have a secretary, Rollie 

Martin, Deputy Minister of Finance. 

On May 7 we see in the Financial Post a statement by 

the President of Labrador Linerboard, the new President, Hr. Sweeny, 

>vas only on loan to our Province with a group of fine businessmen 

trying to find solutions to our problem in an industry which we in 

this House, no one here has any bad knowledge of the industry, and 

'tvhich we in this House should rely on them for their information ·- ----
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MR. McNEIL: and advice. What do we do? We ignored their 

reports. The President of the Mill, Mr. Sweeney, headlines, 

"Labrador Linerboard's Boss Fighting Mad· About Closure." 

And then we have in the preliminary report, the Advisory Board 

Committee, recommendations from the board to close down~ 

so we are told by our government. But when I looked through 

-
this little brief, I do not see it in print where they 

recommended the closing down of Labrador Linerboard. They 

say, "Under present conditions." And also in another report, 

the alternative products report, they advise the government that 

in three years it can be turned around if you spend $12.3 million 

in capital expenditur&~ to improve the operations, to get down 

your fixed cost. 

Mr. Speaker, our government has not only 

turned their backs on the Bay St. George people and the people 

in Newfoundland as a whole, they have told respected businessmen 

of Canada, "We do not need your advice, your solid business 

advice. We just want you to get before us so you can be a smoke 

screen, so you will keep the political pressures off of us, keep 

the people off of our backs. That is why you set up the Advisory 

Board. You used these people as puppets. 

About a month ago I went to Mr. Sweeney's 

office and I must say he is a very fine, respected man and always 

defending the government, which he should. He did state -

~.SPEAKER (MR. YOUNG): I wonder would the hon. member yield? 

MR. MeNEIL: Yes. Yes. 

MR. SPEAKER (MR. YOUNG): I - we icome , to the galleries or behalf 

of all the members of the House of Assembly forty-nine students from 

Eastport Central High School in Eastport~from grades eight and nine, 

accompanied by their teachers, Mr. Boyd Glover, Mr. Major, and Miss Grant 
r ·~ 

I trust your stay will be enjoyable. 

SOME HON ~ '}!EMBERS: Hear! Hear! 

MR. STRACHAN: . Mr. Speaker, I just want to have a quorum. 

MR. SPEAKER (MR. YOTmC::): A quorwn call. 

We have a quorum. 
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MR. SPEAKER: 

AN HON. :ME!-ffiER : 

'HR. '~'kNElL : 
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The hon member for Stephenville. 

People on TV cannot 

(Inaudible) 

AH-1 

I am not interested in getting on TV, I would like 

to impress the importance on this House,who are supposed to be 

running the Province, the imp~rtance of trying to keep Labrador 

Linerboard operating, not have another failure. ~~at are we in 

Newfoundland going to become,an industrial junkyard in the eyes 

of the world? 

Mr. Speaker, I mentioned earlier that I was speaking to Mr. 

Sweeney about one month back and I asked him, I asked him why 

did he come to Ne~vfoundland, why did he take the challenge set 

before him~did he really believe in his heart that the government 

would listen to him and listen to him and his board? And he said 

he is here for one reason~to make the mill operate~and he 

believes it can operate and he believed that the government 

would listen to him and listen to his Advisory Board. 

But I doubt very much if even our government has even read the 

reports.From the information that is coming back~so far I have 

not seen any of it, there are a couple of little reports that 

were tabled in the Rouse but they say very little, it is what 

they do not say is the thing that amazes me,and that maybe Mr. 

Sweeney is right~maybe our bureaucrats are misleading our han. 

members, maybe the problem lies \o7ith the bureaucrats- -in- that 

Linerboard was scheduled to close down1two years ago. 

Mr. Speaker~ going back nm years ago and in the understanding 

of the ·marke_tp_lace and our high cost of wood and of the 

government close at that time~maybe we would have said there is 

no way that it can ever make money~there is no way that it will 

even breaR even on its operating eXpenses. But in the last six 

months \ve have seen in Stephenville, mostly because of the 

efforts of one man, that he has brought a little bit of hope to 

an industry that is one of Canada's best. 

}ffi. SMALLWOOD: ·And if he had been there from the beginning of 

I 
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MR. SHALUlOOD: operations it would be a different story. 

~ffi. McNEIL: He did say, he says he is sorry that he did not 

come about a year earlier, it may not be running now as a - and 

making money,but it would not have all the massive nroblems that 

it has. It is one mistake after another,built upon one 

bang, bang right aft_er another,rnistake after mistake. 

But let us take a look at the total problem • Going back 

from day .one the major problem that was cited,the single most 

expensive in regards to losses~was our wood. I will go back to 

the man of that time~the Chairman of the Board, Mr. Crosbie,and 

I will just read a little part of Hansard, I quote "When I spoke 

in the House in 1972 -1973 in detail on Labrador Linerboard I 

said then and I say now-

MR. SMALLWOOD: ~~ose words are these? 

MR. McNEIL: John Crosbies, these are John Crosbie's words."I 

said then and I say now it can never be economically feasible and 

I said ;then and I say now that will alw·ays cost., it will always have 

to be assisted by the people of the PLovince through the government 

if it is to continue in operation because it got the most abominable 

wood cost of any mill anywhere in the world" 

Now we all realize there is a great wood cost • 
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MR. HCNEIL: Well we all hear about the USt Southern mills, 

they have cheap wood. True,they have cheap wood but they have 

problems in wood as well. 

MR. MORGAN: No,cheaper labour. 

MR. MCNEIL: I would like to just quote a remarks from a 

Mr. Stanford Smith, a US giant in the paper industry. "In 

tneir- cautious and skeptical moods the industry managers 

must cripple with a new set of long term uncertanties as well. 

One of the largest of those has to do with the availability of 
--

the industrv's raw materials. Once you could put a pin anywhere 
. 1 

on the map in the South, build a mill there and people would 

just come out of the woods with wood," says IP's Stanford Smith. 

"No more, 11 he added, "Timber is getting to be in short supply around 

the world. Even Sweden has begun importing wood chips from the US 

to feed its paper mills and harvesting regulations seem likely 

to get tougher on federal lands." 

MR. SMALL\mOD: Wood chips from the US to Sweden? 

MR. MCNEIL: Right. 

MR. SMALLWOOD: Across the Atlantic. 

HR. MCNEIL: Across the Atlantic. And we cannot even bring 

it from our Island to our own mill. We are sitting in the midst 

of it and ~"e cannot get our industry off the ground. 

Mr. Speaker, the Chairman of the Canadian 

Pulp and Pap~r Association in a little bulletin states, "It is 

fair to state that there is good evidence that Canadian costs are 

lower than Scandanavian costs and higher than American costs. 

Scandanavians have similar employment costs, much more expensive 

wood costs but s~me advantage in transportation and their capital 

costs are comparable." 

Checking across in the Canadian industry itself 

I have called several mills across Canada and they t·ell me that when your 

wood cost per cord goes over $75 in the year 1976-77 then you are going 
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MR. MCNEIL: to have problems -~~the market place. The closer you 

are to the_,$50 level, as a low and high, then you are going to 

be more competitive. So if we are going to supply wood to 

Labrador Linerboard as our · Advisory Board has reported,at 

about $60 a cord on an average or possibly a little lower, then 

why can we not make a success of the industry? 

Our wood costs was a problem and now we are 

starting to see a little bit of light. And our government 

in their wisdom wants to close up the operation. Why? Maybe 

it is the lack of wisdom? 

MR. SMALLWOOD: Practically all of the pap~r mills in England are h~sed 

on wood that they have to import. 

MR. MCNEIL: That is true. And another thing that my han. 

colleague from Twillingate (Mr. Smallwood) has mentioned, that 

mostly all the mills in England are based on wood that they have to 

import and we -

1>1R. SMALLWOOD: From Russia, from Finland. 

MR.. !-iCNE IL : And we in Newfoundland are sitting in the midst 

of forests, one of our primary resource, our natural base 

resources~and we cannot make a success of it. What chance do we 

have in anything else? Are we all going to go out picking 
. 

blueberries for a living? Is this why we have the people up in 

the galleries, the leaders of tomorrow, the people of tomorrow? Are 

we going to te~l them that you are going to be reduced to be 

berry pickers? Mr. Speaker, there will not be enough blueberries 

to cover the massive unemployment that we are heading for. 

In 1973 we had a report on the Newfoundland 

Federal-Provincial Task Force on forestry. In 1973 it was pointed 

out that if Labrador Linerboard was going to be a viabie operation 

it had to realign its forest concessions. There is enough wood on 

the Island to sustain three mills. It was pointed out then to the 

government that something had to be done. What did our government do? 

They sat on it. They did not do a thing,-· a do-nothing government. 

There is no doubt about it, Tory times are hard times. Why? Because 

they do nothing. 
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MR. MCNEIL: It also spoke in this report about 

marketing. It stated that an ~ggressive_mar}(et_ing; C<ini.E_~ign 

aimed particularly at the European market,must be started 

now. And what did we do? We turned around and gave the 

marketing of our product to a US firm, a peanut operation 

who never sold Linerboard before. 

MR. SMALLWOOD: Or anything else. 

MR. MCNE-IL: Well I do not know what else they sold. 

MR. SMALL1~lOOD: No. They were formed to sell this. They have 

never sold anything. 

MR. MCNEIL: Our Newfoundland Government, we make millionaires 

of people from outside. Maybe we should be telling our people 

not to ·elect our own people as politicians to come into this 

"' Rouse and direct the affairs of our Province, maybe we should be 

telling them, "Go down to Wall Street and elect your members, 

because they control this Province." It is not us here in the 

Rouse. 

Another example of how the people in-the 

Bay St. George area have been treated with regard to the Newfoundland 

people itself; during the past months we had the Harmon Corporation-

or the Newfoundland and Labrado Rousing Corporation had a rent 

increase. The people in that area, because of the uncertainty in 

the area, asked to meet with their Minister of Housing, Ee did 

go out. 

MR. DINN: Their member did not show up. 

MR.. MCNEIL: I am talking about the tenants now.-

MR. DINN: Yes. The member was not there. 

MR. MCNEIL: The member was not invited. The member was here 

in St. John's at the time. 

MR. NEARY: He did not even invite you? 

MR. MCNEIL: Oh do not you worry. They keep me w~ll informed. 

Do not worry. 

But what did the minister do? The minister told 

the ~ecutive, "If you do not like it~get out." Now that is what· 

he told the people of Bay St. George when he knew or had an idea 
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MR. MCNEIL: that Labrador Linerboard was in a very 

bad situation and possibly the closure was just around the 

corner. 

Now, Mr. Speaker, if you are living into 

NM- 2 

an area - now I grew up in Stephenville and I have went through 

the closure of the Harmon Base. Now we lived with that from 

day one;that someday it would go. And that feeling still went 

even when Labrador Linerboard was put there and people said 

from day one that it was a bad move, the location was wrong, 

and that is _ the only argument they had, the location is wrong. 

But you can take wood from here in Newfoundland or from 

Canada and you can ship it to Europe for their mills and we say 

here, we have got wood on the Island and because the mill is 

in Stephenville the location is wrong. 

Now, Mr. Speaker, I can buy an argument but 

~o1hen you take your raw resource from one country into another., 

and within your own Province you cannot take that raw resource 

and put it to a location a little further away than the normal 

and cannot make a success of it when you have all the infrastructure 

there and cannot make a success of it~where is the problem( And I 

have got to say and I can feel in my heart that it has to be 

our government do not care about the people they serve. 

Mr. Speaker, in 1966 the Base moved. People 

had a little bit of property they invested in. Costs were down, 

we did not hit the inflation period. People left their homas. 

boarded them up and walked a~o1ay from them. Today it is a different 

situation. Today the people who have homes in the Stephenville 

area have mortgages, high mortgages; If the bank wants to move 

in they will lose everything,and they do not only lose their 

material possession that they have, they lose something else that 

they value, their credit, their stature in the financial circles. 

You are tearing the heart and soul right out of the people themselves; 

t~ey have no dignity. 
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MR • M,CNE IL : Mr. Speaker, during the past year, two years, 

Stephenville has been dying while our govermnent sits back 

and they tell us, ''We do not want to hold out any false hOJ>e 

NM- 3 

to you. W'e want to tell you the facts as they are.11 Mr. Speaker, 

how much information has came forward? 

---
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Mr. McNeil: I am the same member for the district, and every 

scrap of information that I have I had to get it through some 

devious means, for the betterment of my _people. I have gone to 

the government for information, we have set up the joint councils, 

a committee, we requested information from them, and they keep 

putting us off. So finally they set up this Advisory Board. 

And with the Advisory Board~we looked at it, we had our doubts 

in some areas, we did not believe that the government would listen 

to the Advisorry Board. And now today it has proven when you 

have your president of that company, the president of the company 

and the key man dealing with the Advisory Board, the Advisory 

Board has to go back to him for -mostly all of the information, 

and that is where the information is,out in the Stephenville area. 

It is not here in this House. The bureaucrats downstairs can 

turn their figures around any way to suit themselves. And when 

you get the management people in the six month period taking an 

industry which had a capacity of 1,000 tons, and the day before 

our Buc!ge t Speech produce 1, 200 tons, .broke their own record, 

and go back to about a year before -

MR. SMALLWOOD: 

MR. MCNEIL: 

MR. SMALLWOOD: 

MR. McNEIL: 

Twelve hundred. 

Twelve hundred tons -

Two hundred over the 

Two hundred over the capacity that it was originally 

designed for, and she cannot operate! 

Do you realize, Mr. Speaker, that when you produce at that 

high rate, and this is people in the industry that tell me, that 

you are saving yourself anywhere from $20 to $30 per ton,and our 

government wants to close it upl They want to walk away. The 

people of Newfoundland should demand that the Moores Government 

resign. But very few people, very few people realize the seriouness 

of this. One of our industries was based on a natural resource, and we 

cannot get off the ground with it. 

MR. MORGAN: 

knows 

--- .;::.--
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MR. MCNEIL: Mr. Speaker -

SOME HON. MEMBERS: Oh, oh! 

MR. MCNEIL: Mr. Speaker -

MR. SPEAKER (Mr. YOUNG): Order, please! 

MR. HCNEIL: Mr. Speaker, if we cannot get off the ground 

with a resource based industry~what chance do we have for the 

fishery industry getting off the ground? They are much the same. 

We got the wood here, the wood is a resource that continues, it 

will be here a thousand years from now if the spruce budworm do 

not get it. 

AN HON. MEMBER: And it is properly managed. 

MR. MCNEIL: And it is properly managed. 

But our oil, our oil which we are putting the hope 

on, this oil around our banks, how·long does that last? 

MR. J. WINSOR: It is not found yet. 

MR. MCNEIL: And it is not found yet. But after about twenty 

years after it will be gone. 

Mr. Speaker -

MR. NOLAN: A point of order,if I am allowed. 

Mr. Speaker, I rise on a point of order because the bon. 

member who no one can charge is taking up the -time of this House 

in any foolishness in all the time· -he has been here is now attempting 

to make a speech on his district,which is very important not only to 

the people in the St. George's area but also to this Province. And 

surely, Mr. Speaker, it is not too much to ask that at least he be 

given this one opportunity to be heard in silence. 

SOME HON. MEMBERS: Hear, hear! 

--- ·· 
MR.. SPEAKER (MR. YOUNG): To- that --point of order, T_ would like . to as:k- ~~1-:ers 

-
on both sides of the House that a member has every right to be heard in silence. 

I would ask you to adhere to that ruling. 

The bon. member for Stephenville. 

MR. MCNEIL: Thank you, Mr. Speaker. 

--- - .... __ .... - ----
K.N HON • MEMBER: A good ruling. 

- -
SOME RON. MEMBERS: Hear , hear~ 
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MR. I'!CNEIL: Mr. Speaker, if the hon. Hinister of Transportation 

could keep our highways in a good condition in the same manner 

that he can wave his tongue about we would have a pretty good 

highway. 

SOME RON. MEMBERS : Hear, hear! 

MR. MORGAN: Thi~ is not personal! This is not personal: 

SOME RON. ~ERS : Hear, hear! 

MR. SPEAKER (MR. YOUNG): Ordet, please! 

MR. MORGAN: Keep it up,· too. 

MR. SPEAKER (MR. YOUNG): Order, please! 

MR. MCNEIL: Mr. Speaker, if I may 

back to the past year in Stephenville. 

just for a moment just go 

Like I said before,the 

cammuni ty is dying, and we have been going through this in the 

past two years, and very few people have been realizing - the 

people themselves in the community have a lot of optimism, a lot 

of hope, and you try to realize, 
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MR. McNEIL: where did they get it from! The:y have been down so 

many times and still they keep fighting back, but the fight is getting 

weaker and weaker. And, Mr. Speaker, that is going to spread right across 

our Island, because in this Province in the last five years L we have had 

failure after failure after failure. Now, why? Now in Stephenville itself, 

if you look at the population, it is a young town dealing - yes, it is 

probably the best time that you could take and have a sample of your 

younger population. Over half your population is under the age of twenty-

five. That is your hope for tomorrow. And if Stephenville fails, if our 

government crushes the spirit of these people, what hope do we have for 

the rest of Newfoundland? And when you take an industry like Linerboard 

where it deals with so much of the forest based industry and you use even 

the multiplier effect on jobs, which few people do not want to use because 

they say it is not right, ahd when Statistics Canada uses the !igures,and 

they give fo~ a linerboard industry : three to one, and you look at the 

wage salaries in the vicinity of $20 million and you give it a three to 

one multiplier effect that would be $60 million that you are taking out of 

circulation in Newfoundland. $60 million. 

MR. SMALLWOOD: A year? 

MR. McNEIL: A year. So, Mr. Speaker -

MR. SMALLWOOD: Over and abov_e the wage bill of the factory itself? 

MR. McNEIL: That is right. 

MR. SMALLWOOD: That is about $80 million. 

MR. McNEIL: So, Mr. Speaker, the situation that we are into is 

very serious. I do not think - well, I think it is just _as serious as 

maybe 1920 to 1932 -

AN BON. MEMBER: 1932 -

MR. McNEIL: 1932 - 1933? 

AN HON. MEMBER: That is right. 

MR. McNEIL: Well, let me just go back to the wood again. 

In the Advisory Report - the information memorandum, 
·- ---- - - -

the government has determined that· on-Island wood resources are sufficient 

to meet t~e req~irements of all industrial enterprises ·in the Province. 

MR. SMALLWOOD: Three mills. 

MR. McNEIL: Three mills. 
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MR. McNEIL: But now I am told - and some of the work of the 

Advisory Board - that in order to make sure that they can get an 

economic wood supply, they have gone outside our Province and are 

going to possibly buy some of the wood from Nova Scotia, P.E.I. -

infested wood - as budworm infested wood. And here we are in this 

Province when we h~ve our forests being infested with our budworm -

being infested and causing a potential thre~t ,_ not only_ to __ Labrador 

Linerboard, because we are told we cannot have any of our Island wood, 

but it is posing a threat to Bowaters and Price and possibly in a few 

years, will destroy our whole forests. And here we are -we are 

ignoring this, rather than trying to harvest this infested wood with 

all three mills getting together jointly and splitting the cost ' how-

ever low or high it is, because you are dealing with the future. You 

must consider the future of the forests. And if you do not do something 

now with this infested wood, in ten, twenty years you will ~ave no 

forests at all. So that means that Bowaters, Price will close as well, 

because your raw resource is not there. Why? Because of inactivity of 

our Moores P.C. Government. 

Mr. Speaker, we have heard a lot about the losses of 

Labrador Linerboard. We are told time and time again that it can not meet 

its operating expenses and it will never meet its operating expenses. 

But if you look at one of the tables in the report, and this is one of 
. -

the reports done by the Advisory Board Committee, _ an alternate_ products 

lines ~ommittee, in one of the tables it ~peaks - t am 
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MR. MCNEIL: using the government figures as well. 
I 

it gives 

the cost per year, or the number of tons and the mill net 

sales. So in the year 1977-78 they have_ a production of 

166,500 tons selling at $188, net sale price. So 

if you work it out your actual loss per ton on operating, 

only operating itself now, is $88.87, that is in 1977-78. 

BHt if you move on -

MR. SMALLWOOD: Move then to what price? 

MR. MCNEIL: Well this is their projected figures at 

the current prices. 

:HR. SMALLWOOD: At what cost? Wood at what cost? 

MR. MCNEIL: I am not really sure. I think it is - wait now. 

MR. S:M..ALLWOOD : Maybe over $100. 

MR. MCNEIL: $128 per ton. 

MR. SMALLWOOD: A ton? : 

MR. MCNEIL: Two cords of wood so roughly~yes. Okay? 

But if we move on-and no capital expenditure made in the plant 

' 
itself. So we move on to the year 1978-79, taking the 

projected sales volume of 288,000 tons, selling mill net 

at $230 per ton, you come down to actual operating loss per 

ton for 1978-79 of $24.56. All right? Actual operating 

loss per ton. And then if you move to 1979-80, at a 

projected sale volume of 265,000 tons and selling at 

S268 per ton. mill nets,and that will be with wood cost 

of $68.87 per cord, you will get a profit,or shall we say 

a gain on your operating expenses of $6.04, that is for 

1979-80• a gain in your operating expense, Mr. Speaker. And 

here we are·knowing these figures,and the government has them 

but they are not saying a thing about them~ they are giving 

just one side of the coin, telling the people what it is going 

to cost each man and woman and child in this Province, what it 

is going to ~ost to keep Labrador Linerboard open. 
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MR. MCNEIL: Why did the government not tell them how 

much it was going to cost to close? The cost of closing is 

greater than the cost of keeping it operating. The Advisory 

Board Committe in their ~lternate line product has suggested 

that within three years that operation can be turned around. 

But no, Mr. Speaker, our government does not want to listen to 

exper-ts" "in the field, people, businessmen who ran the industry 

itself, who spent all their life, the President thirty-five 

years in the industry, and then our Premier states that he 

got a little carried away. Dear God,could our Premier not 

get carried away and try to fight for us so that we could be 

a have province, not a have-notJ 

sm-m RON. MEMBERS : Rear: Rear! 

NM- 2 

MR. MCNEIL: Our government is not interested in human lives. 

They are not interested in we as people. Why are you in government 

if you are not interested in people? If you are interested in 

figures why did you not stay in the Finance Department or go in 

business totally1 People in business are more concerned with 

figures but oddly enough you know they are more human than our 

politicians. Our politicians are supposed to be sensitive to the 

needs of the people. They are supposed to have an understanding. 

But our government is not. They tell us we are gone. We are 

finished. Dig a grave. Our government are not builders of our 

Province. They are undertakers. 

AN RON. MEMBER: Hear! Hear! Destroyers. 

MR. MCNEIL: Destroyers. You can say that again. 

Capital improvements - this is a report. Now 

I guess it does not mean much to our government. 
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MR. McNEIL: They are not concerned with information they are 

getting from the people in the industry, business_llle!l_~ _They __ will take 

their advice from their bureaucrats first before they will deal with 

people who have been all their lives in the industry itself .' 1Capital 

requirements!dn all of the cases listed above it is considered essenti~l to 

~ake full advantage ,of cost saving: potentials inherent in the 

craft process __. and primarily associated with raw materials,supply 

and energy, these being a series of smaller __ increment investments thev 

relate to any" of the three ortions· utilized in the modern craft _nulnine 

facilities already in place." 

"It seems obvious that if the mill is to continue to operate that 

most of these capital expenditures must be undertaken as soon as 

possible to maximize the return and put the operations in a more 

viable position~ qui ckly to improve ~ts co~etitiveness before 

underforecast linerboard ·markets price volume improvements in 

1978, 1977-1978 and the following year. these improvements are 

summarized in a priliminary way in comparison reports which indicate 

that the return on a modest capital expenditure programme $12.3 

million undertaken over the next three years can make Labrador 

Linerboard profitable at an operating level in that time frame 

even -under the budget most likely prices and volumes. It suggests 

certainly that if the programme is pursued energetically the 
' 

Cro~m could in fact retire all bonded debts from the proceeds to 

1984 without the expenditure required to change product line.'' 

They are telling us, Mr. Speaker, that <-1e do not have to change 

to another product, thatlinerboard itself - the markets are 

improving that there is a hope in staying with Linerboard and 

that if you want to get your fixed cost down you do a three year . 
capital expenditure programme in the amount of $12.3 million, it 

will not only pay for itself over these three years but it will 

probably start servicing the debt. 
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MR. McNEIL: Now that is unbelievable 1! It goes on also,_ "We _ ___ _ 

are not yet ready to abandon Linerboard as a po~entially profitable 

product!' This is your Advisory Board saying that they are not 

going to abandon it and our government has given up and,Mr. Speaker, 

they have given up and do you knm.r that they have not received all 

the reports from the Advisory Board, they have not received the 

final report they have made their decision and the decision is a 

grave one which -.;.vill affect not us new today but ten or twenty 

years down the line, that our Province if we close up that industry­

that our children will have to pay in the vicinity - or our 

Province -.;.;rill pay about three quarters of a billion dollars. 

Mr. Speaker, that is not peanuts! 

Mr. Speaker, as I see it,and I am no expert in the field 

but I have been close to the situation~! have watched it,I have 

s~en ·the past year-in Stephenville itself,! have seen mismanaeemP.ftt 

when workers come to you and tell you through their union - or 

go to their union and ask their union to go management and ask 

management to tighten up - it has to be a desperate situation. 

But the problem did not all lie with management itself • The 

problem there was political interference - political interference, 

Mr. Speaker, management could not manage. Every time management 

made a decision -~ in some particular aspect they had to go back to 

the Cabinet or to the Chairman of the Board, Mr. Crosbie,who has 

no experience in the paper industry but still he is the one who 

makes the final decisions. 

So actually v.•hat do -.;.re have in 11Snagement itselff· - Maybe they- - ­

are just all civil servants. 
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Mr. McNeil: Mr. Speaker, to just cite you an example of 

politically interference, now the financial statements,and they 

are open to anybody, they show that even though the market was 

forecast for a poor year in linerboard, that the industry was 

falling, that the bottom fell out of it, and it is still dropping 

a bit, this was going on in the last year, and our management 

p~opl~ were suggesting ~hat we got to cut back our inventories 

because we have to keep ourself in tune with the market as the 

trend goes, and we were dropping. What were we doing? Ten 

million dollars more in inventory in sales volume. Now that is 

in the financial statements, $10 ~illion more in volume. 

Now, Mr. Speaker, this was pointed out to 

the government. And to give you an example of the seriousness 

of the inventory situation, inventory in 1972-1973, finished goods, 

was $1,581,000 -

MR. SUALLWOOD: 

MR. MCNEIL: 

Dollars? 

Dollars, yes. Inventory in 1973-1974, $4,615,000; 

in 1974-1975, finished goods, $4,629,000; in 1975-1976 we have 

our inventory, unfin!shed goods, going up to $5,747,000. 

MR. SMALLWOOD: That is paper, linerboard paper? 

MR. MCNEIL: Finished goods. 

MR. SHALLWOOD: Ready for market~ 

MR. MCNEIL: Right ready for market .. All right. Pulp'..\'Ood . 

chips etc. 1972-1973, $13,348,000; 1973-1974 $12,933,000; in 1974-1975 

$18,811,000; in 1975-1976 wood chips, pulpwood and your-chips 

inventory, 1975-1976-we were told that the bottom had fell out 

of the market. Our wood inventory was $24,619,000. Ope~ating 

and maintenance supplies, in 1972-1973, $3,074,000; in 1974-1975 

$4,500,000; in 1974-1975 $9,927,000-

HR. SHALLWOOD: For what? 

MR. :HCNEIL: This is operating and maintenance supplies. 

}ffi. S:HALLWOOD: Supplies? 

MR. :HCNEIL: :Haintenance supplies. In 1975-1976~$13,256,000. 

Now we were all told -
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HR. SHALLWOOD: Who were the suppliers? 

HR. MCNEIL: Now that is a good question. We were all told 

that the bottom had fallen out of the indu~try. The management 

recommended a cutback on inventory. 

HR. SMALUJOOD : So they stock up on more wood, on more supplies 

as the market went down. 

MR. MCNEIL: As the market.went down. 

MR. SMALLWOOD: Good marketing. 

MR. MCNEIL: So if you total all of these up in 1972 and 1973 

you had $18,300,000; 1974-1975 was $22,048,000; 1974-1975,$33,367,000; 

1975-1976~$43,622,000. 

AN HON. MEMBER: In dollars? 

HR. MCNEIL: vJell this is the total now, your finished goods, 

pulpwood, chips, operating and maintenance supplies, an increase 

from 1972 to 1975-1976 when the bottom was out of the industry 

and in which the government was told, the management suggested that 

it should cut back, an increase of 240 per cent, and then the 
I 

government says, we did not interfere into the operation. We 

did not interefere we have been trying to encourage it. But 

management asked government to cut back. We said we have cu; back 

for our survival or we cannot make it. 

What did the government do? 

AN HON. MEMBER: . Inaudible. 

MR. MCNEIL: This is all of inventory. 

MR. SMALLWOOD: He worked with John Crosbie. 

MR. MCNEIL: Now, Mr. Speaker, I am going to give you an 

example of - now I know that the hon. gentleman do not say, Well 

that is only the Opposition member being negative, trying to tear 

the government apart, our good 
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MR. McNEIL: government who are giving a little bit of hope to 

our Newfoundland people. Mr. Speaker, business people recommended 

to the government that if you are going t~ be in this industry 

when the market goes down - nm,T your sales volume is down, you 

have got to cut your inventory back a bit,you have got to try 

and balance the two.- ~~en your market is booming,pull in the inventory 

and you will not be able to get it out.You have to keep it rolling. 

Anything that is sitting there is costing you money. 

Now, Mr. Speaker, realizing the situation with inventory realizing 

that the management people went to their Board of Directors,and 

the Board of Directors I imagine got around the Cabinet table ar 

'!;vent back to Cabinet and said 11 Because the market is bad we have 

to cut back, because the market is bad we have to try to bring 

our operating expenses do~~ and in line so that we do not have such 

a great loss!' And when you read other material from other companies 

in the world~they tell you that when the market is bad you have to 

cut back and that is why you have so much down time~and that is 

why the industries say that \vhen the market is bad you do not keep 

producing at a fifty per cent rate because you are l~sing monev. 

Any time your plant is working less than at seventy per cent you are 

loosing an arm and a leg; you have to keep producing at a high ratio 

if you want to make the gravy. 

And when your mill in Stephenville has proven itself whereby it 

not only exceeded its capacity,; and not only met its ca~acitv of lOCO 

tons a day~it has gone ever it to 1200 tons it can produce, so the 

problem, Mr. Speaker, is not in the plarit, it is not with the workers 

or the group of management people, the problem, Mr. Speaker, is 

oolitical interference in business decisions which have to·be 

sometimes very cold. But our government want to be politicans, 

they want to be great business people, they want to be saviours. 

And w·hat are they? Undertakers. And this is a memorandum· to the 

executive council, this was in 1976, "~o¥~rch of this year~the company 
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HR. }1cNEIL: presented a budget to the Board of Directors which 

showed a need for 343,000 cords of wood this year .. _ The market 

situation has not picked up ·as has been earlier anticipated and 

the mill nets for Linerboard have actually_ decreased over the last 

couple of months resulting in even less sales than had been earlier 

projected. Our higher manufacturing cost means that we must 

seek our higher mill' nets ,,.;rhich in effect make it more difficult 

to sell-Linerboard•As a result our wood requirements for this year 

will only be 282,700 cords,or a decrease of 60,300 cords." 

11 By curtailing the c~mpany' s operations and receiving some wood 

from Bowaters,the net effect onpurchased wood would be a reduction 

of 46,500 cords. If Labrador Linerboard carries out its proposed 

reductions in wood purchase to reflect the necessary adjustments 

for sales it will have to advise our wood suppliers to reduce 

their deliveries to the mill by 40.9 per cent across the board." 

reduce alright~We will have to reduce 40.9 per cent across the boardt 

11 During the first month of the strike the company continued to 

purchase pulpwood since they did not know how long the strike 

would last.- As it became evident that the strike would continue 

for some time the company had to cut off the same suppliers of 

wood approximately two and one half months already this calendar 

year. During the time deliveries of pulpwood were suspended, 
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MR. MCNEIL: many of the suppliers carne 

very close to bankruptcy. Some of them have not 

recovered fully and are still having difficulty in 

meeting their financial commitments. We are now faced 

with the position of having to go back to the same 

suppliers who have not fully recoverd and inform them 

that they will have to cut back on their deliveries 

to the mill by 4 0. 9 per cent •11 

''Our officials inform us that 

should this eventually materialize the majority of these 

suppliers will be forced into bankruptcy~' Now why? Why, 

Mr. Speaker, would they be forced into bankruptcy? Were 

they small operations that just started off and dependent?n 

contract? Were these contractors mostly supporters of 

the P.C.Party? This is where the political hogwash 

comes in. 

HR. !-1URP HY : Would the hon. gentleman? 

You referred to a site, where was this particular site 

at the Linerboard itself? 

MR. MCNEIL: Yes. 

MR. MURPHY: Oh, I see. This was in the mill 

itself, not in the logging industry end of it. I see. 

MR. MCNEIL: On the other hand,the company 

has done everything possible short of buying the extra \-.rood 

and stuff, piling it to ensure the suppliers of pulpwood 

are looked after. The company has curtailed its whole 

operations resulting in 250 men in Bay St. George being 

without employment this year. If you are going to - ~ut 

back anything you cut it back at Bay St. George. But 

they would not cut back any woods contractors across the 

Island: ~he people in Bay St. George supplied cheaper 

wood than elsewhere. We cut off our cheap wood and 

continue with our high ~ ~e cut off the cheap wood, yes, 

that is the way the government moves. Wood left in the 
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MR. MCNEIL: Codroy Valley, in that area, 

that we could have gotten for linerboard for about 

$38.00 a cord. They by-passed us and went to Bowaters 

and I think they picked it up for forty-some~odd bucks, 

I am not sure. We did not need that, because we are a 

government operation, we have lots of money. 

"If we proceed to further cut 

back the suppliers to adjust 'to the current market situation 

the consequence will likely be most serious for the 

majority of the suppliers of pulpwood concerned as well 

as the men that they have working for them. Additionally 

we have been informed by the Deputy Minister of 

Forestry that the sawmill at Hawke's Bar will be forced to 

close down since the contractors are not able to go in 

their and only cut wood for that particular company. 

We would require a contract for approximately 10,000 

cords of wood of which 2,000 would be _saw logs which we 

would keep the mill going for a month or two and the 

remainder would be available to ship to Stephenville. 

The Deputy Minister of Forestry informed us that the wood 

can be delivered to dockside in Hawke's Bay for 

approximately $40.00 per cord. This price is attractive 

to Labrador Linerboard but the wood is not actually 

required at this time.11 It is attractive but the wood is 

not required at this time. 

''If the government permits the 

company to take this course of action and cut back to 

adjust to market conditions, then the situation is 

likely to become most serious and could be further 

compounded if the market situation suddenly takes . an 

upturn after the end of the year. If the suppliers of 

pulpwood are forced out of business,and should the 

government continue to operate the mill, then a serious 

wood problem would result~' I would agree with that. 

1
' I now seek advice from my 



May 10, 1977, Tape 2454, Page 3 -- apb 

HR. MCNEIL: colleagues in deciding whether 

or not the company should proceed with this 40.9 per 

cent reduction in pulpwood delivery or if government 

should direct the company to purchase the extra 46,500 

cords from our suppliers as well as the 8,000 cords 

from Hawke's _Bay to keep the sawmill operation going up 

there. To sum up, $3,360,000 would have to be made 

available by the government to cover this extra purchase." 

Now that is a memorandum by 

John Crosbie to the Executive Council- all right? - to 

Cabinet. 

MR. HICKMAN: That is a confidential 

mem6raridum of Cabinet? 

HR. MCNEIL: It is memorandum marked 

confidential, yes. 

MR. HICKMAN: What is the date of that? 

-
MR. MCNEIL: 1976. 

Now on July 9, 1976, we have 

a letter from Mr. Crosbie going to the management of 

the mill 
·' 
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·1-'R. HCNEIL: 

management and this is what is contained in the letter, 

'~y colleagues and I have reviewed this paper in Cabinet 
. 

as it affects the wood suppliers of Labrador Linerboard 
II 

and we have decided the company should not cut back on any 

pnlpwood·purchase·from them. As you are aware the situation 

respecting pulpwood contractors on the Island is a most serious one 

and if we were to permit the porposed cut backs to materialize 

there is little doubt that grave consequences "tV"ould result which 

may affect several hundred people throughout the Island." But 

we do not mind closing down the ind~stry and affecting several 

thousand people. 

t'According to the information supplied by 

yourself and your officials it would have reen necessary 

to reduce pulpwood purchases by 46,500 cords in order to 

achieve your inventory objectives for March 31, 1977. Cabinet 

recognizes the financial situation this company is in but 

they still wish the company to purchase this additional wood 

as long as it is done under the terms of the contract •11 Now 

what were the terms of the contract? PC supporter? Is that 

one of the terms? "''This does not mean that you have to accept 

any wood from contractors who are not living up to your terms 

of the contract~· That if they did not vote PC in the last 

electiOnS. 11 Any COntraCtOrS ~V'hO are not performing fOr any 

reason should be treated in a normal business way.11 Well. Well. 

fiAdditionally Cabinet reviewed the situation 

as it relates to the Hawkes Bay Mill and in this connection Cabinet 

has decided that if a contractor~·is able to deliver wood to the dock 

in Hawkes Bay for approximately $40 per cord, and if all other terms 

of an agreement to be worked out a~e satisfactory to the company~ 

then we would like the company to purchase 8,000 cords of wood 

from that contractor." 

MR. NEARY: Donations from the -
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MR. MCNEIL: Hallelujah, hallelujah. Now imagine. The management 

is asking to cut back the inventory and our Cabinet - all 

along we were blaming John Crosbie, John·Crosbie this and John 

Crosbie that. John Crosbie in this letter here went back to 

Cabinet and got approval from Cabinet. 

SOME RON. MEMBER: tlnaudible). 

~. SIMMONS: By his usual devious means. 

}~. MCNEIL: The facts are here; your Cabinet made the 

decisions. It was not only John Crosbie, you are all in it 

together. Undertakers. 

}~. SIM!-fONS : Crosbie told them what to do but they did it. 

MR. NEARY: Shower down administration. But the whole 

province 
. 

MR. SIMMONS: "The Deputy Minister of Forestry will be in touch 

with you on this matter but we want you to understand that this 

wood should he purchased only under conditions which are outlined 

in the Cabinet paper and which are acceptable to the company." 

Now how about that? If any problems arise with any of the 

contractors invoved in supplying the 46,500 cords, feel free 

to handle them in the same as you wou~d under normal circumstances. 

11 The same situation also applies to the 

proposed supply of 8 ,OJO cords of ".rood from Hawkes nay. Yours 

sincerely, John C. Crosbie, Hinistel of Intergovernmental Affairs, a 

"carbon copy going to Mr. Howard Ingram, another copy going to 

the hon. W. C. Doody, and another cop·y going to the hon. Ed Maynard. 

A~ RON. MEMBER: (lriaudible)~ 

MR. MC!\~IL: Now, Mr. Speaker, the government must take the blame 

for the. mess that we are into. 

MR. SIMMONS: Hear! Hear! 

HR. MCNEIL: The Stephenville Linerboard mill, the people in the 

area in the last couple of years have been told that they were the 
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MR. MCNEIL: problem of all the ills of Linerboard, that 

management was atrocious, they were ridiculous, that the 

labour force was no go.od, that the people in Bay St. George 

were only a bunch of hicks so we can forget them. That is 

the attitude that that government has taken, Mr. Speaker. 

The facts are, and I have them here, 

NM- 3 
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Mr. McNeil: has interfe~ed into a private enterprise-.or not 

a private enterprise, but in a business. There is nothing the 

matter with the government owning the operation, if they do not 

play politics with it. And, Mr. Speaker, if you look at it in 

that light, if the government only operate it, and they let a 

management team handle it like - what it looks like you have now9 

t~is g_entleman ,Mr •. Sweeney, and the management are there, they 

are putting things together in the last six months, they have done 

things that we were told could never be done, we were told that 

she will never reach her capacity of 1,000 tons a day. And what 

did they do? They did not only reach it, they passed it. 

AN RON. MEMBER: 

MR. MCNEIL: 

Two hundred tons. 

Two hundred tons. 

Mr. Speaker, how do you expect the Newfoundland 

people to trust any government, any government if this is the way 

we are going to treat our people by asking for blood, and when all 

the blood is drained out you are asking for more. It is only so 

far you can go if there is a little bit of leadership to be 

shmro., and we have not seen it. 

Mr. Speaker, again we see a situation where 

we have a group of businessmen, people in the field who are making 

recommendations to our government, and our government refuses to 

listen. It refuses to sit down a~d listen and weigh all the facts. 

And we ask for information time and time again. A few reports were 

tabled in the House. We got a little skimpy one which was done in 

a moment of haste. Because I think the decision to close the 

La~rador Linerboard -as a matter of fact~I believe it firmly, and 

if I can get a little bit more proof I will bring it into the House -

.the decision was made two years ago and all efforts by our 

technocrats and bureaucrats and politicians on the government side 

happen to close it down. They have given up. Why did no·t the 

government table these other reports? Why are they holding back 

information? All we want to know is the truth about the whole 

operation. And if all of the facts were known I am sure that it 

could be shown that it can be a viable operation. The preliminary 

-~----- -- - -- -· 



May 10, 1977 Tape 2456 (Morning) PK - 2 

Mr. McNeil: report on Capital Requirement Committee,April 18, 

1977, why was not that put forward? Why was it not. tabled? 

MR. S. NEARY: Shame! Shame on the government. 

MR. MCNEIL: ~~y was not the report on the progress report 

and the Alternate Lines Products Co~mittee -
. ··- - -

MR. NEARY: Resign. 

MR. M(:NEIL: -why was ~ot that report? Because there was hope 

in these reports, hope. It gives a little bit of ~nsigh.t·. into 

the industry. 

MR. ROUSSEAU: I got the report out in Stephenville. 

MR. NEARY: That is right. 

MR. MCNEIL: Now it is terrible when you as the minister 
' . 

have to go to Stephenville to get a report. 

MR. ROUSSEAU: I did not know anything about it. An official of the 

department was in Stephenville. I phoned him to find out if he had the 

report. and that is where T Pnt it. 

MR. HICKMAN: A confidential report. 

MR. ROUSSEAU: The confidential report of the Advisory Board. 

MR. MCNEIL~ kight. Why did the Chairman offue Board hold it 

back? Maybe his officials are not giving him the information. Maybe 

it is not his fault,and if that is the case -

MR. ROUSSEAU: The third page of that -

MR. MCNEIL: - action should be taken to get rid of so many 

people. 

MR. ROUSSEAU: The third page of that Capital Requirements ... ;,:, 

Rl!port says, 11 Confidential to the Advisory Board~· ~~o~ · . know, not 

the government, that is the Advisory Board's report. That is 

why we did not get it,I presume, the one on capital requirements. 

MR. MCNEIL: That is, Mr. -

MR. ROUSSEAU: You know , that is 

MR. MCNEIL: Mr. Speaker, all of the reports of the Advisory 

Board, all those little ones are available to the government. You 

cannot tell me that the government is not, you know, going to be held 
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Mr. McNeil: 

back fr01Jl confidential information, when I an Opposition member can 

get them. 

AN liON. MEMBER: Are they concealing information? 

MR . MCNEIL : r. ·oncealing information l Mr. Speaker, if 

lve could get the i:nformation, Labrador Linerboard would probably 

be expanding the industry,not closing it down~ 

AN RON . MEMBER : Hear , hear! 

NR. S~!ALLWOOD: That was the plan. 

MR. MCNEIL: But, Mr . Speaker, they will not foll ow the 

original plan because they have so much hatred for an bon . ge~tleman 

who has -
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MR. McNEIL: Served Newfoundland well in many respects. 

SOt1E BON. 't-ffiMBERS : Hear, hear! 

MR. McNEIL: Now granted,! cannot say that he has been an 

angel in everything 

PRE't-UER MOORES: Pretty close, pretty close. 

MR. McNEIL: -but -in the last year or two sitting behind him there 

is something growing behind his shoulders so it might be wings. 

Mr. Speaker, I can remember~! think it l\fas in 1973~when we had 

the hon. gentleman from Twillingate out to Stephenville for the 

Citizen of the Year banquet,. It was the first one that we ever 

held in Stephenville. I was a member of~h~_ Jaycees then and we were iust 

getting the organization going for the first time ever • Now 

before the base closed the Jaycees.,which_are a yo1:1ng men's 

organization,had a very active group .Again an organization of 

that sort reflects the youth in the community~and we started 

seeing it build up into the unit, so we started the Citizen of 

the Year banquet once again , right nm" it is one of the events 

in Stephenville for the year,and we had the hon. gentleman out 

as our guest speaker. 

MR. NEARY: 

HR. McNEIL: 

little later. 

:MR. NEARY: 

MR. HcNEI: 

Did you mak~ qim Citizen of the YP~~? 

No,not at that one .Wewill hold that one a 

That is coming up. 

But, Mr. Speaker, we met him at the airport and we 

took the hon.gentleman from Twillingate,and Mr. Greg Pow~r- we 

took them out around and he wanted to go around the Linerboard· 

so as we went up around the Linerboard mill - we were going around 

it and -Greg--Power was sitting in the back seat and he was looking 

around it and he saw this paper scattered all over the place and 

he -said "Hr. Smallwood, there is nothing but mi~management here:' 

And that is true at that time,there was a lot of mismanagement. 

SO't-ffi RON. MEMBERS: 'Hear, hear! 

MR. McNeil: So we go inside and we talk to some of the officials 
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MR. McNEIL: and whatnot, and we wer~ treated very hospitably. 

Well, Mr. Speaker, Mr. Smallwood came back and he said "Now,Mr. 

Power5 do not be so critical.Give them time.They have problems 

now but they are going to make it;give them time and they will 

make it;' and I always think back to that: Row much time have we 

given our Labrador L_inerboard operation - four years from 

start-up- start-up in- no,not four years, official start up 

was in 1974~wa~ it? 

MR. DOODY: April 1,1974. 

MR. SIHMONS: Scarcely three years - just three years. 

MR .licNE IL : Three years. Now if you run a small business they 

tell youJ the finance people tell you it takes anywhere from 

three to five years,and after your fifth year if you cannot make it 

well then you should re-evaluate the whole situation.But after 

three years into production, into a tough industry that ~you 

are trying to break,our government is sitting back and saying, 

"Well we have to close her up . It is cos~ing us too much money 

and we cannot balance our budget, we got to close her up." 

But they did not go out and tell the Newfoundland people that 

it is going to cost them more to close than to keep the operation 

going. Now do not even consider the financial part of it .Take, 

for example,and if you could put in dollars and cents, if you 

could put it-and you should not; the human tragedies that you 

are starting to see nm" in Stephenville, when you get a call from 

one of your constituents-and if hon.members have been into a 
- - --

situation where things have closed and the magnitude that the 

Linerboard is and how it reflects back to Stephenville, can understand 

the situation. 

MIL SM.ALLVJOOD : Ask the bon member for Naskaup-i (Hr. Goudie) if 

he has had that kind of experience also. 

MR. McNEIL: Yes, the hon. member for Naskaupi (Mr. Goudie) should 

understand the torture,the frustration, the puman anguish that you 

yourself go thr~)Ugh~ not only the other people ~Aiid when a constituent 
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Hr. McNEIL: 

calls you up and asl-,.s you to come down to their home ·and they treat 

you very nice .And the lady meets you at the door and brings you>!n 

and the gentle~n is inside and he is on the verge·of a nervous 

breakdown~and he tells ·you the ~~ole story and he lays it out to 

you. "V.Ttlat am I going to do?I am mortgaged up t _o _the_ hilt_. __ I 

got_ no jo1:> .• I have. been trying for the past year to find a job. 

I have been laid off in the woods industry .I was logging. I was 

laid off,my UIC has run out, I went to the Social Service Department 

to get help and they told me to come back next month when they 
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MR. McNEIL: make __ an appointment. _ 'fhey have _no time for me;. 

I have no food for my children." And when the gentleman gets on to 

the story, he breaks out and he is crying. 

Now, Mr. Speaker, these are things that you can 

not put into dollars and cents. When you tear people apart you tear 

families apart. Your family is the foundation of our society. And 

our families are being torn apart by a government that does not care 

-
about people- a do-nothing government. They were told by-the business 

people of the problems with the inventory I just went through. They 

were told. And now it was said, 'Well, cut back a few hundred people.' 

Now they are faced with thousands of people and they are going to close 

up an industry that contributes heavily to the Newfoundland economy. 

SOME RON. MEMBERS: Oh, oh: 

MR. McNEIL: Mr. Speaker, it is a very, very serious situation 

and very few people realize the seriousness of it. Because -

MR. ROUSSEAU: You mean the Social Services Department said to 

somebody, 'Go away- come back in a month. We have no time for you'? 

MR. McNEIL: The work load is so heavy, they have so many people 

going to their offices that they have everything booked on a schedule, 

twenty minute blocke,I would say, eh? 

MR. NEARY: You have to make an appointment, yes. 

MR. McNEIL: The whole on appointment. Their booKs are filled. And 

it is only the goodness of some of the workers that go back after hours and 

in-between -trying to ' flt -some of these people in. 
- ··-- . --- - - - - - - -- - .. 

--
It is unbelievable, 

Mr. Speaker. And then when you go down to Canada Manpower Centre and you 

have 4,700 people unemployed, looking for work! 

MR. NEARY: The second heaviest scapegoat in the Province, 

MR. McNEIL: And then we have our government saying to the people, 

'~e do not hold any false hope for you, but we are going to close it up, 

and it may be some private enterprise is going to take it over." No private 
. . 

enterprise is going to take it over that we, the government~who do not have 

to worry about a profit, only worry about breaking even~ and they can not 

run it - what hope do we have for a private enterprise taking it? And if 

a private enterprise is going to take it, well thenthey know that they can 

make money off it. Well, why should they get involved? And they are not 
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MR. McNEIL: going to get involved if they can not make a fortune. 

But our government is going to throw it away. I would say they are 

probably going to give it away to maybe some big outfit for a dollar. 

MR. NEARY: Consolidated Bathurst, the Pow.er Corporation 

of Canada. 

MR. McNEIL: But why can we not get a management team? It has 

been offered. I think in the original proposal, MacMillan and Bloedel 

were going to be a management team to take it over. And the government 

could be owners and they would not interfere in any decisions made at the 

mill. The government would be concerned with, first of all, having the 

operations continue to operate. It should be concerned with that because 

of the amount of people affected and because it contributes so much to our 

economy. And they should be concerned with the plant itself making profits 

so that it pays back to service the debt. And any other factor beside that 

should be immaterial. They should want it to operate and they should want 

it to make money so that it will service the debt. And should they be 

concerned with making it all back in five years or three years - it has only 

operated three years.- should they be concerned ;.ith tha~J_ _!fuat about that? 

Or maybe you are only interested about your term in office - a few years. 

- - ---
If you are looking down the road and if . you __ are concerned with the direction 

this Province is going, if you are concerned about the future, you will not 

be only looking at today, you will be looking at tomorrow and twenty, thirty 

years down the line. You will be looking at your children's children. 

We have the fisheries situation. The fisheries is in 

the same situation as Labrador Linerboard. It is a sim~ar type thing. 

The only thing we have - wait now, we are supposed to have a little bit more. 

But what happens if the stocks start depleting? And we are building up nvw 
., 

heavy capital expenditure , building boats, and getting into it, and g~tting 

into the fisheries in a big way. Same problem with Labrador Linerboard. 

The capital expenditure put into that,_-plant there, they say, was too high. 

It was over capitalized, and as the task force in 1973 pointed out; 

over capitalized, and that your fixed: cost is too high for operating. What 

happens if the fisheries ends up the same way? And it wil~, because we 

have not had a success story in Newfoundland since the P.C. government came 

inl 
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SOME HON .MEHBERS: Oh, oh! 

MR. MCNEIL: Mr. Speaker, we have a ·situation at Stephenville 

where we have one of the finest mills in the world .-

MR. SMALLHOOD: . And one of the biggest. 

MR. MCNEIL: And one of the biggest. And we have people -

MR. SMALLWOOD: Probably the most modern. 

MR. MCNEIL: ' - from industries from all over~in Canada and from 

other countries have come in,and I have talked with them, and they came 

in and they laugh, they laugh, they cannot understand why we 

Nev1foundlanders cannot make that operation go. And then on the 

other hand you-have our Premier stating that we are worried about 

investing money, we are worried ··about pe~_Ple coming into the 

Province,and that we are trying to attract outside investment money, 

we need private enterprise, we need outside money. No investor 

in his right mind is going to invest in Newfouhdland! Look at 

our success story; Labrador Linerboard.,an operation where the people in 

the indus try say one of the finest mills ever, and we are trying to 

close it up~ There is so much effoEt gone into trying to close it 

up that if we ever saw the other side of the coin where they took 

that same effort and try to make a success it would probably be a 

booming success today. 

MR. SMALUJOOD: That is right. 

MR. MCNEIL: There is so much negativfSm right fFom day one 

and it has not stopped. And now the last six months, the last six 

months we have a gentleman who came in who has vast experience into 

the industry itself, thirty-five years of his life into the industry, 

and has ' turned around other industries, having ·been involved in 

turning them around, who has put his fingers on the right things, 

maybe the things were all just ready_ for him to go, and turned things 

around and got a positive atmosphere in the whole plant, the management, 

the \-Jorkers ,_ and some of them were classified as no.t being very good, 

some of them, they said, should be fired and thrown out. But he 
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Mr. McNeil: 

took these people, who vrere suppose to be rejects and no good, 

and he turned it around, he put a littl~ bit of light, You know 

what he did, he put some confidence in them, He, ,said, ''I tell you, 

work on, we will solve this problem together; wor~ on~we will 

solve this problem-together. Do not worry about your job. If 

y~u work and you produce do not worry because we will make it, 

and we have one goal, and that is make this operation viable. And 

if we can do it, and if we can turn it around we will show our 

government that they have made a wrong decision:1 

But what happened? Our government turned their 

back on them. Turned their back on the people of this Province. 

Told the man who has thirty-five years in the business that he got 

a little carried away. My dear God:Wben I heard that I almost 

passed out with the fright. Got carried away~ 

MR. SIMMONS : Look who said it, a fellow who himself ran this 

into the ground. 

MR. MCNEIL: It is very sad when that came from our Premier. 

Our 1 Premier said, A man- and you would have to live in the 

community; now I do not expect you gentlemen on the other side of 

the House to really understand, you would have to live in the 

community and just fee_;!., f~~7_1 the positive vibes coming in from 

the people. People are saying "By God.,I think ~e are going to do 

it. We got to hang · in there. She is going to be tough. And we 

are willing to make sacrifice!1 People from the union.- And 

they are _haid_· to deal with, the union. They have a one-track mind; 

all they are interested is making sure they got a job, and that they 

are making money. And that is the way it should be -with them~·· 

because they are formed for that reason, to protect their people. 

And they come back to the people, and some of them have come to me, 

some workers, and they say, We are willing to suggest to our 

executive, we are willing to say that i f- it means tha t -we got to take - - ---... 
a cut in salary, we are willing to sit down and see where we are going 
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·--
Mr. McNeil: 

because we believe, we believe that the operation can go. But 

th~y do not want to be used, . they do not want to be used. And, 

Mr. Speaker, in the last several years they have been used. 

And every person in the Bay St. George has been used by our 

government in a negative way. 

AN HON. MEMBER: Ri~h~·--

MR., MCNEIL: 

people in the Bay St. George area or elsewhere in the Province. 

Yes, by all mean you have that right. 

MR. 'W . ROUSE: Would the bon. member permit a question, please! 

1-ffi . MCNEIL: Yes. 

MR. HOUSE: A couple of years ago the unions were on 

strike, the three joint unions, Bowaters for a common salary 

~ 

and common working conditions. The Bowater people went back 

agreed to accept a contract, so did Price, But the Stephenville 

workers stayed out for a considerable number of days after, would 

not accept because they wanted better benefits apparently than the 

other two mills. How can you reconcile that? 

SOME HON • MEMBERS : Oh, oh! 
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MR. MCNEIL: Mr. Speaker, that is not true. lVhat the 

union in Stephenville do they will say, We will settle for 

whatever settlement that Bowaters and Price settle for. They 

set the trend and we will follow in line. 

A..~ RON • MEMBER: They stayed out. 

MR. MCNEIL: No, no. They stayed out until they sat down. 

You know· what the ~roblern is - man~ement and the workers 

would not sit down at the bargaining table. They could not 

get management there. Management would come in and they would 

not negotiate. 

MR. SMALLWOOD: 

MR.. . SIMMONS : 

MR. MCNEIL: 

Sounds like John Crosbie. 

Old bullyboy ~ again. 

The union was willing to negotiate. Anyway, the 

point is that once they got confirmation from our government that 

they would receive whatever was set in the industry by Bowaters 

and Price they would fall in line and they went back to work. 

So that is it. 

HR. SIMMONS: 

MR. HODDEif: 

permission. 

MR. MCNEIL: 

MR. HODDER: 

Make no wonder they make 

I wonder if I could comment,with the member 1 s 

Go ahead. 

My understanding at that particular time was that the 

markets were soft and there was a great deal of trouble trying 

to negotiate with management. Of course management was controlled 

by the provincial government . and by· Mi. Crosbie-, a great deal ·of 

difficulty because-they would not sit down with them. They would 

not sit down with them for a white- because the markets were 

soft -~a management were just hanging in, just holding on, because 

it was to their advantage to keep the mill down at that particular 

time. 

MR. MCNEIL: Mr. Speaker, if I may go back o~to _ the market 

situation. When Mr. Moores came out and he set up the Advisory 

Board at Stephenville he gave a little bit of background information 
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MR. 'HCNEIL: on the marketing. And he states, "We originally 

appointed International Forest Products as a market organization 

because they were medium size with good.personnel and reputation, 

and more importantly did not have any production of their own and 

therefore had no conflict of interest in selling Labrador Linerboard 

products." 

This is all well and good in theory. However, the 

obviqus weakness - now the Premier realizes this himself - was that 

the sort of organization did not have a secure and traditional market 

source. All right. So he has admitted · the marketing group that was 

set up was a disaster. 

"It was felt that given a good or even fair mar~et, 

secure and traditional markets could be established over a period of 

tL~e. However, the market very rapidly -. not only turned down but reached 

disastrous proportions with record inventories around the world and 

with prices at low levels. However, to traditional, secure mill 

customers this meant the Labrador Linerboard products eould not be 

sold at any price!' 

~x. Speaker, the Premier himself mentions that the 

marketing group was a disaster - the original one - and now since 

March 31 they clued up, we had a new group in session under the~ 

I think, the new marketing management, Mr. Paul Bannerman. They 

have brought in orders in a tight market situation at pretty good costs, 

pretty good price rates, have got markets for the first time ever 

in Canada~ have got a substantial order in Canada. A point to 

remember, too, Mr. Speaker, is that we have a CIP box plant here 'in 

St. John's, and they do not buy any linerboard products from our 

Stephenville mill. Hr. Speaker, it is unbelievable. Maybe we 

could be serving our Canadian customers. 

MR. SMALLWOOD: 

MR. 'MCNETI.: 

That cannot be 

Why? 
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MR. SMALLWOOD: If the hon. ge~t~eman will allov1 Dte? I believe that 

the CIP plant in James Lane buys its - all they do is make box.es and 

they will print your name on. The whole frozen fish industry of 

Ne"~oundland gets its cartons from that plant, and the name of the 

company is printed on. But they make the boxes out of the complete 

product which is fluted, or corrugated, material with linerboard paper 

on front and back. They buy that complete. They cannot buy just part 

of it - the linerboard paper - t hey buy the full product already 

manufactured, and what they do with it . is to put it through a machine 

and turn it into boxes, cardboard 
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/ 
MR. SMALLWOOD: boxes or cartons. I think 

that is the case. 

MR. MCNEIL: I am not sure really, because -

MR. SMALLWOOD: I think so. 

MR. MCNEIL: - I was told that the new 

sale group had sent over a sample of their linerboard, 

sent it over the the C.I.P. plant, and they would not 

even consider it. 

1>1R. SMALLWOOD: If the han. gentleman will 

allow me again, it may be - I was in the plant when it 

first started. Mr. Hutton started it. - it may be that 

that plant buys the fluted material, the corrugated 

paper and the linerboard paper, and put it all together, 

it may be; in that case they could buy their linerboard 

paper from Stephenville. But if they buy the whole 

thing already fabricated so the only thing they do is 

to turn it into cartons then, o~ _ course, _ they cannot be 

a customer for the mill in Stephenville. 

MR. MCNEIL: Anyway, maybe we should· find 

out exactly what the C.I.P. plant does. 

.r-m. SHALLWOOD: Yes, that would be worth 

finding out. 

MR. MCNEIL: But the point is that if 

there were enough effort taken maybe we could get a 

large portion of the Canadian market, not alone the 
- . 

European market. Now with these announced closures -

we had one and the hon. the member for Port au Port 

(Mr. Hodder) brought it to light before the announcement 

hit us here on the Island that Labrador Linerboard was 

closing down . - and tcyirig to break -a market that is 

tight, and when they look at our mill and see our wood 

costs are high, and see how it is run, ~nd the rumours 

flying around, sur.ely to God they cannot have any 

confidence. And if they are worried about the future 

and all the market forecasts are pointing to a future 
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MR. MCNEIL: in the marketplace that is 

going to be very tight, the demand is going to be 

great for linerboard, the experts even go as far as 

to say that it will probably have an effect of slowing 

down the economy because you will not be able to get 

paper products or linerboard. It will slow down the 

economy! Now can you imagine it? Here we are with 

ali these experts and of all the material I have 

read I see very few taking a downward trend. All the 

graphs and everything else are all pointing up. The 

reports of tbe committees all point this out, and 

our government are going to turn around and phase out 

an industry when it is on the verge, when conditions 

are there for it to meet success, if we could just 

hang in there"~or may another year ot three. If we use the i 

recommendations that are in the report,with capital 

improvements, in a three year period it will not only 

decrease our fixed costs -, and if we can get our 

production capacity, which has been proven, if we can 

get that up big it has to show on our balance sheets 

as being favourable in keeping the operation moving. 

MR. SMALLWOOD: It would put $5 million a 

month in circulation in wages,including the multiplier. 

MR. MCNEIL: Hr. Speaker, there are a 

lot of points about the industry itself that are not 

being ·brought out. For example, how does the closure 

affect the revenue needed by Newfoundland liydro? The 

cost that we pay for electricity is great. I am told 

that we pay up as high as four times greater than any 

other mill in Eastern Canada, one of our own mills, 

no concessions. Labrador Linerboard gets no concessions. 

Actually, on our financial statements, -when we are 

paying it all yet, maybe it is only figures transferring 

back and forth on the paper, maybe they are only 

shuffling, paper shuffles, not actually true losses. 
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t-1R. MCNEIL: I pointed out in our operating 

loss, and if you look at it and you take in the figures 

in three years time we will be gaining on an operating 

basis, we will not be losing on an operating cost. 
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MR. McNEIL: you consider that the fuel purchased for power .. - - - - -· -

that it cost us in 1977, $2,439,328 in electricity 0 now what happens 

to that almost $2.5 million if 'toJe close the mill~ Is the government 

still responsible of paying that amount of .money to Newfoundland 

Hydro~ Is this cost going to be wiped out? ?.ur. fuel~ another thing 

which adds to the high cost per ton, · if we done the requirements 

an~ pu~ in a bark-press system., ~ proper one that will take our 

wood and supplement our fuel, I am told that 'to7e 'tvould save about 

eighty per cent in our fuel as we are paying out now,and here 

again we are paying over S2.5 million in fuel, in Bunker C. 

Mr. Speaker, the more information I get on Labrador Linerboard, 

the more I get,the more and more I am convinced that our government 

are going backwards, they are moving in the wrong direction. You 

have already gone through the roughest periods~last year and the 

year before· , you have gone through them. And now when we have the 

road set, the ground set for a little bit of success no't..r you are 

going to turn your .backs and 't..ral'R away. \-.That has happened! Have _vou 

lost your guts ,haveyou lost your vision? You came into power 

Hith great vision and you have not come across yet. 

AN BON '!:-fE~iBE~ : (Inaudible) 

1--!R. McNEIL : \~1ell so they did. They sold the people of Newfoundland, 

they sold the people of Newfoundland their great ideas but they have 

not produced, they have not produced. They have mislead the people 

of Newfoundland. 

Mr. Speaker, this was in one of the reports and it is .related to 

the market itself~" Lack of US investment and higher wood costs will 

create economic factors 't..rhich will make existing linerboard producers 

lucrative," tmd here 'toJe are closing up an industry! Now if we .close 

the industry and we got - granted we are going to loose maybe next 

year and maybe the year after, there is the three year period where 

we can swing up and probably get into a situation where it is paying 

for itself and make a little bit of profit, if we close it now and 

we loose our work force 'our management people,do you think that 

they are ever going to come back to Newfoundland again and get involved 
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MR. Mc~EIL: into a mill that they question and had been doomed 

to failure from day one? Do you think they are going to get 

involved~ Do you think they will trust the Newfoundland climate? 

They will shrug their shoulders and they will say!' No .I do not 

want to add another chapter to the Ne~.;rfie joke book. I want to 

stay away from the Hewfies, I want to laugh at them but I do not 

want to work with them and live with them'~ That is \\rhat they will 

saY. Cari-you imagirie these gnys down -the financial people on 

Wall Street or elsewhere in some other country; "~.Jhere are you from ?" 

"Newfoundland!' "Oh yes, that was the place where they c.losed UP 

Come By Chance, they closed up the Labrador Linerboard or they 

had that big great power scheme on the go and they blew the 

1ynamite and that is all they had was a heap big smoke" 

AN RON. MEMBER: That is the crm-1d. That is the. 

crowd. 

MR. ROBERTS: Blew it, period. 

MR. !-kNElL: Hr. Speaker, you will never, never get anybody with 

any stature to come into Ne~>lfoundland and invest their money . It 

has to be done in Bay St.George now.Labrador Linerboard has to be 

turned around and if the Moore's PC government is going to make 

a mark it has to be done in Bay St.George-

SOME RON. MEMBERS: Hear, hear! 

}1R . Mc~EIL: - for the sake of democ.rac.y if nothing else. 

MR. S~UlOOD: And it can be .done. 

MR. McNEIL: And it can be done . The facts are there =-

MR. ROBERTS: . The Advisory Board -

}ffi McNEIL: The Advisory Board,people in the field, the experts 

you have a man who has put thirty-five years into the industry but 

his neck is still on the line and he said he did not want to get 

involved. You know ~vhat he told me personally~ he said~' If I knew it 

was going to be this political I would have never came to Newfoundland, 

I do not want to get mixed up in the politic.~, that is their game and 

I do not want it" 

~ffi. ROBERTS: The government never made any effort to keep it open. 

They are trying to use Mr. Sweeney. 

HR. }kNElL: In six months he has turned things around-.- Hfswhole team. 
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MR. McNEIL: 

a team. 

MR. SMALLWOOD: 

MR. McNEIL: 

Tape No :_,2~~3- EC - .1_ 

he has put forward a team, and that is what it is, 

1,200 tons a day proves it. 

Proof in itself. 

Mr. Speaker, if you are looking at financial 

statements and even have a small business, what you do one year really 

does not reflect that year. Any improvements they make or cutbacks 

really do not reflect all that much. But when you look at your 

financial statement the following year, you will see your past year -

what work you have done. And if you are running a big business how 

much more does that show up. So in a six month period since the 

Advisory Board and the new management group have sat in there, they 

have done things~ and the saddest part about it~ if the government 

continues on the course they are going now~to close up the industry, 

within six months to a year they will come back and say, "We have made 

a mistake." And the people of Stephenville have seen mistakes time and 

time again. For example, right next to the Labrador Linerboard plant 

there is a little fish plant. It was one of the most modern plants 

set up. We have fish producers coming back who have been in the plant 

before, and they were saying it was a mistake to close up that plant 

because there was no herring and the fish were gone. Now just last 

week - or was it the week before? - I was home, and you go down to the 

wharf and they are trucking herring in ~ruckloads, taking it away from 

the wharf and taking it to some other plant elsewhere. But that plant 

now is sitting right there. It was not a viable operat~on because there 

was no product. It was a modern plant~and what did they do? They 

auctioned the whale thing off, sold it for scrap value. 

MR. SMALLWOOD: Is that the one built right near,the paper ~ill? 

MR. McNEIL: Right near - that one. 

MR. SMALLWOOD: That is the one I put there. 

MR. McNEIL: Yes. Well, that is just the problem, see. You 

put it there and they want to take it away. 

AN RON. MEMBER: So what! 

MR. McNEIL: It has shut down a long time ago? Not all that 
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·--MR. McNEIL: long. It is only a few years ago. 

It produced a good product. The problem is 

there. And one of the people in the companies that were involved in 

an indirect way have come in and have said to me personally, that -

you know - it has been a mistake. It was bad management. We realize 

now that it was bad management. It was not management. It was not 

managed. It was let go loose. And now we are seeing the same thing 

with Linerboard. The only difference is now - and thank God, maybe 

our prayers have been answered in a small way so far. You have the 

fact that we have a man who has experience in the field, and he put 

the team together. And there is a possibility that he could change 

it - turn it around. And he has proven by his efforts in the last 

six months that the thing can be turned around. 

AN HON. MEMBER: Right. 

MR. SMALLWOOD: Because it is the first time you have had a man 

running it who knew what he was doing._-

MR. McNEIL: Exactly. 

MR. SMALLWOOD: ~ the first time. 

MR. McNEIL: Exactly. And the fact that he lets his feelings 

be known even though the government are going to probably fire him 

when they have their next meeting . because he is trying to disturb the 

community -

MR. NEARY: They will be trying to muzzle him. 

MR. SMALLWOOD: No, they will not. 

MR. McNEIL: They will try to muzzle him. 

MR. SMALLWOOD: No, they will not try it. 

AN HON. MEMBER: (Inaudible) 

MR. S~LWOOD: No. 

MR. McNEIL: Well, they will threaten him some way or other 

MR. SIMMONS: They have done that already. 

MR. McNEIL: -because he is a positive man and follows his beliefs. 

Maybe this is the problem we have in Newfoundland, ,we have too many 

people who are not tough enough in the business sense. But we have our 

politicians who seem to have all the answers in the paper industry~ in 
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MR. McNEIL: this particular industry. They have a lot of 

information. They do not understand - and I agree, I do not understand 

either - totally how the whole industry works. But when you have a man 

in the field who has been thirty-five years in an industry who has 

turned around other mills that were in a bad situation, who is gifted, 

who spent most of-his main areas in the marketing, manufacturing, and 

put out a good product. They have done experiments, they are doing 

experiments now. They did a real low grade paper. They ran a couple 

of tests and they probably will try to get in on making paperbacks. 

They have done it. And actually people in the plant were amazed that 

they could get down to that fine of a grade. They have done experiments 

of that nature and have met with a measure of success - not a total 

success because we could not get it on the market. There were a few 

little problems. But if they keep going~ that rate- that was only 

a six month period. If they keep going at that rate - my God, what 

can they do? Imagine if they were at it three years. She would not 

be closing down, she would be building up! 
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Mr. McNeil: Mr. Speaker, it is sad to come from an area, 

even \\There you went to school, \vent to University and got out 

into .the teaching profession and then pr_obably into a small ousiness, auci 

then into politics- not that I wanted to get into politics 

because they had to do a little bit of arm twisting. But 

I had a firm belief in Stephenville and I tell you, Mr. Speaker, 

tbat if _ Stephenville~or Bay St. George area,does not turn around, 

if the economic trend does not change in a positive way . that 

trend is going to spread right across the Island. That tr~nd is mavin~; 

it has to be stopped in Bay St. George in order to get this Province 

back on keel again. And it is not going to be done in a year or 

two years or five years from now with the fisheries. That is one 

area in itself;and that has many problems within itself. And 

we have a plant that is there, it is one of the world's best, it 

can produce, it has a good work force, it has a management team that 

can pull together -

MR. SMALLWOOD: For the first time. 

MR. :t-1CNE IL : for the first time ever, and it has been done in 

a six month period. 

HR. ROBERTS: All 'tve need is a government with some guts and 

some vision. 

SOME HON. MEMBERS: Hear, hear! 

MR. MCNEIL: All we need is a government who would have a little 

bit of encouragement-

MR. NEARY: Therein - lies the problem. 

MR. MCNEIL: - and i?.ay, 110kay; you presented it to us. We now see 
. - . .. . 

that we made a mistake. V.le will not interfere i.n your business 

management decisions like ~as been proven already in their wood 

inventory. That in itself when you look at your financial statements 

-- . 'tdll shmv that that crippled us~· I went to an accountant, a 

chartered accountant,I pass him the financial statements, and 'I 

said ''Read these statements to me and put them in the most favourable 

light,forgetting your debt servicing, forgetting everything, just 

" worry about your operating expenses. And I asked," What are we 
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}fR. HCNEIL: 

losing in our operating expenses?" He went through the whole 

thing, brought back the whole set of figures, the ,,,hole bit, 

and he went through them. But anyway the thing that stood with 

me was that we only lost about little over half million dollars 

in the year 1976 in operating expenses only. If you are just 

taking your operating itself. 

HR. ROBERTS: Forget the -

MR. MCNEIL: Forget all of the other debts. 

MR. ROBERTS: Which' you are hooked for any way. 

MR. MCNEIL: Yes, we are still hooked for it, yes. 

Now granted~he put the financial statement in the best 

light possible_ okay? __ ·and he came out Hi th this remark. 

HR. ROBERTS: The government is putting it in tne worst light 

possible. 

MR. MCNETh: So he showed one side of the coin~and our government 

in their progressive way have shm,,ed the other side of the coin, and 

they shm,red the ~..rorst. They did not leave any hope. And a government 

that does not leave any hope for its people is a sad government. 

MR. ROBERTS: It should not be a government motion_. 

MR. SIMMONS:: 
- - -- - ---

Hove the adjournment . tnot~ • 

MR. SMALLWOOD: You have -

MR. MCNEIL: Hr. Speaker, I would like to move the adjournment. 

MR. S:MALLWOOD: - before you move it,you have -

AN HON. MEMBER: Could I have the-question on it? 

MR. SHALLWOOD: made the best speech -

MR. ROBERTS: Let us have it then. Let us have it.now. 

Let us have it now. 

HR. SMALLWOOD: The best speech that has been made in this 

House this session, right there. 

SOME HON. MEMBER: Hear, hear! 
. 

MR. SIMMONS: Move thE adjournment, •. 

MR. HCNEIL: Hr. Speaker, I would like. to move the adjournment. 
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MR. SPEAKER: The hon. gentleman has moved the adjournment 

of the debate. Is it agreed that we call it one o'clock? 

SOME HON. ME}ffiERS: Agreed. 

HR. SPEAKER: It being 1:00 P.M. I will leave the Chair 

until 3:00 P.M. 
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The House resumed at 3:00 P.M. 

Mr. Speaker in the Chair. 

Tape 2465 LB - 1 

MR. SPEAKER: Order, please: Before resuming the debate which was 

interrupted at 1:00 P.M., I would like to draw to the attention of 

hon. members the presence in the gallery of Mr. Bill Jarvis, member 

of Parliament for Perth-Wilmot and I know all hon. members join me 

in welcoming this fellow parliamentarian to the House of Assembly. 

MR. SPEAKER: Hon. member for Stephenville. 

MR. MCNEIL: Mr. Speaker, if I may continue where I left off this 

morning, I was dealing with the Labrador Linerboard and the high cost of 

operation. The fact that our government, it was pointed out to them 

several times before that the high· cost of operation could be 

reduced if efforts were taken to do so. If I may add to the information 

where the government has interfered in a business, and has actually 

caused a crippling of that business. In December 5, 1973, a memorandum 

went to the minister and Chairman of the Board, Mr. Crosbie, and it 

dealt wi~h the subject of a cost reduction programme for Labrador 

Linerboard, bearing in mind that the market was in a slump and that 

we had to curtail our operation, cut back our inventories, and 

try to cut our expenses to stay in line with the selling of our 

product. 

One of the items mentioned the following points or 

areas where substantial savings can be realized at Labrador Linerboard 

Limited. Point one, place a freeze on all purchasing and make do with 

what we already have in stock unless the items required are for 

emergency purposes. Then as I have pointed out in one of the 

memorandums this morning, our inventory itself in our stores -

and I will quote you this and again I must stress this was a 

memorandum that went to Mr. Crosbie, the Chairman of the Board of 

Directors, the chief man responsible dealing with Labrador Linerboard -

MR. NEARY: A skinful of hate. He is up in Ottawa now. 
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MR. MCNEIL: - a man who said from day one that Labrador Line~board 

could not ma~e any money. So what was he doing? He was making sure 

that this predi~tion would come true. I must also point out that 

he did not do :i,t alone. He made sure that he had consent of the 

Cabi~et, so there was an ·a,g.reement on this. So the Moores P.C. 

Government must take the ,full blame for putting Labrador Linerboard 

under. 

MR. NEARY: Cabinet solidarity. 

MR. MCNEIL: Our mills stores inventory amounts to $6,547,000. 

Our Island stores are $1,277,000. The Goose Bay Stores are $1,618,000. 

Persons I have spoken to would include employees o£ Labrador 

Linerboard who came from other companies tell ~e that mill 

stores inventory sho.uld be about $1.5 million to $2.5 million stores 

inventory. 

MR. MUR.Pml: That does not include wood, I guess. 
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MR. McNEIL: 

Just the stores inventory now. 

-
AN HON. MEMBER: ·Who is this from on supp~~ers? 

MR. MCNEIL: This is from one of the higher officials, 

an executive a~sistant, I guess, to Mr •. Crosbie. 

MR. NEARY: They must have enough stores to fill another mill• 

MR. MCNEIL: Well. 

SOME HON. :tYIDIBER: Partly . 

MR. MCNEIL: They were maybe looking to the future .,I guess 

taking over all of the mills. 

SOME HON. MEMBERS: Oh, oh! 

MR. ~fCNEIL: Our inventory appears to be way out of whack. 

MR. HICKMAN: Would the han. gentleman permit a question? 

HR. MCNEIL: Yes, by all means. 

MR. HICKMAN: You know, simply for the record~because the 

document that he is now reading from , am I to understand that is 

a memorandum from Mr. Crosbie's Executive Assistant to Mr. Crosbie? 

Is that what the hon. gentleman is reading? 

MR. MCNEIL: It is a memorandum to the minister from one of his 

executive assistants. 

MR. HICKMAN: Yes. Will the han. gentleman table the document1 

You know, it is news to me. I have not seen it. 

MR. MCNEIL: Well the date on it is December 5, 1975, and I 

am sure - the subject is cost reduction programme for Labrador 

Linerboard. 

MR. HI CKMA.i.'l' : Well,it has to be tabled. 

MR. MCNEIL: The hon. Minister of Finance would have that report_ 

in his files. 

AN HON • ME~fBER: Table it. 

MR. HICKMAN: Well it has to be tabled anyway if it has been 

read from. 

MR. MCNEIL: All right. No problem. 

I 
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MR. NEARY: Why do you not buy us an Xerox machine, boy, so 

we can keep you informed of what is going on! 

MR. MCNEIL: "My poor Xerox machine in Stephenville and the one 

downstairs I have got it ~om out, the stuff that I am scabbing out 

of this building and elsewhere. 

SOME HON MEMBERS: Oh. oh! 

MR. NEARY: We got more reports on the Linerboard Hill than that 

crowd over there. 

MR. MCNEIL: Our inventory appears to be way out of whack. When 

you look at the spread of figures and the substantial increases in 

inventory~I believe we should look at all requests from the company 

to buy anything for the stores . 

Mr. Speaker, it was noted then, and it was pointed out 

to the minister, the Chairman of the Board,that our store inventory 

was too high and it had to come down. Also, Mr. Speaker, -

MR. NEARY: 

MR. MCNEIL: 

What was the total? How many millions altogether? 

Oh,there are so many millions it is hard to keep 

track of it all. 

AN HON. MEMBER: About $9 million. 

MR. MCNEIL: Okay,I will go back to another item back here. 

To illustrate how serious the store inventory situation is the 

following information is provided, so operating, maintenance, and 

supplies which will be included in the store inventory on that. 

From 1974 to 1975 you had an increase, it does not give a total 

increase, but the inventory in that period was $9,442,000. 

It also goes on and it suggests to the government to 

cancel all capital improvements unless the ability of the mill . 

to produce would be impaired. The suggestion then that because of 

the low market situation- because of the financial problems that 

it is having that maybe we should cut back on any capital expenditures 

whereby it is going to impair the mill's pro~uction. Now this was 

done during a period of low market. So if you cut down during that 

period, cut back on your wood inventory as it was suggested by 

management, and the people who came back and told management to continue 
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MR . MCNEIL: 

buying wood, and also told them to buy more than they needed 

when they wanted to cut back their inventory by 40.9 pet' cent, 

PK - 3 

. our gdvernment, owners of the mill, told management to continue 

buying. And the result is today that mill is going under, 

closing in - the matter of six months. 

This momiag we had the Minister of Education 

saying that the mill workers, the union people in Linerboard, 

were on strike and were getting more than Price and Bowaters. 

N<:JW I want to set this record straight, and as I finished 

speaking this morning went out, the union people, the executive 

came to me and told me I must set it straight,that what the minister 

is saying is totally wrong, again showirtg misleading the people. 

The union at that time were on strike, and they 

\vent back to work after it was agreed with what the government 

prom~sed that they would be giving the same as the other mills 

in 
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MR. McNEIL: Newfoundland. They would set the trend and 

they would follow him. But bearing that in mind, ·in the Linerboard 

industry itself · the union workers at Labrador Linerboard are receiv-

ing less than any other linerboard mill in Canada - are receiving less 

in wages. So, they did take a reduction- they did take it - all 

right? Also, apart from that, they requested - they went to management 

and they asked - I do not know if they asked directly through 

Government, but through management - to work with the advisory board, 

and anything th~y could do thev were willing to do. They were 

willing to maybe take a little bit of cutbacks. They \vere open but 

they wanted to know the facts. 

Now, a point here dealing with unions: The 

mill in Temiscaming, Quebec -- this is the one that was owned by CIP-

and it was closed up because CIP said it was a non-viable operation, 

could never work and never make money. The people in the town took 

it over and, with their union and assistance from both the 

. . 
Provinc_ial and Federal people,have nm.; re-or>ened that industry after 

a year-and-a-half of being down, and nmv not only have their own 

mill operating in the black but they own a couple of the mills in 

the United States who were comoeting against them. 

But the point is here, Mr. Speaker, is that 

when they sat down - the union sat dotm ,-to negotiate their contract, 

it took them only three days to come to an agreement. ~fhy? Why did 

it only take them three days? Because the president of the union said -

he said, '~e knew exactly what was on their books. There was no need 

for us to go more~ because we knew there was no more". They knew the 

facts, what the company was doing. They knew what th,e company _ y.7a_s 

making, but we,here in the Province, have a publicly owned mill, and 

the people of this Province do not have all the facts relating to 

that mill. We have been trying to get information here in this House 

time and time again, and the Government has concealed it from us. 
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MR. McNEIL: There.is a report that I have pie~ed up that 

should have been tabled in . the House when the Government decided to 

close it down. You decided. You lost it. You Ble~;it. Table it all. 

1{hat do you have to fiide? And you are keeping all these little bits of 

information back. Haybe if you produced it all, naybe after we see 

and go through it all, maybe we would say, "Well, yes, maybe you did make 

the right decision." But the facts as I have them. and as people that 

are working in the industry are telling me, that the Government has 

made the wrong d~cision in closing that mill, .. 

MR. NEARY: Mr. Sweeney said that. 

MR. McNEIL: But he only gets carried away every once in 

awhile, so I guess .we have to take his comments very lightly. 

MR. MURPHY: Shut her down tight. · 
------ -- -
SOME RON. MEMBERS: Oh, oh! 

}iR. McNEIL: }rr. Speaker, are you familiar with - is the 

gentleman familiar with the situation in Temiscaming, Quebec? 

MR. MURPHY: I had heard about it.· The employees sort 

of took the thing on themselves and the government carried the debt 

or whatever it was on it. 

MR. McNETI: I would advise the members on the other 

side. there is a film down in the National Library Board, A Challenge 

for Change, and it gives a good description of what can be done if you 

take a positive approach to a serious problem. And they had a serious 

problem. They were losing their tow~,and they got it - they did not 

take over a new mill}: they took over a mill which by industry standards 

. -
was a disaster., :? a ~Yri te-off. But they turned it around, and they not 

only turned their own mill around with the help of all -

co-operation was the key word - from all~ everybody pitched in~ 
' 

nobody was trying to hog the show, · everybody pitched in and they not 

only got their own mill in·production, they bought controlling shares 

in two mills in the United States, the first time ever in Canada that 

we have a Canadian investment controlling in the paper industry a 

U.S. mill. Now lately I hear that they-have bought another mill. 
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MR. McNEIL: Now, one of the key factors in this kind of 

a - they refer to it as a marriage of convenience, and it is kind of a 

unique situation· how the thing evolved. But it is very interesting. 

For the first time ever we have seen it r.-1orking , everybody tightly 

together. And 

.. 
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MR.McNEIL: I think,Mr. Speaker, here in this province we could 

do the same thing. The province owns the mill,they have money sunk 

into it. If the government s~lls it we will not get the money 

out of it that we put into it. Well if that is the case, why 

do we not try to get a good management team? Tie in your labour, 

tie in your management, your community, federal government, 

provincial gover~ent and the works, tie it all in and work it 

maybe. If you have to bring your wages and salaries down, put an 

incentive at the end of it. At the end of the year if there is 

a profit, work on .a profit-sharing basis so that something goes back 

to the workers as a bonus. Put something there for the future. 

Give them something. But just do not tell them to do this and do 

that, if they do not like it get out. That has been the 

approach of this government. 

Another item here~Mr. Speaker, the management felt 

that the labour Has increasing at a time when it probably should 

be decreasing. Immediate lay-off often percent of the work force, 

follmved by another ten per cent in six months time. In November, 1973 

~.;e had 524 people working in the mill. Now we have 683. 

are into a situation where we are going to lose the whole ente~prise. 

There is not going to be one person working there, because it is going 

to be closed, unless you count the rats that •v:Ul be going around 

there in a few years. 

Mr; Speaker, when I go back to some of the Hansards 

and read the statements of Mr. Crosbie, where he states time and 

time again that the mill is a non-viable operation, and the sole reason 

he gives for it is the high cost of wood. Now, the last fe~v months our wood 

cost has come down. It was $108~that is what we were dealing with before. 

Now I am told we are supposed to be closer to the $60 range. According to the 

forecast they are talking about $62 wood per cord, so it is possible to get 

our wood cost down. With the problem ~ve have hanging over us now 

with the spruce budword, the danger is right now that we are going 

to lose our total forests. It is going to be wiped out. What are 
• ....__ _ I 
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MR.MCNEIL: we going to have on our hands in a couple of years 

time, a shutdown ~ybe in Grand Falls, Bowaters~an old mill, so 

what happens with Bowaters when the industry takes a slump· when 

the market drops? What happens? These people are only concerned 

with making profit. But our government~who owns the mill,·they 

should be concerned with making it operate and trying to make 

it a viable operation so it pays back and services the debt. But 

if it does not service its debt at this point in time they should 

be only interested in just making it break even. And it can break 

even. 

The capital requirements committee made up of the 

advisory board people, these are the people in the field, business 

people, expertise. Take the programme, they lay it out: Capital 

cost payment summary for the recommendations programme as follows: 

They suggested- they have seven items installed in here, they 

break it over a cost pay-back basis. For example, install . turbo 

generator, power saving versus Bunker C. Bunker C cost is going 

up. We are told that our electrical cost is going up and our 

foal cost is going to keep going up. But they are suggesting here 

that we convert the steam that is going out the spout into the air, 

convert it and probably have a saving in our electricity and our 

Bunker C that we are using, 

So in 1977 you 
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MR. MCNEIL: spend $1 million, it is a cost of 

$1 million. In 1978-79 spend $3 million, 1979-80 you 

spend $2 million and you receive back a gain of $1 

million~and in 1980-81 you are receiving back a gain of 

$2.5 million, So say_ you save an increase of about $.5 

million per year and pay it back in 1981. And here we 

are turning aside the advice of the experts in the field 

and deciding to close it up, not only throw an industry 

down the drain, but~ community, a people and any hope 

that our Province has of trying to get a little stature 

in our Canadian society, let alone our world society. 

It is going down the drain. 

Then we have to go to the bond 

market people and tell them what a great Province we are. 

He cannot make a success of any industry, where we are not 

concerned ~n making a profit, just breaking even, _a 

resource based industry and we cannot make a success of it, 

so what are they going to ask? They are going to come 

back and they are going to say, Well, what is the matter 

with you people? It is going to be the Newfoundland 

people who are going to take the brunt of it all. They 

not only have to pay for it for a good many years after, 

about three-quarters of a million dollars by the time it 

is all paid out, and receive nothing except their 

character as Newfoundlanders blemished, adding to the 

chapters of the Newfoundland Joke Book. 

The comments of the Committee~ 

-
"It is important to note- a programme such as this for 

$12.3 million would pay for itself by 1980, and starting 

at that time would also generate cash which equates to 

the remaining bonds in _the amount of $28.4 million 

outstanding as of March 31, 1980. It is also seen to 

provide cash to support a continuing normal improvement 

programme estimated to require about $2 million per year 

after 1980-81." 
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MR. MCNEIL: Mr. Speaker, the facts are 

here;and taking them as we have them with a little bit 

of determination, a little bit of energetic activity, 

working towards the success of an industry, and at a 

time when you would have every single person who would 

help you, the government have everybody in their midst 

and they would go all out to help them, and what are 

they doing? Sitting back,they could not care less. Let 

her go! Let her go! 

Mr. Speaker, I do not know 

if other members of the House feel as I do. I feel as 

a member representing a district that this is the most 

unfulfilling job I have ever done. We are puppets to 

people from outside. I was amazed to hear from the 

Minister of Forestry this morning when he said he had 

to go to Stephenville to get the reports that I have, 

he did not receive them from the Minister of Finance nor 

the Premier. 

MR. DOODY: The Minister of Manpower. 

MR. MCNEIL: The Minister of Hanpower, 

rather, yes. That is unbelievable. What is it, only 

a couple of the Cabinet ministers, the inner group that 

controls the whole thing,and the other ministers and 

backbenchers are supposed to be sacrificed like the rest 

of the other people in the Province? Is that the whole 

idea,to balance our books? 

My ideas of a governmen:t J_and 

what I see today being part of a governme~t in the 

House of Assembly is very disillusioning. I am glad 

that most of my district is far a111ay because if the 

people could come in here and see how the whole thing 

works and see our government in action,they would under­

stand that they have no hope for the future. 

Our government has forgotten 

Bay St. George. Not only Bay St. George, but the whole 
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MR. MCNEIL: of Western Newfoundland and 

possibly, I think, our whole Island. They have forgotten 

I 
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MR McNEIL~ about-everybody except themselves and then 

again here I am not even too sure. I think they have lost control 

of everything. 

MR. NFARY! 

it. 

MR. McNEIL: 

It is too big for them,boy, they cannot cope with 

Mr. Speaker, I must emphasize like this morning I 

mentioned that if we are to serve the people, if v1e are elected 

members to re-present the people we are sup-posed to try to 

understand them, we are su-pposed to try to have a feeling for 

people first, people foremost~that is what the government is all 

about,that was my idea but I am starting to come awake, I am 

starting to realize that people do not come first with our 

government. The approach that our government takes is that you must 

use them, keep them down, keep them down, squat them like a 

cockroach. 

Hr. Speaker, again in a memorandum to the minister,subject- cost 

reduction programme,it states "Determine from Price and Bowaters how 

much they pay for purchased wood and· ~e sure we do not pay anymore. 

Rumours continue to persist that we are paying much more for our wood 

than Price and Bowaters.'' Why should v7e pay more for our 

wood than Price and Bowaters? ~.Jhen you see ~vood cut around our area, 

the chea-pest wood than you can get would be around the mill area in 

a thirty mile radius . The government cuts it out, closes it down~ 

and takes the most expensive ~vood .. And in that memorandum I read this 

morning, it not only tells them to continue bringing in wood but it 

tells them to pick up another contract for 8000 cords and that wood 

is up in Roddickton, I am told it is still u-p there. _ 

MR. DOODY: That is not the same wood. 

HR. McNEIL: That is not the same wood? 

MR. DOODY: No· The Hawks Bay vTOod is different than the Roddickton 

~·100d. 

MR. McNEIL: So what is the story on the Roddickton wood? 

N.R. DOODY: The Roddickton wood was wood that ~vas bought by 
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MR. DOODY: Linerboard -

PR~IER HOORES: And sold back. 

MR. DOODY: and sold back to the people. (Inaudible ) 

it was wood that they did not need. 

PREHIER 'I-100RES : And sold back to them. 

MR.. :Mt!..\lEIL : How much of a loss did the Linerboard realize 

on that one? 

PREMIER MOORES: The people are going to gain. 

MR. McNEIL; The people are going to gain? 

MR. DOODY: For years. 

MR. McNEIL: That will be the first time ever. 

HR. DOODY: I am just trying to say that there were two different 

lots of \·lOad. 

MR. McNEIL: Okay,you got me straightened out there. Thank you! 

There is another unusual remark here, "I suggest that our 't.rood consumption 

is not near as high as we are led to believe it is. I believe the 

discrepancy occurs with all of the wood that has been lost at the 

mill through 

MR. DOODY: Shrinkage. 

MR. McNEIL· - shrinkage -thank you - and the thousands of cords 

that have been lef ~go adrift in Bay St. George. The company now finds 

that the wood that has been delivered to the mill is not now there 

and consequently they conclude the wood has been consumed.~£ this is 

the case a saving of $3.5 million per year can be realized from 

decreased usage .. "N~"t~ that is astonishing. 

MR. NEARY: That would even baffle the 

MR. HcNEIL: This is a little article dealing with wood usage. 

HR. DOODY: The executive assistant again. 

MR. McNEIL: Yes. Production. 

SO!'m RON. HEI·1BERS : Hear, hear! 

MR. HcNEIL: There is a name on this but I am going to refraim from 

using any names 1 There are a couple of names in it. In this House it is 

bad to bat around names because He can get mislead. I got this 

information ~nd if these people knew they would probably have a 

heart attack. I do not know so I a~ not going to name them. If 
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!:-!R. McNEIL: 

the government wants to put the heat on them,go right ahead.11 I 

suggest that our wood consumption1
'- I •vil1 read this over for 

the minister again - 11 I 



May 10, 1977 Tape 2471. LB-1. 

MR..McNEIL: _ sugges_t , that our wood consumption is not near 

as high as we are led to believe it is. I believe the discrepancy 

occurred with all the wood that has been lost at the ~ill through 

shrinkage and the-thousands of- cords that have been let go adrift 
- - " - -

in Bay St. George. The company now finds that the wood that 

has been delivered to the mill is now not there - and consequently 

they conclude the wood has been consumed. If this is the case 

a saving of $3.5 million per year can be realized from decreased 

usage~' So if th~y did not use it, they did not get the saving, 

where was the wood? 

MR. DOODY: Cut adrift. 

MR.McNEIL: It is not there. Well some of it that was cut~-

the wood. ,in;en1;ory -that was supposed to be there was not there. 

AN. HON. }:!EMBER : We will accept that. 

MR. McNEIL: It also further recommends cuts--. Now we are talking about a .. . - - ,, 

reduction programme ' ~nd h~s there been a reduction programme with 

Labrador Linerboard before the Advisory Board took over? Did the 

government ever make l!irm recommendations for cutbacks? Not c:;.o~ure-s now, 

cutbacks. Hav~ the government ever made any recommendations? 

MR.lJOODY: Yes . - There were recommendations. 

MR..MCNEIL: Here they followed through? 

MR. DOODY: In some instances. 

MR..NEARY: Not very vague~ The minister is very cautious about 

answering that one. 

MR..DOODY: . Yes, I am a very delicate subject. 

MR.NEARY: We should bring Crosbie before the Bar of this House 
and make him answer for all the extravagance and waste and 
skullduggery that went on. 

HON .}:!EMBERS: Oh, oh ~ 

~.McNEIL: A further point they bring out; they request or suggest to 

stop all grants through various o:ganizations in Bay St. George and 

seriously take a look at postponing the grant for the town of 

Stephenville. I think that grant has already been postponed. But, 

Mr. Speaker, if this would have been carried out maybe in 1975,thQt is 
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MR.McNEIL: when it was suggested, some of these recommendations 

would have been carried out, would we be faced with the problems 

that we are into today? Not according to the wood figures~ 

If our government did not interfere with management they would have 

brought down the wood inventory, they would have had a cash flow-

and this ~as been the problem. They did not have a cash flow. 

Management said time and time again we have no money to operate~ 

· e have no cash flow. It would have cut our inven~ory down rather 

than having milli~ns of dollars up in a junk pile-or in the stock 

pile in chips in form of wood. That ought to give them money to use 

in other areas and as you produced you got your inventory rolling, 

bring it in as you use it rather than nothing going out and everything 

coming in. It is ·casting you lots of money to hold on to that 

inventory. 

This is the point I really cannot figure out. Maybe 

the minister can help me out on this one.The \\ 
request~ Do not pay 

for any wood unless it is under company controlled, or loaded onto 

a carrier for destination to the mill.11 Now, have you been 

paying for wood that you did not have your hands on, giving out 

..., 
contracts and paying for contracts before they were met~ Is this 

what is suggested? I found out in the last couple of days that 

we lost about 500 cords of wood through theft on the N~rthern 

Beninsula within the last year and a half and no action has been 

taken. It is unbelievable. Then we ask ourselves - then the 

government is saying it has to close,we cannot make it a viable 

operation, the mill will never operate. My God,with all these 

things go.:!.ng against it, hor.v can it operate'? 

Our Chairman of the Board, the previou~ chairman, 

Mr. Crosbie, stated that the mill would never be a viable operation. 

Now what were we seeing here? Were we seeing hatred for another han. 

gentleman,~ho. served the country well, coming out? Was this the 

reason for that statement? Or did he actually mean it at this 

present time ~e do not have an economic wood supply 7 .that our 
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MR.McNEIL: wood cost is so great that we cannot compete at 

this particular point in time. But he went out of his way 

to say that it never Hill be a viable Of!eration and no one will 

pay a buck for the mill,that 

---.. 
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Mr. McNeil: 

a $300 million mill. And today if you want to construct a new 

mill it is going to cost you well over $400 million, and here 

we are ready to close it up and give it to the rats. 

Mr. Speaker, another area is to reneg?~iate the 

pow~r contract. \Je are paying a very high rate for our power 

contract. · We pay for pmver generated at Holyrood when in effect 

we do not use it. It is astonishing. He also pay minimum charges 

and our electrical bills are three times high~r than our mills. 

Well if we can subsidize Erco in Long Harbour, ~.rhy can we not 

subsidize Labrador Linerboard a little bit? It is only money 

circulating. 

It also goes on, to encourage and assist local 

operators to produce wood for us and skid ' it in 9oose Bay and on 

the island. Encourage local operators. In the past year, especially 

in-well I know particularly in Bay St. George, the government 

has encouraged our people to get involved in the private enterprise, 

- . 
have g~ven them out contracts, tell them that they-build them up 

and tell them that their future is in the wood industry, and the 

reports that you read in the Throne Speech going back over the years 

you will see there are a lot of emphasis placed on the forestry, the 

wood industry. It always comes up. That is one of our hopes. 

But is there much hope in the wood industry, if our Island cannot 

supply the mill in Stephenville ~.rith wood? And that is given to 

be the most single factor for the downfall of Labrador Linerboard, 

so we are told. 

But that problem does not exist today. The wood . 

cost is down and in line comparing it against Canadi_an standards, 

~vhich are a high of $75 per cord, and a low of $50 -not really, 

it goes lower than that really, but they are the two means used 

talking with the people I have ·talked to in the industry. Our 

market in themselvesa~e not really a problem. so we are told. We 

have hit the bottom and we are moving back up. The projections 

in linerboard for sales is very encouraging, and it should be 

encouraging to the administration, in all different reports, from 
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Hr. McNeil: 

all over the world,indicate that the linerboard industry, the 

market itself will turn around and improve, and your prices will 

increase. You will get a better dollar for your product. And 

if we follow the recommendations for a few of the capital 

requirements that were put through, . can .we not knock down the 

fixed operating cost·· tvhich are suggested to cause many problems 

to the linerboard operation? 

So if we look at the whole thing in its entirety, 

why did the government close Labrador Linerboard dotm? Why? 

I will tell you why. It is beca"L:se of poor government management. 

They have mismanaged the affairs of this Province, that they got us 

in such a financial state that we cannot move. We are tied .tight 

against the wall. The people on Wall Street they control us, the 

financial people outside of our Province. 

And then we are told that Ottawa, Ottawa has not 

helped us. And yesterday I brought it forward: Mr. Jack Marshall our 

M.P. in that area, Humber-St. George's suggested, pointed out that 

very little or no effort,to his knowledge, was put forth in trying 

to utilize the marketing people at the federal level, the marketing 

people, 

,. 
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MR. HCNEIL: and at the very last moment 

a delegation went to Ottawa looking for a bail-out from 

Ottawa, at the very last minute, after they had their 

b~dg~t written ur, after the decision was made to close 

it, after everything, after the fact. I have a 

memorandum somewhere around here where it states and is 

suggested to Cabinet to set up a wood harvesting corporation­

whereby the wood contractors, the people whom the government 

have encouraged to get into private industry,to take a 

risk, get out on their own, get involved, be entrepreneurs -

set up a wood harvesting corporation that would buy the 

wood so as to give these people a con·tinuous operation. 

This corporation then ~10uld supply wood to the mill when 

it needed it so that it did not have to carry the high 

inventory, therefore protecting the private contractors, 

trying to promote private entrepreneurship with the people 

getting involved in the logging industry; set up this 

corporation and the government would control it, they ·· 

would fund it and any subsidies needed would be built in 

there .. . It would give the management of the mill more 

control over what they wanted to do. In this way if they 

did not need any wood they could cut back without hurting 

the people of Newfoundland, without hurting the contractors. 

Our government, the !1oores 1 

P.C.Government - the suggestion came from Don Jamieson 

when he was in DP~E - and what did they do? What did our 

gover~~ent do, our Cabinet? They turned down the 

suggestion because they said it was too costly, because 

the subsidy looked enormous. Now the suggestion came from 

a federal minister and the information I have is that it 

was turned down in Cabi.net in St. John 1 s Newfoundland, not 

Ottawa. 

Mr. Speaker, I am sure that if 

our government brought a good case to our federal government 

they would get all the assistance they require, 
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1-iR. MCNEIL: ~ecause,face it, without 

Ottawa - they are the only ones who are keeping up their 

end of the -bargain right now. If you pull all of the 

federal money out of Newfoundland,what do we have? 

For example, -

MR. MURPHY: Has the committee made any 

gre~t representation to Mr. Marshall or the federal 

government apart from what our Cabinet made? 

MR. ~1CNEIL: What committee? 

MR. MURPHY: Was there any representation 

to Ottawa at all, to Mr. Marshall, your own local 

· committee from Stephenville, has there been any 

representation? I am just wondering. Following your 

line of thought,I was just wondering. I know the 

Premier and•some other had gone. 

MR. MCNEIL: \'lhat committee? There is a 

local committee that just works from a general community 

point of view. 

MR. MURPHY: From stephenville? Have they 

gone with Jack Marshall, for example, to the federal 

authorities for any -

MR~ --HODDER: I could tell you about that. 

r.1R. MURPHY: Yes, perhaps 'Jim' might know. 

MR. HODDER: We approached Ottawa, but the 

Ottawa people said,as they properly should, that any 

approach should be made through the provincial government, 

which had not been made. 

MR. MURPHY: I was just wondering how many 

representations were made. 

f.1R. MCNEIL: I am sure the minister is aware 

that I cannot deal with Ottawa, that I have to go through 

the provincial government. Ottawa will just drive me 

back to the provincial government. The minister is aware 

of that. 

MR. MURPHY: Not necessarily. 
I 
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MR. MCNEIL: All dealings concerning 

Newfoundland and any project, has to go through .our 

provincial Cabinet to go to Ottawa. 

MR. MURPHY:_ That is the way to go, but 

all I was thinking about was pressure from your federal 

meiDber with the groups of people would assist the 

provincial government in their efforts, that is all. A 

sort of pressure group, that is all. 

MR. MCNEIL: It is amazing how much 

co-operation is received from the provincial government 

by our federal member. When they were up in Ottawa they 

-- did not even bother to consult with our federal member 

~¥hose district that mill is sitting in. They did not 

involve him in the details of it. At least that is the 

information that we are getting back from that member. 

Mr. Speaker, in the preliminary 

report from the Advisory Board the Board states, "The 

Board is therefore not yet in a position to make its 

final report to the government." Now that is very clear 

on page 2. 
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MR. McNEIL: "The Board is,therefore, not yet in a position 

to make its final report to the government~· Now the government is 

telling us that the Advisory Board has made their report and has 

recommended closure. But here we see in black and white that they 

are not in a position to make their final report to the government. 

Now something has to be totally wrong. If they were convinced that 

it would close, that it should close, should they not be a little 

stronger than that? Their final report is not even submitted. 

And the key problem with Labrador Linerboard is its wood. And that 

committee report is not in yet. What happens if that report comes 

back and it tells the government, 'We can get wood at $30 a cord or 

in comparison with the U.S. mills?' What happens? That changes 

the picture totally. It will not be that low, granted, but it could 

be closer to $50. It could be in a position whereby it could mean the 

tipping of the scales. If we are sitting on the very top, it could 

mean it could tip us in a positive direction. But no, they made their 

decision without having the final report of the Advisory Board. And 

the Advisory Board states in this report it is not yet in a position 

to make its final report to the government. And the most important 

report - the report dealing with the wood supply-has not been put in 

the hands of gave rnment, so we are told. Now maybe they do have it, 

but if they do have it, why not table it right now? And why have not 

these other reports not been tabled? Because there is a little bit 

of hope in them, a little bit of light down the roadl It is not a 

doom and gloom report. If it were a doom and gloom report they would 

have it on the table, in stacks. Hr. Speaker, our government is 

misleading the people of this Province, maybe not intentionally, but . . .. . 

by withholding information, by only giving out bits and pieces of a 

very doom and gloom nature. They are misleading the people. The 

people own that mill. They have a right to know every bit of inf~r-

mation about the mill. Every y~ar they should be given a cost 

analysis of the whole thing. And only this year we got the financial 

report, · a couple of years old. There have been problems upon problems. 

But tell me any industry, especially a wood industry that is trying to 
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MR. McNEIL: crack a very tough organization~· do they not go 

through very difficult periods? And does it not take more than four 

years -_it is not even four years yet that we are into production -

before they assess their total situation? And if it is out of control 

in year one, do they not try to bring it into control that year rather 

than increasing inventory, going against management's better judgement 

in industry and tell them that they-must buy, that they must cripple 

themselves so that they will have no cash flow?, deliberately _ putting 

them under. Granted, maybe it was not intentional, maybe it was a very 

honourable thing. If I were sitting in the minister's position, maybe 

I would make the same decision. But I tell you one more thing I would 

do: I would lay the information on the table. If the information is 

going to be against the industry continuing, if we have lost and you 

admit., - ' 'It is going, it is gone, it is doomed, "lay all ti:te facts out 

and you never know - someone might just pick up some little thing that 

could change it. And it seems to be at a point where it could be 

changed. It seems to be the efforts of the past six months by a total 

co-operation within the community itself, working with their new mill 

management, working with their Advisory Board - the politicians them­

selves, we as politicians in Bay St. George, I, myself as the sitting 

member for Stephenville, have deliberately played down any political 

environment, any political involvement in Labrador Linerboard. 

I did not trample on the government's toes and I do not think 

the government can accuse me of that. But I am sorry. Maybe I made 

the wrong decision. Maybe I should have come out from day one 
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MR. McNEIL: and ask for the Government to resign because 

they have blundered. There is no way that they will bring it all 

together. Maybe I made a mistake, but down in· my heart I felt that if 

they are given a chance - they are in a difficult position - if they 

are given a chance and encouragement to continue, because it is an 

unhill battle. and encourage them, that they will come through. 
L I -- - -

I have talked to the members' on this side and I continued; time and 

time again, I said, "Go softly on Labrador Linerboard - encourage 

them because they need all the encouragement". We tried to play the 

political thing down,becau~e it has been a political football from 

day one. I think I made a mistake. I should be like the hon. member 

from· LaPoile (Mr. Neary), sock it to them. They do not care about 

you. They do not care about the people of this Province. They only 

care about themselves staying in office, and they do not want to do 

anything when they get in that office as well. They are not interested 

in doing a job. 

But it goes on a little further and it says, 

"The Board intends to continue its work under its terms of reference 

and expects a final report to be available in one or two months". 

A final report, and that final report deals with all the re?orts. We 

are told that this is supposed to be one of their final· - or supposed 

to be the final report,so we are led to believe. 

MR. DOODY: Preliminary report. 

MR. McNEIL: Preliminary report:? My God! The stuff 

that is in this here and comparing against this - there is no way you 

could table this in·the House and say, "The Board has made a decision 

in favour of closing Labrador Linerboard", and ask us, the people of 

Newfoundland, to swallow it. Well, at least there is a sentence 

in this here that leaves it wide onen: "The Board did not recommend 

closure". Maybe it was one of your bureaucrats or maybe the Secretary 

of the Board. If he is responsible to do this, maybe he changed some of the 

words in this. Mr. Sweeney seems to be upset with the bureaucrats. 

And how did Mr. Martin get on the Advisory Board? Why should he be 
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MR. McNEIL: involved in the Advisory Board at this stage 

of the game? To make sure that he proposed closing it down as it was 

a drain on the Province,-- to make sure that he would see his work 

completed, and not to respect the people who work in the industry and 

would advise him on the industry itself. He has his own mind made 

up in .a _set_of figures and wprks on it in that line. ~..aybe as a finance: 

man he is a very excellent finance man, but as a person who is maybe 

going to change the direction of our Province, I do not know if he 

should be given -all that power. ·Maybe he is the hatchet man. Maybe 

he has to take the brunt of it all. I hate to mention names - and I 

should not mention names - and if his name can be withdrawn, I would 

like to take it out,b~t it is -

AN HON. MEMBER: (inaudible) 

MR. McNEIL: Well, I said before, as a finance man he is 

maybe excellent. I have not met the gentleman -

AN RON. MEMBER: (inaudible) 

MR. McNEIL: - and that is beside the point. 

Another point, Mr. Speaker, is our marketing 

condition. Our markets are weak. We are just coming out of a time 

when the markets have just completely dropped and just coming up, and 

if you are looking at a graph scale on different reports, and I have 

seen them from different countries giving a marketing forecast, 
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Mr. McNeil: 

and they all point towards an upward trend. Now going back to 

almost two years ago - I ~•as looking at the market forecast -

and on the reports taken from different countries, a lot of them 

are going down. The U.S. was going down and it was coming up. 

The U.S. was the only bright picture,going back about two years 

ago. But less than a month ago I was looking at some reports and 

the graphs were all going up, all pointing, all positive~pointing 

toward the market forecast to improve, Wfl.y different than two years 

ago when the same volumes or the same types,when you look at them 

in the different magazines,were pointing that the market was dropp"ing, 

and that the people in industry ~Jere hoping against hope that it 

would not drop as far but it still continued to drop. But now 

we are seeing a different thing. We were told if we hang in there 

that possibly what we have on our hands is a gold mine. It could 

probably pay for itsel{. And surely if we are looking at the future 

of our Province,by the year 2000 how much more valuable is that wood 

going to become? And are the products going to increase in its 

. .... 

pr~ces r 

We are told that before it is economically viable to 

build a new mill the cprrent prices have _ to increase by over 50 per cent. 

So if that is any indication they are not going to see any new mills 

coming on stream. No new mills are being built~or very few or very 

small, they are not really going to affect the market all that much. 

And if '"'e put more effort in trying to obtain the markets, our 

Canadian markets, maybe we will get our foot in there. Maybe it is 

the Canadian picture we should be looking at. · 

Our marketing people that we had, International 

Forest Productslwere ~U.S. firm~controlled by the giants in the 

U.S. because they ••ere only a peanut operation') they could not give 

us good advice. \-Je would be better off tied into the whole Canadian 

system in marketing. The fact that Consolidated Bathrust has given 

a couple of their key men to work in Linerboard to try to find a 

solution must prove or must indicate that maybe they are good 
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Mr. McNeil: 

corporate citizens and are trying to see some industry succeed. 

But maybe their· involvement is only a very selfish one. Maybe 

the government has not given us all the facts with regard to the 

setting up of the Advisory Board. Was it a smoke screen for 

the government to get them off the hook; to get the political 

pressure off the government? And if that is the case it is much 

more serious,because you have used people in business, people 

'highly comp~tent,business people respected across Canada, have 

used them, have made fools of them for political reasons. If that 

is the case, Mr. Speaker, we in Newf~undland have not got a chance 

because no government~make no matter what .. it is,will be ever 

trusted again. No Newfoundland government will be ever trusted 

anywhere in the world, not alone even by our Ne~•foundland people. 

If we use this type of people, these business type of people, if 

we use a man like Mr. Sweeney who came in here, and with thirty-

five years of experience in the business, if we use him for 

political reasons, how do we expect to have any type of reputation 

in the financial world? Because actually if what Mr. Sweeney is 

saying, and if the recommendation of the Board is right, taking 

them all~they can all probably be challenged, all right, and maybe 

it is not all~fact, .maybe they could be a little bit misleading 

in some areas, but if the government do not lay it on and if the 

government are using these people, and it indicates that they are, 

if you are not giving all of the information out we will never know, 

we will always be wondering, and the government will never be trusted. 

Now, Mr. Speaker, the Premier when heset up the. 

Advisory Board he came into Stephenville, set up the Advisory 

Board, 
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MR. McNEIL: had meetings, separate meetings with groups of 

people. The people then thought it was probably, you know, a way to 

get the political pressure off themselves. But when they looked at the 

whole board they _could see some conflicts. But they looked at the men. 

They said, '~ell, they are highly respected businessmen. And I do 

not think they would put their reputation on the li~e for any political 

advantage of the Newfoundland Government. They would get involved to 

do a job." And it looks like theyh:l.ve got involved and they have done 

a tremendous job. The information that they are bringing forward is 

startling. But our government is just brushing it aside. Why? Why? 

Mr. Speaker, if we are doomed, if the Labrador 

Linerboard mill could be turned around,and the government agree that 

it can be turned around, but the fact is that we are bankrupt and we 

can not, you know, as a provinee we are gone, well if that is the case, 

tell us. And yet, why, on the other hand, do you have a minister ~f 

the Crown in his district, before the budget speech,announcing was it 

a million dollars paving programme in his district? 

MR. WHITE: 

MR. McNEIL: 

MR. WHITE: 

MR. McNEIL: 

MR. WHITE: 

SOME RON. MEMBE"RS: 

MR. MCNEIL: 

A million dollars. 

A million dollars. 

The day of the budget. 

The day of the budget or before the budget? 

The· day of the budget 

Oh, oh! 

Mr. Speaker, if our Province is gone and there is no 

way of turning it around, how does the Minister of Fisheries intend to turn 

the fisheries around? And there is a gigantic job ahead of him there. That 

is one of the bright areas we have in the Province . B·ut the problems are 

the same - the same as the forest industry. The fore~t industry is one of 

our hopes. I am told that the timber concessions - there can be a solution 

reached whereby it can be worked out between the three companies. I am told 

that the problem does not lie th.ere. The , Premier said himself - he said, 

"The wood problem is no longer a problem." 

Now in everything you read in Hansard going back to day 

one it states · the biggest problem is wood • But the Premier said himself, 
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MR. McNEIL: "The wood problem i:s no longer a problem." Now he 

did not say that publicly, but he said it personally to myself and the 

member for Port ·au Port (Mr. Hodder). 

So if the wood is no longer a problem and the markets 

are no longer a great problem - but there still are a few areas there 

they have to improve and they are continuing to improve - what is the 

problem? 

AN HON. MEMBER: Government. 

MR. McNEIL: No, well they said, "We still have high fixed costs." 

Okay. But the Advisory Board has pointed out where they can cut down their 

high fixed costs and make a saving on the capital money they spent to pay 

itself for three years. They have pointed this out. 

So if we have no wood problem, we do not have a 

serious market problem like we did before - and the operating costs can 

be cut down and any investment made in capital improvements - can be made -

will pay for itself within three years, why are we closing up the industry 

now? Why are we closing up the industry? 

SOME HON. MEMBERS: Oh, oh! 

MR. McNEIL: Now when you look at the Linerboard industry or the 

paper industry, your wood is your major component. And the wood problem , 

as we are told,is no longer a prqblem. Then what is the problem? As a 

Province,are we bankrupt? Well, we can not be, because the Minister of 

Mines and Energy 

AN HON. MEMBER: (Inaudible) 

MR. McNEIL: before the budget day or on budget day announced a 

million dollars for the work 
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MR. MCNEIL: of paving in his district. 

Well if we are bankrupt we cannot afford to pave any 

roads. So I cannot understand it. As a simple member 

from Stephenville I am just stunned by it. I just 

cannot believe it. What is the government hiding? If 

they are going to close the industry, lay out the 

information. What are they scared of? Maybe they are 

going to f.ind there has been a lot of hanky-panky on 

the go. Maybe it is going to be an embarrassment to the 

government. You are willing to bring it out. You are 

saying that we are in a bad financial state. You are 

admitting that. You are admitting that there have been 

abuses in the past. You are willing to confess. But 

you are not willing to confess totally only partially 

whereby_it will benefit you politically. 

Mr. Speaker, it is a desperate 

situation. I do not know how a member can represent his 

district. He can plead and encourage the government to 

work in the best interest of, not only his district, but 

the people of Newfoundland. He can go back to his people 

in his district and he can say, Look, there is a 

financial squeeze here. That operation is going to cost 

the Newfoundland people millions and millions of dollars. 

And if you lay all the facts out they would probably be 

the ones who would bring the suggestion forward, if that 

is the case maybe we have to close it. They would be the 

ones. They are not selfish, they are ordinary people who 

are just struggling for survival, just s~ruggling for 

existence, they want to see some hope down the road for 

their children, they want to see their community grow, 

they want to see their· Province grow, they want to see 

Canada grow. ~'le are into an age now where many of the 

people are educated. We are not illiterate. We have 

understanding. We are willing to listen to reason, but 

we do not understand all this secrecy about 1an operation 



May 10, 1977, Tape 2478, Page 2 -- apb 

HR. MCNEIL: that we are told is doomed on 

the one hand, by the government and some of the governrnen~ 

officials, and then on the other hand, by the people in the 

industry, the experts in the field who make things run 

and happen, we are told that it can be turned around. 

Yes, they agree that i~ has 

many problems, they agree that it has been a sloppily run 

operation, they agree that ~t is the most horrifying 

operation they have seen in the past, and also they feel 

that these people working at that mill have been - well, 

for example, I can mention going back about a month after 

Mr. Sweeney the new president had been appointed to the 

position, I did not approach him, I would not approach 

him because I said, No, I would rather not get involved 

because he is one of those guys planted there by the 

government. This is only going to be a little bit of a 

political hassle, no, I will stay back. So I got my 

feedings through the men themselves working in the industry. 

The men themselves started for once feeling positive that 

we had somebody up there who knew what he was doing. This 

guy is going to turn it around. And when he calls in his 

supervisors he does not call them in to have a little drop 

of tea or coffee, he calls them in to straighten up a 

problem. He does not bother with them on a little social 

basis, he is in there to turn the industry around. And 

every moment of the day he deals with his management people. 

He calls them in and whatever the problem they disc~s~ it, 

and they work it out, and they get the thing welling. 

And that all feeds back to the people who are working there, 

the workers. 

The astonishing thing he did say 

is that when he first went there,after a week or two ~e 

went in and walked around the mill and he went into the 

control room, and one of the panels were off - something 

was gone - I think one of the panels were all 
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Mr. McNeil: 

down and the Comproller was in the room, and he did not know 

Mr. Sweeney,he had not seen him before. There a long time 

people in the mill working there did not see him, did not know 

what he looked like. So he used to move about in the mill 

talking to the men, they did not know who he \vas. And he 

went into the Control Room, and a fellow who was working there 

is a graduate out of one of the schools in Stephenville, one of 

the high schools, the first job ever, went into the Linerboard 

Mill. A young fellow, a young man,he was seventeen ~.;rhen he went 

to work first. Three years - well he \vas going on his third year, 

he had not completed his third year into the mill operation.He was 

in the control room and he was giving back information back to the 

President of the company,who he did not know was the ~resident, 

.. 
and he \vas telling him ., Even though this panel is not working 

it is still feeding me information. this panel is still feeding 

me ,1' and he said, Mr. Sweeney, he said to me after, he said, "Do 

you know,'' he said, "that that young fellow only three years in the 

industry," he said, ''I would compare him against any man in Canada with 

twelve years experience.'' 

Now that speaks very highly of our work force. And 

what are we as a Province doing? Now why was that young fellaH so 

interested in learning the whole -out of his own job into any person's 

job - ~vhy ~vas he feeling so interested in the job, and in the operation? 

Because he knew that Labrador Linerboard was into a serious problem. 

He was willing to go out of his way to find out how the thing worked, 

and to find solutions. And even though some of the panels were--do-wn, -

and some of the equipment not working,he still had control of the 

situation. He had the total thing in his hand, and he could feed out 

good information. 

And now we see where our government because of the 

past years, and they have been bad years,I would say, with Linerboard. 

It has been unfortunate that you had a President who never ran a 

mill before. 
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And he was willing to be swayed by the political 

figures. It is unfortunate. But this man here >vas a man in indus try, 

a tough man,I would say, and he knew what he was looking for. And 

he knew the equipment after sizing it all up and he knew that it 

could produce. And he knew that the work force 'tvas there. And 

the management people he knev1 how to haul them in to make them 

'tvork. He knew it. Why? He was not blessed '\<lith any great 

intelligencer well probably he was, I do not know. But the thing 

is he relied on thirty-five years of experience in the paper industry, 

thirty-five years. And if any man could pull it together he could. 

You know,he is a hot Irishman, ~aybe that had something to do with 

it. And he had a positive will. And from ·day one he took only 

one approach,that the mill can be viable and it will be viable, and 

I will turn it around. 

MR. SMALUJOOD: He did not have any mere violent will power than 

John Crosbie. What he had that Crosbie did not have was knowledge. 

MR. MCNEIL: 

MR.. SMALU.fOOD: 

AN HON. ME}ffiER: 

MR. SMALLWOOD: 

MR. MCNEIL: 

MR. SMALLWOOD: 

MR. MCNEIL: 

AN RON. MEMBER: 

MR. MCNEIL: 

There you go. Exactly. 

Experience. 

direction. 

He knew what he was doing. 

Exactly. 

The young man only was a bulldozer. 

Right. 

Only a boy. 

So, Mr. Speaker, I think that our government 

has acted prematurely. The Advisory Board Committee states that 

they have not had in their final reports and they are not in a position 

to make their final report to the government •. So v:hy did the 

government make such a decision in the light of the past six months? 

Now maybe in the last six months, maybe our government has not been 

kept informed. Maybe you are only going on the information you had 



May 10, 1977 Tape 2479 {Afternoon) 

~1r. 1cNeil: 

maybe six months back or a year ago. Maybe that is the case. I 

do not know. But I a.m telling you gentlemen you do not krto'W the 

situation as it exists in Stephenville today with regard to 

the positive feeling and the ef·forts that this man has done, 

this one man, and with the group of people and the Advisory Board 

PK - 3 

has done. Now maybe the government has encouraged them, has given 

them all kinds of room to move. No doubt they have. 

• But the point keeps coming back to me is that the 

government had made their decision to close be.fore they had all of 

the reports from the Advisory Board, before they had all of their 

information. 
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MR. HCNEIL: · It is amazing that the idea of setting up that 

board so that you would get the best people in the industry, 

the best people to advise you on what to do, and now you 

are ignoring that advice. 

In the last six months there have been 

·fantastic changes in that nrill·; and its production record, 

when it breaks an existing record; when it breaks it,it 

speaks for itself. And when it points at ways whereby you 

NM- 1 

can save money with a alittle bit of capital investment which 

would pay off itself in three years and if you continue that type 

of an operation you should be able to meet with a little bit 

of success,and if we cannot do it with all the plus factors we 

have regarding Labrador Linerboard today, we have not got a 

prayer in hell in anything we do in Newfoundland. And I do not 

care what government is in. 

This is one issue - well it is not really an 

issue - it is an industry whereby both governments were involved. 

There is co-operation on all sides I think per man, every person 

would like to see it going. There might be a little bit of 

hatred or petty jealousies or something like that, but per 

man I thi~k everf man would like to see it going, would like to 

see it contribute something back to our Newfoundland economy. But 

what are we doing? We are closing it. Even if it only broke even_, 

that in itself would be contributing something back to our Newfoundland 

economy and that can be achieved. 

Mr. Speaker, there is a lot of information 

dealing with Linerboard. Maybe Linerboard is a scapegoat for 

projects like the Churchill Falls where we sink a lot of money 

and get nowhere . Maybe there has to be a sacrificial lamb. But 

I_do not think our government understands what it is doing to our 

people. They are a younger breed of people. They are going to 

be scarred for life going through this one. It is a young work 

force who have given everything and have showed themselves very 
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MR. MCNEIL: capable and we are going to thrm-1 them 

aside, very, very unfortunate. 

And I heard it mentioned in Stephenville 

several times - Well you were given the Linerboard mill, what 

more do you want, we are spending millions and millions of 

dollars down the drain. But, Mr. Speaker, it must be 

remembered that the people of Stephenville did not ask 

for a Linerboard mill. They asked the government to 

utilize the fantastic real estate that was left by Uncle 

Sam, a gift to our provincial government whi7h cost millions 

up~n millions of dollars, probably billions if you had it all 

tallied out. It was a gift to our provincial government. So 

the investment they made in the Linerboard mill is not totally 

gone down the drain. The factors :·that have come forward to 

date pointing to where it can be a viable oueration within the 

distant future and if market prices increases, as it is surely 

going to be, at least break even on its operating expenses, three 

years from now we lvill be making a gain on our operating exnenses, 

so for two years we are almost breaking even. It is unbelievable 

and then we want to close it. 
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MR. MCNEIL: Mr. Speaker, maybe it was sabbotage from day 

one. Maybe Mr. Crosbie in a ~vay unknown to himself tried to 

destroy an industry that was set up by a previous adminis~ration 

and by a man who has done a lot of things in Newfoundland, maybe 

all of them not good but he has a fair track record. I must 

say much better than th·e present administration's track record. 

One thing I have to say for the hon. 

gentleman, he always took a positive approach. Maybe sometimes 

a little bit too positive. What we are seeing today 

is the other extreme, too negative, give up before you start. 

If I can get back to this cost reduction 

programme again. Another point that they mentioned, this is 

back in 1975, they requested - Stop delivery of waste ?aper 

under the CIP contract until the mill is in a position to handle 

it. From what I understand we were locked into a contract which 

delivered waste paper, carboard boxes, strippings to the mill, 

and I can swear on a stack of bibles, because I saw it myself, 

it came off the train, put on the ground, was there for a day or 

two, a payloader came up, scopped it up, put it in the back of a 

dump truck and off it went to the dump. It did not go to the mill 

for recycling. 

Now they found out after they were locked into 

this contract that they could not use the amount that they thought 

they could use. But I am told that if they got the proper 

secondary fiber handling system they could use much more and they 

would be able to - the things that are - well there were rocks, 

there was evervthing into it, they could not use it because it 

was spoiled, it had to be kept in_a good condition. ·They could 

sort it out, throw away the bad stuff, and let the good stuff 

go on thrgugh and be used. And the fact is here that a ton of this 

stuff produces nearly -well almost a ton of Linerboard. It is almost 

a one to one ration, not quite but almost a one to one. Wood itself 
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MR. MCNEIL: you have got a two to one ratio, two cords ·of 

wood per ton of Linerboard. But on this waste stuff you 

almost get a one to one ration. It is roughly I think 

ninety per cent according to the industry figures. 

NM- 2 

But here we got locked into a contract, 

without going into any capital expenditure trying to use up that 

inventory that we have and knowing that we cannot get out of 

the contract apparently was supposed to be a fair contract 

because if you could use it the company would make money. But 

~hey would not go into any capital expenditure in trying to 

set up a proper secondary fiber handling system. So as a result 

you were looking at losses, stuff transported in and then 

broyght directly to the dump. And the yard is filled with it 

down there, still down there. Now I understand this contract 

is no longer in existence. They stopped bringing it in. I hope 

they have. 

The ideas were good, trying to put in the 

secondary fiber system and trying to utilize that, that would 

be a supplement to your wood. But the proper machinery was not 

installed. Again, and it is pointed out in the·report, that if 

this proper machinery was installed well then that ~vould cut down 

some of your high operating cost. It surely would because it 

would bring down your \vood costs which is a basic thing. 

Some Linerboard mills that is all they use 

is a secondary fiber. They do not use the wood. They only go 

into 
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MR. McNEIL: the secondary fiber and when you get a 

cardboard box coming into Newfoundland and on th.e box it states 

"Because of the world shortage of Linerboard please return the 

box" that came from Europe, amazing~ Because of the world shortage 

in Linerboard or in boxes please return the box , so it is return 

box to be recycled to be used again. 

So, Mr. Speaker, -

AN HON MEMBER: (Inaudible) 

"MR. McNEIL: They need a proper screening and a few other little 
. 

things like that. It is in the Capitol Requirements Committee 

report, it is in that and it giveg the -

MR. MURPHY (Inaudible) 

MR. !-fcNEIL: No, not the proper - it was ··. rnot in there ,no. 

M.K. NEARY: I see. 

HR. McNEIL: Another thing to remember is the bark system that 

w·as put there, that ~vas established, that was put in there to utilize 

the Labrador wood . So the thing now is that we have to refine that 

machine or get another one and it is reported in the committee 

requirements that with a proper bark system we could use our bark 

to supplement our fuel, again shmving a saving in the vicinity 

of eighty per cent on our fuel. 

So all the things are there but it is going to probably take a. 

little bit more capital expenditure, a little tight ·control' which 

we seem to have nat-r, a little b.etter management~ ~..rhich we seem 

to have now, and no political interference but political encouragement 

to continue the industry the way it should be continued and promoted. 

But that is not the case, now again we are seeing political 

interference where they are giving up,they are going to close it 

down -not only destroy the industry itself but destroy human lives. 

And then they mislead the people of Newfoundland • ·They only give one 

side of the coin, they say it is going to cost just as much per 

person in order to keep Labrador Linerboard going, a S54 million 



May 10,1977 Tape 2482 (Afternoon) AH-2 

HR. McNEIL: loss, they did not say on the other side it is going 

to cost X number of dollars whether she operates or not and the 

difference is not too great as a matter of fact you may come out 

on top with a continuing operation when you look at the total 

scope of the industry and how it constitutes to our Newfoundlnnd 

economy. 

And look at it from a financial point of view, f~om the market 

place, how has the evaluation of the Canadian dollar helped us 

on the market place~ I am told that it has helped in the market 

place itself but when you look at - I understand with our bonds 

and what ~·re have out there is a great loss there because of the 

tie in·:·with the Deutsche mark or something, but I can understand 

that but that is in the past and we got to try and overcome that 

difficulty -but right nmv today. And if we utilize the marketing 

expertise that is available in Canada - even through our federal 

government, could we not step up sales? But no company is going 

to buy from Labrador Linerboard if it is in a very shaky position 

from a month to month basis and if you show a great improvement 

in your total operation in the industry whereby a management comes 

in and makes a ~..rorld of a difference - a few key management 

people. 

Mr. Speaker, I am puzzled,I really do not understand the 

reasoning behind a lot of the government decisions~ They must 

have all the information, they agreed to,-~ table the information 

in the House pertaining to Labrador Linerboard, the majority 

of it,We have got very little. They agreed from day one when 

they set up the Advisory Board to stay in clos~ contact with the 

people of the area, work ~v-ith the management and union-

i 
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MR. McNEIL: no co-operation~ They agreed to work 

with the joint councils to try to keep them close to what is going on -

nothing! Only when they want to make a drastic decision, and they 

lay it on the people, not in a gentle way, but they drop it like a 

bombshell and they drop it to all the people of the Province through 

the means of the media. And they do not speak to the people in that 

area who are firstly affected. The message is to the people of 

Newfoundland, all of the people of Newfoundland to turn them against 

the people in the Bay St. George area- play one against the other 

because they voted maybe Liberal in the last election - so they will 

be punished for their evil ways. Mr. Speaker, if that is the type of 

politics that our government is carrying on, we are in a very, very 

sad shape. 

Another example of, shall we say maybe 

gross _mismanagement at the mill level is that when the }1edieva Reefer, 

I think is the name of the ship, went aground off Stephenville, one of 

the mill management people took over total control of the situation. 

Labrador Linerboard took over as the ship's agent - I think that is 

what you refer to it as, ship's agent - so they incurred all expenses 

of the crew,- sent them back to Japan, wherever they were from. And 

Labrador Linerboard paid the shots, •· paid the shots in the amount of 

about $40,000. And I am told today that amount is still owing~ 

$40,i000 still owing to the mill, made by a management personnel stepping 

out of his ground ~~-into a situation he should not be into. Now 

granted, you know, this is going back before this past six months and the 

tightening, but this goes to show how loose management was in that area. 

Because they knew that was a government-owned mill and the governmentdid 

not care about the financial picture - lots of money, let her go. So 

they were not managing. They were just letting it go loose. And they 

could not manage because they had previous example where government was 

to interfere in some of their management decisions. When they requested 

to reduce their inventory, when they asked the government to cut back -

they wanted to cut back 40.9 per cent on their inventory - the government 

came back., the owners of the mill., said, "No, you will not cut back. 
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MR. McNEIL: You will increase it." That is political 

interference. So why would a person in a management position who is 

getting paid a nice salary - why should he care about trying to keep 

things tight and make the operation work like it should work? The 

buck did not stop with them, it was passed on to the government. 

So they let her go loose. They said if the government is not going to worry, 

why should we? And I would do the same thing if I were in their 

position. So you can not blame the people who are there. And your 

key man had no ~xperience - the president had no experience in the 

industry before. He was never a president. I do not think he was 

even a vice-president, I am not sure. And he could notmake any 

decisions totally on his own, so I am told. He always had to go back 

to his Chairman of the Board. And I can understand that, going through 

the difficult, the early start-up years. I could understand that 

maybe even going until you reach the point where you are breaking even. 

But I do not understand when the recommendations for a cut-down in 

the inventory from management because of p9or market conditions - and 

they were forecast~ they ~ere warned - and they requ~sted approval 

from the government to cut back even though it affected a few other 

people, 
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MR. MCNEIL: so maybe we should have set up this ·wood harvest:i.n~ 

corporation separately. ~~ybe that is where the government should 

have went. And that suggestion was brought forward to them by the 

hon. member Don Jamieson. And I am told that the decision was 

refused because the cost was so high, beca4se you were looking 

at a wood of $104 at that time and the figures, if I can remember 

correctly, were still up over $20 million in subsidy. But if 

the government would have said, Okay, the wood contracts,we 

will take care of that. We will make sure that they do not 

go bankrupt, go underneath,and you run the operation like you 

should, keep her tight. But they did not do that. They 

interferred. They told them. And then when you look at 

the shipping contracts, the shipping contracts in itself -

the shipping contracts,we are told, I am told, have cost our 

Newfoundland Government, or have cost Labrador Linerboard, either 

one, so much that we could have actually bought the ships. Now 

if that is the case maybe we should just ask the Marystown 

Shipyard to build us several ships to suit our purposes and 

there would be more money floating around in the Province, more 

jobs,and they would be our own ships, owned by Labrador Linerboard 

or the government. 

In the Goose Bay area we saw them close it out. 

The area~! am told 1 is dying a slow death since - well they started 

last year. They started a little bit ahead of us. We are about 

a year behind,but we are surely dying. But the government says 

We do not want to hold out any false hope. He have this guy VanBeke .. 
? -

is itr VanBeke, yes. He is going to come in and he is going 
.. 

to buy all the wood and he is going to sell it in Europe. 

AN HON. MEMBER: We never gave him any money. 

MR. MCNEIL: I never said you gave him any money. But.you 

held out a false hope again, tying him in with an operation, saying 
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MR. MCNEIL: that Mr. Van Beke will probably cushion the blow 

a little bit because he will pick up these contractors who 

are out of work, pick up these men who are out of work, give 

them jobs. 

AN HON. ~MBER: ~fuo said that? 

MR. MCNEIL: I can find press releases. I can bring them 

out. You have read the papers. You know it. Do not kid 

yourself. But today we find out that Hr. VanBeke has done 

very little, very little in order to cushion the effect that is 

happening up in Goose Bay itself. And by Spring ~vhen the Carson 

comes on stream again you are going to see the people coming 

back to the Island. They are going to leave there Why stay? 

There is no work. There is no future left there. They are 

going to come back to the Island, but what for? There is going 

to be nothing here either. So they might as well just agree 

to send them off maybe to Alberta. There are more Newfoundlanders~ 

I am told~up in Alberta right now that they are thinking of cutting 

them off. Dealing with Canada ~~npower -well anyway through 

Stephenville it is very difficult to place a Newfoundlander up 

in Alberta right now because there are so many of them up there 

that they are trying to cut off the Newfoundlanders who are 

going up, a miniature Newfoundland up in Alberta. 

But theywill realize in a few years when 

the oil runf out that they are going to have to come back maybe 

to the Island or some place again, Anft here we have a natural 

resource like our fisheries and our forestry which are continuing 

resources and we cannot make a go of it, maybe we should forget 

staying in Canada and go to Russia. 
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Mr. McNeil: 

Mr. Speaker, going back to about a year ago and 

the possibility of the Labrador Linerboard closing down, the 

supervisory personnel at Labrador Linerboard,who are competent 

people or can be when they want to be, and when they are put in 

lin.:· can be competent, __ they· put forward in The Western Star fi£ures. 

Labrador Linerboard - White Elephant or a White Mouse - in ~ig 

print in the newspaper. What they were trying to do was trying 

to ge~ across to the people the complexity of the whole operation. 

Labrador Linerboard shutdmm cost to the Newfoundland 

Government. They take in increases in social services, provincial 

portion income tax, loss of sales tax, loss of rental incorne.in 

the Newfoundland and Labrador Housing. I me~n,that is a story in 

itself the Newfoundland and Labrador Housing. An area that has 

been kicked, the government in their 1visdom kicks the people 

again. Default in government guarantees, Bay St. George municipalities, 

Bay St. George School Board. I am told that the - speaking \vi th 

the Chairman of the School Board in the Port au Port district just 

Saturday, he feels t:~1a t if Labrador Linerboard closes their school 

board will go bankrupt. They are in a situation now where they 

are seriously thinking about not opening the schools in September. 

It is that serious. They are trying to make their ends meet and 

they cannot, and now the possible closure of the whole mill operation 

it looks like they are going to be in a desperate situation and 

possibly will be going into bankruptcy. So it is going to be a 

shoot off operation; you are going to see one failure after another. 

We have the infrastructure there, we have t\vo . fantastic Dree _s_ch_oolsJ 

we have the facilities there, and now with the closure of the Linerboard 

Hill you will see ~he town population will probably be reduced to 

maybe at least three-quarters of what it is now, unless people just 

decide to stay because there ·is nowhere else to 20. 

The whole school board situation, that is dealing 

with the Port au Port School Board situation; the St~ Georges 

School Board are in a similar type situation. You are going to have 
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Mr . McNeil: 

the enrollm~nt decrease if the mill closes. You will have 

teachers leaving the area. So the whole basis of the economy 

in Bay St. George is going to go , and it is going to be felt 

not only in Bay St . George , Corner Brook, Grand Falls ,it is going 

to be felt here in St . Jonn's. The Hoard of Trade in their 

~ews pamphlets indicate that the economic future of 
- -
St . John ' s is going to be gr eatly affected indirectly by the 

closure of Labrador Linerboard . It is going to cause shock waves 

across the Province, and there is no doubt about it . They 

realize that \.rithout the rest of the Island there is very little 

in ·st. John 1 s or it ~Jill not be t he t hriving place that it is now 

because the St . John 1 s area service Western Net-Tfoundland or the 

rest of ~ewfoundland basically . 

The investment that is put into Area 13 by t he 

Ne,Jfoundland and Labrador Rousing Corporation t1ill be lost . 

It is an area they developed for future development. 
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MR. MCNEIL: !here is an area there they have spent millions 

upon millions of dollars -· on and there is not one single hotif:e 

built upon the lot. And with the closure of the Linerboard 

industry there is going to be again millions of dollars nut 

down the drain. Would it not be a better approach if the 

government tried to turn things around? 

They also go down, they quoted a few 

other areas, the area thirteen white elephant, replacement 

of Labrador Liner board ca!Jital cost, the interest, Nelvfoundland 

Hydro,'Hater Authority. I am told, the minister can correct 

me on this, $250,000 you pay federally fo r you water usage. 

$250,000 that is paid to the federal government for the commercial 

use of water. 

MR. DOODY: 

MR. HCNEIL: 

That may have been one of the old AIB water systems. 

I got somewhere in some of the information I got 

here there is an amount that is being spent and it will be continued 

to be spent lvhether it operates or not in the amount of 

S250,000 a year and that is paid to the federal government 

commercial use. 

~m. DOODY: It may be in the amortization clause report, 

I do not knmv. It is not a number I am familiar with. 

AN HON. MEMBER: That is one of the industrial water systems. 

MR. DOODY: Yes. Amortization in the industrial water 

system. 

MR. MCNEIL: And this dumpage - unused wood inventory, and 

termination of employees in their estimates - now this is only 

the advisory personnel at Labrador Linerboard, they estimate 

year one it will cost the provincial government $62 million to 

phase out, year one. And they go on for a continuing cost of 

S40 million per vear after that. And the figures that I have 

seen, that the minister put forward, they are not too far off. 

And then they go on - Can you estimate the 

cost of the following, other than the provincial government? 

Unemployment insurance, Canada pension, failure of 
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MR. MCNEIL: secondary business, personal hardship from revenue 

loss, federal portion of income tax, community breakup~ schools, 

hospitals, air travel, ship supplies, etc •. 

· Mr. Speaker, we are in a very desperate 

situation, our Province, and it is very sad when our government 

in their wisdom, are going to turn one part of the Province 

against the other. The people of Bay St. George are being 

sacrificed for political expediency, or ~vhatever reason. The 

people of Stephenville, Bay St. George area are being given a 

good kick in the pants. Why? The only reason that comes to 

mind was the fact that they voted wrong or right in the last 

election. 

The government are saying they cannot afford 

to support Stephenville any longer. But what is the government 

actually saying? The Province is gone bankrupt. ~ve cannot 

afford to keep any other community going and that one community 

is better than another. Is this what the government is saying? 

t .hat St. John 1 s is better than Corner Brook and Corner Brook 

is better than Stephenville. Is this what the government is 

saying? 

Mr. Speaker, I have go~ more information 

regarding a few other memorandums which are supposed to be 

confidential memorandums. I have not got them at my fingertips 

right here. It brings forward information pointing towards 

government interference in the total operation. It shows where 

the government has caused the situation,not totally within 

themselves but have been a major factor in causing the 

desperate situation that Labrador Linerboard is in right 

now, because of political decisions, 
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Mr. McNeil: 

not businesslike decisions, and it may put the management into 

a very bad position whereby they no longer manage, they left it 

in the hands of our government, ,.,hich -,;.;e are not concerned -,;.;ith, 

which ,,•here removed from the situation, and could not manage the 

operation anyway because they are not directly involved in it 

on a day to day operation, and you must be involved in a day to 

day operation in order to do a good job. 

I could go on maybe a little longer and give 

PK - 1 

more information, pertinent information regarding the whole operation. 

But I felt I have taken quite a bit of time in speaking both this 

morning and this afternoon. I feel that our government has made 

a wrong decision. I feel that they can,if they want to take the 

bull by the horns,turn things ar~:und. They have the co-operation 

from eve~yone in this House, and particularly from this side of 

the House. He have tried to encourage the government to stay in 

there, to build the operation, turn it around. Hhat more can you 

do? And I do not want to reduce the debate dmm to a level '"hereby 

we are making personal accusations against one another. 

So maybe I should rely on my memorandums, my 

cold facts 1 to state it as I have it and pass it on, and not to try to 

make any judgments. I have tried not to do so. I have more information 

and I hope that other members will, particularly on my side of the 

House, speak on Linerboard. \~en I collect the information I will 

give it to them and they can probably bring the inforP.ation fo~vard. 

And I do hope that our Premier -,;.;ill say a few words, and maybe bring 

to light some new information, if I am wrong,to straighten me out. 

But I want to see the facts as they are, and I -,;.;ould like to see them_ 

tabled. I think that our Ner11foundland people have been misled long 

enough, and they should be told the full story, the full story 

SmfE RON • HEMBERS: Hear, ·hear! 

MR. MCNEIL: .. not half. 
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Hr. McNeil: 

Mr. Speaker, in concluding my remarks,the last time 

I spoke in the House was before the Budget, and I did say in a joking 

manner that my knees were wore out from praying. But if I thought 

that there was any w;r.y that ou'r government would listen and try to 

have compassion in their hearts and· understanding for the people 

of Newfoundland in the direction we are going.,! would definitely 

get down on my knees and stay on my knees to make sure that things 

would happen in a positive direct way for the betterment of this 

Province. Because as I see it now, and the information that I have 

before me, and I do feel strongly in my heart that we are drifting 

downwards fast, ~~ that if we are goirig to change anything it has 

to be done now, not tomorrow,not with some other project,it has to 

be done now and it has to be done with the Linerboard project 

SOME RON. MEMBERS: Hear, hear! 

MR. MCNEIL: - because it can be a viable operation. 

SOME HON. MEMBERS : Rear, hear! 

I 
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MR. SPEAKER: The han Minister of Justice. 

MR. HICKMAN: Thank you, Mr. Speaker.I would just . like to make 

a very few comments on matters raised by hon.gentlemen opposite, 

in particular the hon.gentleman from Eagle River and the han. 

gentleman from Stephenville. 

May I first say in response to the main thrust of the speech 
r -- - · - . --- - . - . --

from the han. gentleman from Stephenville that particularly this 

morni~g I felt he articulated very well indeed the concerns,arid 

the justifiable concerns, the understandable concerns of the people 

who he represents in this House. The reason, Mr. Speaker, for the 

motion, the way that this motion was framed,was to try and get 

aw.ay from partisan debate when dealing ~11ith what in my opinion 

is one of the most serious of soul wrenching issues that have 

come before this legislature in a long time. But such has not 

occured~ I have been sitting here and I have listened to accusations 

that really are not worthy of response. 

Bay St. George is being made the sacrificial lamb because it 

voted liberal; That is not the kind of statements that I would 

expect to hear when what ~11e are struggling and what ~11e are seeking 

to do under this resolution is to find ~vays and means to rectify 

problems that ~.;ere not of this administration.' s making. Mr. Speaker, 

may I direct - and going back over history will not get us very 

far and it is not very revelent and I see no point in really going back 

bey·ond the debate that took place in 1972. 

But may I say, may I remind han. gentlemen opposite that in 

1972 when the bill was brought before this legislature to set 

up a Crown Corporation to take over what ~.;as then the defunct 

construction of the mill,that there was not one opposing voice 

in this legislature. Andi have Hansard and everyone voted for it 

and supported it. 

MR. NEARY: There was one opposing voice. 

MR. • HI CI0-1"..AJ.'l' : There was not one opposing voice.The hon.gentleman 

from LaPoile did not participate in the debate. 

I 
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MR. NEARY: The hon gentleman from LaPoile did participate in 

the debate. 

MR. HIC~~: The hon gentleman from LaPoile, Mr. Speaker, 

on bvo days 'I and the debate lasted for t1vo days . and I have Hansard, 

May 4th and }fay 5th., the only time the hon gentleman from LaPoile 

th~t 'I can see here was on his feet,' was when he rose on May 5th 

to support a petition presented by Mr. T.M. Doyle on behalf of 

the people of Gallows Cove,and he supported another petition by 

Mr. Leo Barry on behalf of the people of North Harbour and he 

supported a petition that was brought in by Mr. E.S. Thoms on behalf 

of the people of the Glovertown area. No'tv I may be missing a 

Hansard but the debate -

HR. NEARY: I am afraid you are,because I -

MR. HICKMAN: -opened on May 4th and closed late in the evening on 

Hay 5th, and if the hon gentleman can find ~vhere he made a speech 

and if he 1-rill direct it to my attention I will be more than happy 

to correct the record. 

MR. NEARY: The hon.gentleman talked about the hate campaign that 

was that was being carried on by the administration, and do you 

not remember the witch hunts? 

MR. HICK:MAN: --- All this silly nonsense of running away from the 

issue and running al;vay from ~vhat ~.;e have to determine.,about hate 

campaigns - if Mr. John Crosbie -

MR. NEARY: You were on a big witch hunt at the time. 

MR.. HICIOfA.T\1 : If Mr. John Crosbie wanted to conduct a hate campaign 

against the former Premier of this Province~all he had to do was say that 

there is $170 million~or 1vhatever it was ~sunk into the Linerboard 

mill, it is half finished and let us cut our losses and get out, .And 

he had at that time most assuredly the endorsement and the full 

support of the people of this Province,and that is the way- if 

there was any hatred- but on the contrary, Mr Speaker, with the 



Hay 10,1977 Tape 2488 (Afternoon) AH-3 

}.!R. HI CIO"A""l' : 

support __ of this House thj s government decided to embark -

MR. NEARY: Is that not the year they sent the RC~~ over to 

raid his house on Roachs Line. 

MR. HICKMAN: to embark upon the - to embark, ':!r. Speaker upon the 

awsom _jobof trying to complete, to try to complete the construc~ion 

of the Linerboard mill and to try and get it in operation. 

Now, Mr. Speaker, I do hope when the hon.gentleman from Port au 

Port gets up he will give us some positive, some positive ways 

in which this rill can be made viable, you know. 

AN HON. MEHBER: (Inaudible) 

~!R. HICKHA,~: Oh no, Hr. Speaker, oh no we did not,Hr. Speaker, 

we did not. Whatwe heard, Mr. Speaker, and I \vill come into that 

in a minute - let ~e get back to where I was before. After that 

the people of this Province managed to invest a total,- including 

what was there hefore,of $236 milion into the Linerboard operation 

to provide employment in the Bay St. George area. No one can argue, 

there is no conceivable t.ray that anyone can argue that this was 

done as a pure,cold-hearted business proposition 

I 
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MR. HICKMAN: because, Mr. Speaker, there was no real -

in my opinion - firm recommendation as a result of any feasibility 

studies that have been done prior to that which would warrant that 

kind of business decision. The economics were against it. The 

E and B Cowan Report was based solely upon the black spruce harvesting 

in Labrador. Yet everything said, that mill canngt op~rate on that. 

There is no way that it can operate. You may say the government was 

imprudent in going ahead from 1972 on and in completing this project 

and continuing to pick up the losses after. Now, Mr. Speaker, the han. 

gentleman who said to han. gentlemen, 'You are subsidizing ERCO to the 

tune of $5 million or $6 million a year. Why do you not subsidize the 

Linerboard mill?' Now if we have not been subsidizing- if the people 

of this Province have not been subsidizing the Linerboard mill, there 

has been nothing in this Province ever subsidized. True, we have not 

subsidized electricity. But picking up losses of $21 million and 

$34 million,no matter how you look at it, no matter how you turn it 

around, is a subsidy. It comes out of the taxpayers' money- pocket. 

Now, Mr. Speaker, far be it from me to 

say anything that is anything but complimentary about a gentleman named 

Sweeney who was sought out by the Advisory Board and with the concur­

rence of government, made a member by government of that Advisory Board 

and also given a managerial position - a first-class man doing an excellent 

job, He has been reported in the press as saying that he believes that that 

mill can be made viable. And I hope he is right, Mr. Speaker. I hope 

Mr. Sweeney is right. I hope that he can demonstrate beyond doubt,. and 

he does not have to go that far beyond doubt -

MR. NEARY: 

MR. HICKMAN: 

Why do you not let him come into the· -House?­

I hope, Mr. Speaker, that he can demonstrate, 

not to me, not to the government, not to the House - because what he 

demonstrates to us - he is only wasting his time trying to ~ 

MR. NEARY: (Inaudible) 

MR. HICKMAN: demonstrate it to us. I want him to demonstrate 

it first to his Advisory Committee~who all hands agree, are very compete~t 

people -

SOME RON. MEMBERS Oh, oh! 
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MR. NEARY: You are trying to -

MR. HICKMAN: That is what I want, Mr. Speaker. And 

secondly, I would hope that he can convince industry, because let the 

redord show, Mr. Speaker, that if any reputable company in Canada would 

like to take over the Linerboard mill we will crawl out to their doors and 

we will aid them and abet them provided they give some protection to the 

taxpayers of this Province, -

MR. NEARY: Paul will be here -

MR. HICKMAN: Without any hesitancy -

MR. NEARY: And not Paul Revere either. 

MR. HICKMAN: at all, Mr. Speaker. No question about it. 

MR. NEARY: Paul Demarais. 

MR. HICKMAN: And I would hope that they will do it. And 

this is - you know, it is very essential, Mr. Speaker, that when you get an 

issue like this that is debated in the Legislature. 

But it is also very essential, Mr. Speaker, 

that when you are dealing with an asset that has been valued by hon. 

gentlemen opposite,and I suspect it was based on figures provided during 

the briefing session, an asset that is _val.ued_at $300 million, it is veey 

essential that in our enthusiasm to condemn the government we do not sell 

that asset short. Because, Mr. Speaker, with the history of that mill, and 

with the obvious cost of harvesting the wood that is necessary for that mill 

to run, we are going to need a super salesman's job . in order to find someone 

who is prepared to take over that asset. And knocking it certainly will 

not help in the sale thereof. 

AN HON. MEMBER: · What is the wood cost? 

MR. HICKMAN: Now, Mr. Speaker -

AN HON. MEMBER: $50 a cord is one argument. 

MR. HICKMAN: Mr. Speaker, the report of the Advisory Board: 

everybody agrees this Advisory Board there has been no. suggestion that 

they are anything but competent, dedicated Canadians who know the business 

and who are using their very best efforts to see if there can be any 

conceivable way that the mill can continue iri production. 
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HR. HICKMAN: 

..Bu t.... let-me read the conclusion- of these gentlemen. 

And these were conclusions arrived at, ~r. Speaker, after they 
- - - - ·- --- -- - - - - ·-- - -

received their confidential reports from two of their advisory 

groups. And a member of this Committee, may I point out, 

is Mr. Sweeney. 

Conclusion: . the Board can only conclude that under 

present conditions the company is not a viable linerboard operation 

and the Board cannot recommend continuing operations in their 

present form.11 
• 

~~ RON. MEMBER: In their present form. 

SOME RON. "1-IEMBERS: Oh, oh! 

MR. RIC~~: Now, Mr. Speaker -

}ffi. NEARY: That is pretty fancy figure skating. 

SOME RON. MEMBERS: Oh, oh! 

MR.. RICI<HAI.'l : l'r. Speaker, there is their first recommendation. 

In order for the government to ignore that recommendation the 

government has to go and find a massive sum of money. 

MR. NEARY: Well they did not say -

MR. HICKMAN: No matter how you look at it the government has 

to go and find a massive sum of money this year, $54.8 million. 

Now you can talk about - you know, you can get politically 

partisan or politically petty and say, the only reason why the 

government cannot borrow this other $54.8 million is because of 

mismanagement of the finances of the Province by the Moores Administration. 

AN RON. MEHBER: That is right. 

SOME RON. HEMBERS: Hear, hear! 

MR. RICKHAN: But I 

SOME HON. MEMBERS: Hear, hear! 

MR. HICKMAN: Mr. Speaker, during the time when the Moores 

Administration has been putting more money, more of the Province's 

fiscal resources, more of the borrowed money into linerboard than 

any one single part of our economy, I never heard anyone get up 

then and say, Stop. Stop. Do not put any more money into the 

Linerboard Mill,you are mismanaging the finances of the Province. 
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Mr. Hickman: 

I never heard anybody say .that is $75 million compared to $232 

million. 

MR. NEARY: You spent $75 million for -

MR. HICKM.AJ.\7: I did not hear anybody cream mismanagement, Mr. 

PK - 2 

Speaker. There was no scream of mismanagement., financial management 

from the government, on the part of the government of the day. 

Mr. Speaker, the Advisory Board has said that they 

are prepared to work and will continue to work with the provincial 

government in its dealings with the federal government or any other 

interested parties in completing these reviews. 

MR. NEARY: Do not blame it on Otta~va. 

MR • HI Ci.OOJ.'i' : And this is what it is all about, Mr. Speaker. 

NR. NEARY: Do not blame it on Ottawa. 

MR. HI CKMlu'J: We are not blaming it on Ottawa. We went to Ottawa. 

Vle met with Ottawa. They had the -

rffi. NEARY: That is not what Jack Marshall says. 

MR. HICKMAN: - they had the -

AN RON. MEMBER: Industry Trade and Commerce. 

MR. HICKMAl'J: Pardon. 

AN HON. MEMBER: Industry Trade and Commerce. 

HR. RICKHAN: That was Indus try Trade and Commerce. 

MR. NEARY: Jack Marshall is fed up. 

AN RON. MEMBER: (Inaudible.) 

MR. HIC~·Uill: And the Minister of Industry Trade and Commerce 

and the Minister of Finance got together their senior economist, 

worked on it; then I was with part of a delegation who met with. 

several ministers of the Crovm ten days later or two weeks later, 

and it was not for lack of sympathy, it certainly was not for lack 

of understanding on the part of the Government of Canada. They 

simply said, The economics of it just does not justify our making that 

kind of fiscal commitment that you need and that you are asking for 

in order to keep this mill going at this time. That is all, you know. 

SOME RON. MEMBERS : Oh, oh! 

:1-ffi. NEARY: {fuo made that statement? 



May 10, 1977 

MR. HICKMAN: 

MR. NEARY: 

MR. HODDER: 

MR. HICKMA .. ~: 

MR. HODDER: 
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And I say , Mr. s~~~~~~· 

Who was the minister made that statement? 

Would the hon. gentleman permit a question? 

Yes, sure. 

When you went to Industry, Trade and Commerce 
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did you go with a concrete proposal? Did you ask them for certain 

specific things, like with a plan, or did you just go to ask to be 

bailed out? 

MR. HICIO-fAN: We went - and that was the first meeting - but 

my understanding is and I am sure because the hon. Minister of 

Finance said it yesterday- we went to the Government of Canada 

and said, Here is what we have been doing to try and keep this 

mill going. Here is the position we find ourselves in now. 

That ~.;re need -

MR. MCNEIL: Bail us out. 

MR.. HI CKMAl.'l' : - as front end loading. 

MR. MCNEIL: Bail us out. 

MR. HICKMAN: Yes,bail us out. Bail us out. ~fuat is so wrong 

about that? What is so wrong , is not that what Confederation is all 

about that when the provinces are less affluent than t!e others. 

It would be no trouble for Alberta to bail out an industry by 

whacking out another cheque for $30 million. No trouble at all. 

But you go and you say, Look,here is what we have done over the 

past number of years- they had a pretty good idea an~.;ray, because 

there ~.;ere some Dree monies ~vent into it about three years ago. 

MR. HODDER: .... money in there. 

HR. HIC~..AN: Are you prepared to get us over this. hurdle by . 

making an ad hoc grant of $30 million. 

~1R. CANNING: 

l1R. HI CIOfAN : 

It ~vas a mess we made. 

That is a bail out request. Not an unreasonable one, 

one that -.!as received very sympathetically by Ottawa, one that Ottawa 

did not find to be unusual. But obviously being prudent they had to 

do some of their own studies and they came to the conclusion that they 

could not do it. So let me repeat, 
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MR. HICK_~: nooody is blaming Ottawa at all. No one is 

blaming Ottawa,and _as I say we have had nothing but first 

class co-operation from them-and we will continue to get it 

if we can find any - or the Advisory Board or Committee can 

find any viable manner in which to kee? that mill open. 

MR. NEARY: When was this request made of the Minister 

of Industry, Trade and Commerce? 

MR.. STRACHA..""l: The correspondence? 

AN RON. MEMBER: It was made two weeks ago. 

MR. HICKMAN: That _is right. It was a provincial problem. 

MR.· NEARY: When the decision was made to shut her down -

MR. HICKMAN: It was a provincial problem. 

AN HON. MEMBER: It was a provincial problem four years ago. 

MR. CANNING: 

MR.. HI CKHA .. "I\l: 

That was a provincial probla~ _for years now. 

You know, Mr. Speaker, I have been · listening 

very carefully to the arguments that have been advanced opposite. 

The han. member for Eagle River (Mr. Strachan) made a statement 

that I cannot take issue with. 1:e says a government should not 

be in business anyway. The government,and government. - not 

the Government of Newfoundland, I agree that no government can 

run a business as well as free enterprise. 

~. NEARY: Well how come you took over the Churchill 

Falls Corporation? 

AN RON. MEMBER: How about Brinco. 

MR.. HICKMAN: Because it is a Brinco decision, as any 

fool knows, as any half wit knows, the Brinco decision, the 

development of our hydro resources, t~e control of our 

hydro resou.rces traditionally has been in the hands of the 

government as representatives of consumers throughout Canada. 

SOME RON. MEMBERS : Oh, oh ~ 

HR. HICKMAN: Mr. Speaker, if the hon. gentlemen opposite 

are genuinely concerned about finding a way to make the Labrador 

Linerboard mill turn aroundL as opposed to making political points, 
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MR. HICKMAN: then I would suggest, Mr. Speaker, that we should 

direct our attention to Labrador Linerboard mill and let 

Churchill Falls Power Corporation or some other industries 

in this Province stand on their own feet at this time. 

But, Mr. Speaker, no one can argue that the 

Government of Newfoundland, if it has any sense of fiscal 

responsibility at all, in the light of the preliminary report 

of the Committee, had no ~~oice but to take the decision that 

it did take. N6~-1 I anticipatecC it. I am sure everyone in 

Newfoundland anticipated it. Hon. gentlemen opposite will 

get up a11<.fjay, "You should not shut down the mill." That is 

easy, oversimplification, taking a couple of preliminary 

confidential reports that were submitted to the Advisory Committee, 

and :~~!i?~sly were not accepted by the Advisory Committee~again 

does not answer the ouestion. It only begs the question. 

I agree that ~.;e have., particularly in the 

last few months under the leadership of Mr. Sweeney,seen a 

change in morale and we have seen built up~ and again, you krow, 

because of excellent programmes that have been implemented,during 

the past four or five years in the Bay St. George area we have 

built up a very strong work force. 

Nm.r, Mr. Speaker, you~_knmv no matter how 

partisan you are politically there is no one - you know,I hope 

nobody seriously argues that anyone on this side of the House 

takes some delight in having to see that Linerboard mill closed. 

The easiest thing, if you ~.;ant to be politically popular in 

the short term, the Province might be in serious financial 

difficulties after, but if you want to be politically · porular 

keep her going, keep lashing out another $52 million or 

$54 million. 

You lost the money anyway already. 

MR. NEARY: If your financial advisers would allow you 

you would -



May 10, 1977 Tape No. 2491 NM- 3 

MR.. HICKMAN: We have not lost the money, Mr. Speaker, because 

if you use some of the arguments that have been coming from 

across the House we ha~e_generated employment in that area for 

the last five years. So that 1-1as not a total loss of money, 

not by any stretch of the imagination. ~Vhat we have done, 

Mr. Speaker, is put in $236 million of the taxpayers money 

in Newfoundland and we have a report from an agreed upon 

'c-ompatent advisory committee which says that they estimate 
• ·- -=. - -

the Province will be required to supply approximately $180 million 

of additional funds to sustain operations. 

MR. NEARY: Well did they recommend you shut her dmvn? 

XR. HICKMAN: That is what we are facing, Mr. Speaker. 

MR. MCNEIL: They did not recommend shut her down. 

MR. HICK}~N: They certainly did. 

MR. NEARY: They certainly did not. 

MR. HICKMAN: The board can only conclude with under present 

conditions this company is not a viable Linerboard operation 

the Board cannot recommend continuing operations in their 

present form. 

MR. NEARY: In their present form? 

MR. HICKMAN: Right. Now you know we are playing with lvords, 

Mr. Speaker. 

MR. NEARY: No we are not. 

MR. HICKMAN: We certainly are. What ~ve are saying, Mr. Speaker, 

is this,and may I repeat, that this Committee and this Advisory 

Board and Mr. Sweeney and everyone else still has six months 

grace to show that this mill is viable. If it is viable, if 

the mill is viable, if the market conditions improve- as we have 

been told they will, you know -

~. MCNEIL: You have just destroyed what is out there now. 

(Inaudible) close her. 

MR. HODDER: $50 a cord it dropped on the markets. 

SOME RON. }lliMBERS: Oh, oh! 

1'-T- . SPEAKER: Order, please~ 
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MR. MORGAN: Xr. Speaker, on a point of order. Mr. Speaker, 

today we listened on this side of the House of Assembly 

without any interruption that I can recall this afternoon-

SOME HON. MEMBER: Oh, oh! 

NM- 4 
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MR. SPEAKER: Order, please! 

MR. MORGAN: We listened very attentively to the hon. 

gentleman from Stephenville (Mr. McNeil) who made a very 

good speech. We listened very closely in fact, most of 

us did and we listened without interruption. I would ask 

that the same courtesy be now given to the hon. Y~nister of 

Justice while he is speaking in the same debate. 

MR. STRACHAN: To that point of order, Mr. Speaker. 

MR.. SPEAKER : The han. member for Eagle River. 

MR. STRACHAN: The han. member for Stephenville requested 

si~ence. I did not hear the han. Minister of Justice request 

silence and at the same time the hon. minister was getting into 

debate with people across the House and was almost requesting 

the kind of crossfire that he got. 

HR. SPEAKER: There can be no doubt about the validity of 

the rule as stated by the hon. Minister of Transportation and 

Communications. Every hon. gentleman has a right to speak 

without interruption. The point in enforcing it comes to 

the extent that the hon. minister wishes that right observed. 

But there is no doubt that that is the rule and hon. members 

should not ir fact be interrupted. 

The hon. Minister of Justice. 

MR. RIC~: I thank the han. gentleman, Mr. Speaker, for 

the concern for my safety. 

Mr. Speaker, there has been considerable 

debate in this House today about political interference. Now that 

is sort of a two-edged sword,is it not? This legislature accepted 

a -bill that was brought into this House in 1972 authorizing 

the acquisition of the - or the takeover: to protect the guarantees 

we had already given, to finish the job to take over the Labrador 

Linerboard mill and to raise monies by taxes and borrowing to 
I 

complete it. 

I 
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MR. HICKM'AN: That is our responsibility. That is government's 

responsibility. Every nickel that went into that mill is government's 

res~onsibility. I would love to hear what the argument would 

be if we said, "Here we are, here is the manager, here is the 

Board, here is a blank cheque, you can go up to $200 million or 

whatever the amount was that was set by the Legislature in the 

bill that was brought in. We wish you luck. Whatever you do, 

do not let her close down and give us a report once a year 

and we will table it in the House." 

AN HON. MEMBER: 

}1R •. HICKMAN : 

Hypothetical. 

Hypothetical? It is not hypothetical at all, 

Mr. Speaker. How many times when there has been rumours and 

~roblems there, start ups and strikes and shut downs, how many 

times? The question comes from the opposite side of the House 

to the hon. the Minister of Finance in his capacity as 

Chairman of the Board. 

What do you think the cry would have been 

if he had gotten up and said, "That is a Crmvn corporation, 

I do not want to interfere in the management in any way. I 

do not want to know what is going on." We would have been 

abdicating our duty,and it is something worth remembering when 

questions are asked about other Crown corporations that are 

also operating like Hydro and Marystown Shipyard. I think 

we should try the next time saying ,we cannot tell the House 

that because that is being operated by a separate corporation. 

I would suggest, Mr. Speaker, that there will be a great deal 

of hue and cry from across the House. 

Now, Mr. Speaker, in these political decisions, 

the hon. the Leader of the Opposition yesterday placed a great 

deal of emphasis on this sentence. "The terms of reference of 

this Board do not include an analysis of the social implications 

of the adoption of a particular course of action." That is 

on the second last paragraph of the Advisory Board's report of 

April 25, 1977. And he said, "It is a cold business decision." 
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MR.. HICKMllN: These are businessmen. They have got nothing 

to do, no respon~ib.ility for the social welfare of the 

Province. This is not part of their terms of reference. That 

is the responsibility of the government, 'Tou know. And he 

is right. That is the responsibility of the government. It 

is the responsibility of the government when we are responsible 

for spending huge sums of money that we are spending with the 

authorization of this Legislature to see to it that some of 

these social responsibilities are discharged. 

Now that is the official position of 

the. Opposition, becat,~se obviously the Leader of the Opposition 
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Mr. Hickman: 

in his capacity as Leader articulates without question the views, 

the position of ·the Opposition. If he does not do it he should 

not be there. 

But then, Mr. Speaker, han. gentleman today, the 

han. gentleman' opposite from Stephenville (Mr. McNeil)., has been 

reading recommendations;a confidential memorandum to the Executive 

Council from the then Minister of Intergovernmental Affairs, Mr. 

Crosbie, and also some statements in a memorandum from Mr. Crosbie's 

Executive Assistant, I do not know which one it was, but that is 

not relevant, I assume he was a man of some expertise in the 

Linerboard Industry, saying, You must cut your inventory. And 

the Government of Newfoundland when it came to them, because there 

is where you get into the social impact, the Government of Newfoundland 

says,If we cut the inventory according to the hon. gentlemen from 

Stephenville (Mr. McNeil) ~•e are going to put a large number of 

wood contracts, small·. wood contractors ,with the resultant unemployment 

into bankruptcy. 

MR. MCNEIL: Some of them are in bankruptcy nm.;. 

MR. HICKMAN: And we opted -

SOME HON. MEMBERS: Oh, oh! 

MR. HICKMAN: We opted, Mr. Speaker, to say, not just for that 

reason only, to say, No,honour your contracts. 

cutting of the 46,500 cords of wood. 

Do not stop the 

MR. MCNEIL: There 'was· 'an electioncoming on.- -

MR. HICKMAN: Are we to be faulted for that? Are ~•e to be 

faulted because we said no , ~.;e will do our damnes t to try and .. 

avoid a shutdown of the Hawkes Bay Mill. Because if we had 

used that cold~business decision-making process -

MR. MCNEIL: 

HR. HICKMAN: 

implications. 

MR. MCNEIL: 

...• election. 

- then we would have forgecten about the social 

But we did not do it. 

No,but you were worrying about election .. 
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SOME RON. ME}ffiERS: Oh, oh! 

MR. HICKMAJ.'l': Mr. Speaker, there are other reasons. I checked 

to find out some· of the reasons why that decision was made other 

than social reasons. We had binding, or thecmill di~, contracts 

with these operators. So are we going to close them down and 

be .·faced with lawsuits for breaches of contract? If the contract 

is a binding one the mill is going to have to pay .anyway. And if 

the mill pays the contractors,without the wood they are even worst 

off than if had paid it for the ~.;rood, you know. 

MR. HODDER: What about the soft market? 

MR. HICKMAN: But, Mr. Speaker, secondly -

.MR. HODDER: ~at about the soft market? 

HR. HICIQ1AN: I would love to see a contract for soft market. 

SOME RON. MEMBERS: Oh, oh~ 

MR. HICKMAN: You knm.;r, Mr. Speaker, if I may be permitted, 

I suppose I am going to have to ask fo~ p~otection, so I can get it -

may I say, you know, that sort of response again runs away from, evades 

the issue. That is not the kind of request, that is not the kind 

of determination, the kind of determined effort that the people in 

the union, and the people who are in that mill today and who have 
' 

during the past t1vo or three months responded to the admonitions in 

the leadership of 'Mr. Sweeney YTant. What they want, and what they 

are saying to us, and very properly so, and what we are saying to them, 

and ~vhat we are saying to this Legislature, and very properly so , 

arid why that resolution was drafted the ~vay it was :give us your 

ideas. You know, do not get up and say, there is a cost benefit 

analysis, and look at social insurance or UIC payments, and welfare 

costs, and say if you add it all up it is better to keep on going 

and whacking out millions of dollars to pick up losses .. That just 

does not make sense. Anyone knows that no Province that has to borrow 

in order to meet and provide the social amenities of this Island 

and Labrador can continue to do that with that kind of philosophy. 

I have yet to hear anyone on either side of this House who_ receives 

a petition for water and sewerage, for highway building or pavement 
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Mr. Hiclanan: 

or schools or anything else get up and say, Mr. Speaker, I had a-~~ti}ion 

here from my constituents. I will lay it on the table of the House 

but I am not prepared to support it because I know that the 

government has got to take that money and put it into resource 

development,or it llas got to meet the needs of the tinerboard Mill. 

I never heard it said. 

I remember one petition that came in here this 

year where they wanted to builrl a causeway to a graveyard. 

AN RON. MEMBER : (Inaudible). 

MR.. HICKMAN: A causeway to a graveyard. Now, you know, this 

has got nothing to do with respect for the dead. But I do submit, 

Mr. Speaker, that it should not take that priority status that 

those who supported that petition that day attributed to it, 
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MR. HICKMAN: you know. 

MR. NEARY: No, no! Spend it on -

MR. HICKMAN: Now, Mr. Speaker -

MR. NEARY: The foolish Norma and Gladys, 

MR. HICKMAN: If hon. gentlemen are prepared to get up 

and say the $20 million or $30 million that you are going to borrow this 

year to put into highway construction and paving and that you are going 

to put into schools and that you are going to put into other social 

amenities that the people of this Province demand and want and are 

entitled to as Canadians. -

AN RON. MEMBER: (Inaudible.) 

MR. HICKMAN: - or to build hospitals - if they say, 'All 

of that should go by the board -we are united', all fifty-one members 

will stand and say, 'Do not spend any of that money. Whatever you do, 

do not spend any of that money. Go to your colleague, the hon. Minister 

of Fisheries, and tell him that that thrust he wants to give that 

resource area this year is going to have to be put to one side. And 

we will go out -

MR. NEARY: 

MR. HICKMAN: 

MR. NEARY: 

MR. HICKMAN: 

SOME RON. MEMBERS : 

AN HON. MEMBER: 

MR. HICKMAN: 

No; no! 

Right. 

(Inaudible) 

All right. And we will go out -

Oh, oh! 

- Roads, paving -

All right. Roads, paving - but you know, 

why stop there now? Because what we have been hearing today is, you know, 

the government is financiallymi.smanaging this Province-. 

AN HON. MEMBER: (Inaudible) 

MR. HICKMAN: But if you are going to have to crack down, 

you are going to have to crack down on it all. And we will go down on the 

wharf in Frenchman's Cove, and we will stand on the wharf, and we will 

face the fishermen, and we will look them straight in the eye and say, 

'Sorry, boys - not this year • This is not partisan beca,tse I am Liberal, 

he is Tory, and we are both standing together on this. Not a nickel, not 
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MR. HICKMAN: a nickel. And·that road that you want 

paved - around the Loop Road on the Burin Peninsula - I will come down 

together with the hon. member for LaPoile (Mr. Neary) and we will stand 

there and say, 'No - can not do it. -

AN RON. MEMBER: · 

MR. HICKMAN: 

DREE money - · 

AN RON. MEMBER: 

MR. HICKMAN: 

Not a penny. Not a cent.' 

DREE money. 

'Not going to do it. Not a nickel of 

Not a cent. Not a sou. Not a nickel. 

AN RON. MEMBER: - Road? 

MR. HICKMAN: No, no. The Loop Road·- the Loop Road on 

the Burin Peninsula in the district of the Grand Bank, I am talking about, 

you know. 

AN RON. MEMBER: Being paved? 

MR. HICKMAN: Yes, being paved this year - an area that 

has contributed a great deal in the resource development of this Province 

for generations and has never been recognized. You know, I have no trouble 

defending it, Mr. Speaker, no trouble at all. So what I am saying is, let 

us not speak with forked tongues, Mr. Speaker. If we say that the Province 

of Newfoundland is being fiscally maladministered, let us be prepared to 

get up and confess all our sins and say, I the Liberal member for such and 

such a district contributed to it, because I am demanding that there 

be water and sewerage put into a town when I know ~~~t that town, no 

matter how much it needs it, cannot possibly pay : its share ~·o 

sustain the loan that goes in there. Let us be prepared to say it. 

But, Mr. Speaker, that is still begging the issue. The simple fac·t 

that we cannot escape, Mr. Speaker, - and these are the figures now, 

these are not the figures of public servants. These are the figures 

of the advisory board of very, very competent businessmen. I know that 

they took some financial advice·from, I would hope from fiscal advisors. 
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MR.. HICKMAN : 

How else can you deal with finances if you do not turn to the only 

people who understand them? The fiscal advisors, who else are you 

going to turn to? But, Mr. Speaker, if you look at table one it 

would break your heart, $54.8 million, $38.4 million, $24.6 million. 

Now deduct from that, Mr. Speaker, the cost· of shuting down - not 

the cost of shuting down, the cost of meeting our debt requirements, 

and you still wind up with a staggering amount that is beyond the 

fiscal capacity of this Province. Now, Mr. Speaker, I suspected 

most of us here has the experience, the rather traumatic occurence 

when we saw that programme on CBC recently of the - you know, it has 

been referred to in this debate - of the Newfoundlanders who have moved 

to Fort McMurray in Alberta. And they were not all from Come By Chance. 

And they were not all from the Bay St. George area. In fact, Mr. Speaker, 

the disturbing thing was, and I found this even more disturbing, but 

they were interviewing people from the city of Wabush and Labrador 

City who said that up to the day they left their Province they were 

in high paying jobs. And they moved to another section of Northern 

Canada for jobs of similar income. And running through that whole 

interview - you know, I cannot remember being more depressed. You 

look around and you: say what are you doing in government, what are 

you doing in politics,when you see that kind of thing where we have 

spending now since 1949, 
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MR. HICKMAN: taking chances, philosophies that some were 

acceptable~some were not acceptable,but we have tried them all and 

then you have a man from Habush~ _ the city of Wabush saying, ''I 

left because there is no future in Newfoundland for my children'.' 

And he did not talk about the ~9or~~goJernro~~t or the 

Smalhrood government ,he talked about the governments; he said 

the governments made a mistake, they put money into Come by Chance 

and Stephenville - I heard him into Linerboard and the oil 

refinery. 

MR. NEARY: - What have you done to bring her around? 

MR. HICn~~: Now this man was not an economist, this man did 

not know anything about a cost benefit study, this was a hard-

working,skilled Newfoundlander who had come to the conclusion 

that our efforts in that direction where we are trying to base 

an industry on something more than a resource is just 

MR..· NEARY: Were you paying -

~ffi. HIC~~: It is just something more than a resource, something 

that is not totally oriented to the kind of resource development 

that Ne~vfoundland lends itself to. 

..A~! RON MEHBER: Come on! 

~. HICJ.Of.AN: This is \vhat he said, we heard him, you know, 

everybody heard him .Thisis why I say that it was a very depressing 

programme, an exceptionally depressing programme - to me it was, 

It has been tried, you know,you cannot compare the pessimism that 

has emenated in this Rouse tod~v that Newfoundland is all gone, 

it is not warranted~because they say if this resource based industry 

cannot recover and cannot be sustained, then what can? Well. nm-1, 

Hr. Speaker, let us make no mistake about.It Price Brothers,~.rh"o 

incidentallr·the chairman of the board is a lawyer,. Frank Ryan Q.C., · 

the same qualifications as Mr. Crosbie - enough of experience 

in the wood industry -

MR. SHALL HOOD: He is not running the show. 
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MR. HICKMAN: He goes to his monthly meetings and he chairs 

the meetings. 

MR. SMALLHOOD: He is not running the sho~.;r. 

MR. HIC~1: Decides on policy on policy, Mr. Speaker. The 

future of Bowater mill and the future of Price mill~ 

peper mills~in my opinion is sound and we should not write them 

off and say that Stephenville proves -

Al.'l RON }!EMBER: The budworm will fix that. 

MR. HICKMA..N': That Stephenville proves that you cannot - look, 

do not be so anxious and so optimistic that the budworm will 

shut down Newfoundland. The bud,.;rorm is not going to shut down 

anything. 

MR. SIMMONS: The political bud~vorm,1'Frank! 

MR. NEARY: Shut her down,boy! 

MR. HICK}LA\:.'l: You know, Hr. Speaker, the hon. gentlemen opposite, 

I can hear them now . . They trill be on radio or they ,.;rill be on 

television and they will be w;ringin~ their hands and th~v will 

be talking about the Moores administration,but they will not 

get up and tell the people that~you know~we are making great 

political points . Politics are ~.;rhat we are concerned about here. 

If we can get the Moores administration on the run over this, 

boy,that is great, that is great for the Liberal party~ Hhy 

do they not just get up and tell us, you know, not just clutch 

a confidential report that went to a committee as part of their 

studies - wnich obviously the committee did not accept because 

if they had accepted it they would have said so. They did not 

accept it,you see, they did not accept it 7· you see. The did 

not accept it. 

AN RON . MEMBER: He did not agree with. 

}fR. HICKHAN: Obviously they did not accept that report 

because that recommendation does not lend itself to that report. 

But it is all part of the process, or to come in a clutch,you know~ 

a memorandum from an executive assistant to his minister where 

he gives his views. I do not know. The gentleman may have all 

/ 
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HR. HICKMAN: kinds of expertise on the Linerboard industry_. 

I do· not know. That I do not know ,. I .t is a secret and we 

do not know who it ~.;as, and say, "Aha ha this is ~vhat we 

got. This is what we got. This is ~.;hat we should have done. 

They should have shut down Hawkes Bay, they should have 

shut down these small contractors. You know~they should have 

taken that cold hard business- like decision, forget all about 

the social responsibilities.'' Well, Mr. Speaker -

MR.NEARY: - but Harystown and Placentia. 

HR. HICJ.Q{AN: This is not what the debate and vrhy !:his 

debate ~.;as brought on, \•That this debate was brought on for. 

You know we could go on all day if you v1ant to talk about what 

should have been done. You can say whether we should have done 

it, whether we should have ever gone ahead ~•ii:h it and as 

one publication came out said, "The people of Stephenville"-

this is true - "did not ask for the mill, never indicated they 

wanted the mill . but when it ~vas offered to them they very properly 

accepted it." 

Hr. Speaker, ~.;rhat I am saying is that 't·rhat I ~.;auld 

li~e to hear, Hhat I would like to heaT" from han. gentlemen opposite, 

is given the statements that have been attributable to Nr. Sweeney, 
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MR. HICKMAN: given any government, I do not care what government 

it is, Liberal, Progressive Conservation, NDP, Social Credit, 

anyone, any government at all would rather do anything 

but shut down any industry in any Province and this government 

is no exception. Do you really think that this government, 

Mr. Speaker, in a Province with the highest unemployment 

rate in Canada gets any delight out of seeing that mill 

closed down. 

MR. NEARY: We would have dealt with that, It is your 

mismanagement that has caused it. Mismanagement. 

~ •. HICKMAN: M:ismanagement, financial mismanagement! See 

if we can score some political points in fiscal mismanagement. 

Why does han. gentleman not get up, Mr. Speaker, and say, 

"Here is ••hat we should do." I heard yesterday a statement, 

I think the han. Leader of the Opposition read it,which I 

found somet-1hat disturbing, that this mill is not capable of 

conversion to a paper mill. 

AN HON·. MEMBER: (Inaudible) . 

MR. HICIQ.fAN: That is in that report. But whether again 

now and I say this is why one has -

AN HON. MEMBER: The paper was quoted. 

MR. HICKMAN: Well if you take a piece of paper and attribute 

it to, or not attribute it to an author,"and you read it you have 

made it public, you certainly are not helping the future viability 

of that mill by any stretch of the imagination, You are certainly 

not helping the saleability of that mil~and I think that han. 

gentlemen on this side know what I am referring to when I say 

that that statement did not help, you know. But, ¥r. Speaker, 

it is now public. It is now anybody who has an interest in 

that mill been made aware of it. What was the purpose behind 

that? You know. What was the purpose behind that to get up 

and say that that is not - to read a report which says that that 

is not convertable. 

going to -

It is not going to help us. It is not 
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MR. S"XAU..WOOD: Surely anybody interested in buying the mill 

would know enough to know whether that was correct or not. He 

would not be depending on the order of the Opposition Leader. 

MR. HICIQ-!'AN: I will ask the House to remember w·hat I just 

said. Just remember- look at Hansard of ~~y 10, 1977, sometime, 

not ~ext week or the week after,but remember I did express 

concern over that statement having become public and I say it 

was not in the interest of the future of that mill. 

!-ffi.. WHITE: Crosbie saying it is not worth a dollar, the 

government saying it is not worth a dollar. 

}1R ~ NEARY: Look what John Crosbie did last year. 

MR. HICKMAN: I am not interested in ~.rhat John Crosbie 

said last year and I am not interested -

SOME RON. MEMBERS : Oh, oh! 

MR. SPEAKER: Order, olease! 

MR • HICKMAN : I am not interested in what the hon. the member 

for Twillingate (Mr. Smallwood) said in 1965 or 1966 or 1967 -

MR.NEARY: How come you keep dragging it up. 

MR. HICIOrAN: - and I am not interested and that is why 

I have not dragged it up. 

MR. 1--l'EARY: You had better tell the member for -

HR. HICKHAN: That is why I said,_Mr. Speaker, that I saw 

no point in going back beyond 1972 -

MR. NEARY: Tell the characters ·assissnation -

MR. HICKMAN: - and that was in 1972 when both parties 

unanimously anproved the takeover of the mill by the government. 

Everybody voted for it. That is why I said there is no 

point in going back beyond 1972, Mr. Speaker. That -is what 

I said, Mr. Speaker. lolhat I am saying no~v, Hr. Speaker, that 

we have in place in Stephenville a very ·strong Advisory Committe, 

dedicated to finding any conceivable way they can to make that 

mill viable or saleable. 

MR. NEARY: 

MR. MCNEIL: 

But you have knocked the props out from under them. 

That is right. 
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MR. NEARY: 

MR. MCNEIL: 

MR. HICKMAN: 
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You shut her down. 

That is right. 

NM- 3 

I say secondly, Mr. Speaker, that any government 

with any sense of fiscal responsibility had to take the decision 

it did in light of the report of the Advisory Committee, To do 

otherwise would be extreme c~uelty to the people of the Bay 

St. George area if for nothing else, apart from fiscal irresponsibility 

you would be leading them to believe that indeed this had turned 

around when in fact the figures that we have so far does not 

sustain that kind of decision. 

MR • . FLIGHT: Te.ll us how you arrived at that decision. 

MR.. HICKMAN: That is right. What I am saying, Hr. Speaker • And 

thirdly~and this is equally important, if the Advisory Board 

can arrive at conclusions which hon. gentlemen opposite suggest 

they should or could or may, or if Mr. Sweeney can arrive at 

conclusions which he is alleged to have arrived at, if -

AN HON. MEMBER: Snow job. 

MR. HICKMAN: Now if it is a snow job,then I take it 

that hon. gentlemen opposite do not agree with the appointment 

of the Advisory Committee. You have got to 
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make up your minds one way or the other, you know. 

MR. WHITE: They have not made their report yet. 

MR.HICKMAN: If any of these things come true,and I hope 

they come true,and we are all agreed because again the position 
. _ / 

of the·Opposition was put very clearly last night, this J 

. 
government has not business in the Linerboard field, the hon. 

gentleman said that in his capacity as one of the spokesman 

opposite. Nobody can disagree with that. Nobody can 

disagree with that philosophy. If all of these things 

are true,and I hope there is nqbody in this House who 

does not yearn for them to be true. 

If that private enterprise with that kind of expertise 

that it is necessary should ever come to the steps of the 

government of NeHfoundland'ior if the Advisory Board should 

ever come on their behalf. they w·ill not get out of this 

province"JMr. Speaker, they will not get out of this province 

without the government seeing to it that they make that mill the 

viable operation that some people allege it can be made. 

Thank you, Mr. Speaker. 

MR.. SPEAKER: Ron. member for Eagle River. 

-MR. STRACHAN : Mr. Speaker, I rise to rebutt some of the points 

that the Minister of Justice made here, or the few. 

~1R. SIMMONS: That td:l not take long. 

MR. STRACHAN: He listened to ·an ·impassioned speech from the member 

from Stephenville~and rightly so, of course, because it is his 

district sees the bottom taken out of itj followed by a speech 

from the Minister of Justice on the fact that there was nothing 

positive presented by the member for Stephenville.· I totally 

disagree. I think that the member did present some very very 

positive points. The minister states that any government with 

a sense of fiscal responsibility did the right thing in making 

the decision to close do•m the mill. Hhat we are stating is that 
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MR.. STRACHAN: the government fiscal responsibility came at 

the latter stages, that their fiscal responsibility should 

have been at the earlier stages. If they had sho~m the s&~e 

sense of fiscal responsibility earlier on then the mill ~.rould :· 

not have been in the state it is now and the hard decision 

~vould not have to be made. This is the '"'hole point that we 

are getting at. \Ve are not trying to tear things apart or 

break things down. What we are trying to express 7and what 

the member expressed today was the fact that a11· of a sudden 

we are faced in the end with telling everyone over there that 

th~y have to get out of work, laid off, and that ~v-e could not 

tell the number of people earlier on. 

There is a question raised by the minister in response 

to the member for Stephenville on the cutting of inventory. 

l-ie all know that and he denied that there was any political 

interference, we all knmv that businesses must be run on the 

floor of the place of business. If you are running a fish plant. 

the money is made on the fish plant floor. It is not made 

twenty miles away or a hundred miles away, nor is it really 

made in the offices. Honey,the profits, the money is on the 

fish plant floor. Decisions, on-going decisions of business 

must be made there. Hhat we are stating here is this obvious 

case, this case of cutting back ar. inventory,that the management 

did not have the freedom to nake the business decision on the 

floor of the plant. Nanagement had to come back to Cabinet 

to get a decision of whether they could cut back on inventory 

or not. 

In other words,a political decision on wh~ther the 

business could cut back on inventory or not. We are told they 

could not cut back on inventory because we were throwing a number 

of people out of ~vork in Hawkes Bay or Roddickton or wherever 

it was) contractors and so on would go bankrupt. Yet we- also 

-
knm1 that Linerboard and the woods operation is a cyclical 

- -- --
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MR. STRACHAN: business. We all know that one has to cut 

back inventory when markets are down and push forward when 

markets are up. These contracts therefore should be revised, 

they were wrong in the first place. Many of these contracts 

were wrong 1 because there should be some way of terminating. 

or having written into these contracts some termination 

clause, that should a cut-back be necessary then they can be 

cut-back. You do not write~ contract for this kind of 

operation on a -long term basis and find out when you have to 

cut back inventory you cannot cut back inventory because of 

yo~r own contracts. 

This is the point that we have been trying to make 

a number of times and have been made here previously in the 

House') 
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MR.. STRACHAN: - if you are into this kind of cyclical business~ 

in this up and down business then one has to take that into consideration. 

And you may have in certain areas of the Province to create unemploy­

ment thac-may be caused naturally through . business that our employment 
.. -··-· -· --·-···- ----= - ----- -----

will occur for a certain period of the year. Then of course when 

things rise one can push forward and the contracts can be renewed or 

reopened or treated in a different light. But it would be foolish 

and extreme in a business like this to write a contract for a long 

period of time and then say that the mill has to keep producing 

because it is tied in to these contracts. And we have to increase 

inventory and we have to keep bringing supplies in because of all 

these small contracts we have written. 

So we feel~and we have pointed it out numbers and 

numbers of __ times,that this is the kind of mismanagement that we are 

talking about and this is the kind of things that you are left in a 

bind. I can feel sympathetic in some ways to the people \Yho have to 

make these decisions,political or not, to make these decisions that 

you may have to throw people out on the Northern Peninsula out of 

work because you have these contracts. But there is something wrong 

with the contracts. 

HR. DOODY: VJ.y _I interrupt the han. gentlenan'! I will clarify it for you. 

MR. STRACHAN: Sure. 

MR. DOODY: I think the contracts we are talking about are 

relatively small contracts for 5,000 or 10,000 cords of wood and most 

of them were contracts which were entered into by individuals who 

in turn bought machinery using that contract as the collateral for 

the machinery. But if the contract was cancelled they would not have 

just lost the job .In effect .,they would have wiped out the mill 

operations and this is why the contracts keep going until the contract 

thing was filled up. It was more than just a simple laying somebody 

off. 

MR. STRACHAN: Yes, I understand the situation pretty well especially 

in Happy Valley-Goose Bay,for instance,because there were contractors 
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MR. STRACHAN: there who were left in the same situation1 that they 

had gotten the equipment on a basis that they had to supply a certain 

amount of wood over a certain period of time in order to pay these 

things off. But still,at the same time it should be understood very 

clearly that what this does by writing these small contracts, and 

many of them were small contracts and indeed small operators, what 

it does of course is pressure the whole business and there must be 

some other way. Surely there should have been a way developed or 

something of more wisdom developed which tied it far better into the 

operation rather than to write contracts like that and then find 

yourself obliged to handle these contracts. 

What we are stating is that there must have been 

a way, and I do not know,I do not have information on the contracts, 

but surely there must have been a way to get out of that,to try and 

get into contracts which could be tied into the operation and not 

JM- 2 

tied in totally because of the contractors owing the finance companies 

money. 

The other point that I had here is that,as the 

minister stated, I stated quite clearly last night~and again the 

minister has stated and we have all agreed,that government has no 

place in business. And we agree totally with that. We believe that 

you control the resource, you own the resource,but government should 

not be in the business of developing and producing that resource. 

But the minister in defending government stated that no one else 

was prepared-to take on the Linerboard. That maybe so but we have 

heard at some time that MacMillan-Blodell were interested at one 

point, very interested in it~and what we are arguing about is if that 

is so- it is may be not so - but if it is so then where is the information'! 

We can only go and argue and debate ·on the basis of information whic.t. is 

available to us,and what we have stated many times. And the reason 

why the member for Stephenville uses his clut~h of memorandums and 

his reports and so on,which the minister seems to take objection to, is 
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MR. STRACa~: the reason why we do that.is we do not have 

information. There is no access to information within this Province 

anyway. Everything is done secretly, quietly within the government 

circles and we have no access to this kind of information so we do 

not know. 

MR. HICKMAN: Ma~Millan Bloedel. 

MR. STRACHAN: We would like to see the whole thing you know, the 

whole thing. We would like to know what was behind it, why the 

decision was made and what was behind it and so on. Can we see the 

correspondence? 

MR. DOODY: (Inaudible). 

MR. STRACHAN: And this is our whole point that we are trying to 

make here. As in many cases the member here has tried to get 

information, has not been able to get that information,and got the 

information elsewhere and has been collecting information for quite 

some time. So our decisions, some of them which may be a little 

out, and the opinions -.;.;hich we base on that information is based on 

the information that we can collect, not on information which should 

be, naturally should be available to anyone in the Province who is 

interested in trying to get information of what is going on. Certainly 

not ongoing negotiations but certainly afterwards we should be able 

to base our opinion on firm information rather than to go around 

secretly trying 

I 
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MR. STRACHAN: 

to collect information to try to put together a position on it. 

The government, the minister stated that they went to Ottawa to 

request help and was veri careful to show that Ottawa did not turn 

down the governme~t. They listened to them, were very helpful and· 

so on. Our argument is that surely if the mill was in trouble and 

has been in trouble for some time and a number of years, surely you 

do not go in the last few weeks or the last three weeks when you are 

trying to balance your budget, surely you do not go to your uncle 

and say, help me out and bail me out. Surely if that is the situation, 

and it is known clearly, surely there should have been some ongoing 

discussions, ongoing long lasting discussions going on, contact 

maintained. all the time with Ottawa explaining the situation over 

the last two years and not just over the last two weeks. It is useless, 

of course, absolutely useless to go to somebody and go to a rich uncle 

and say, "Bail us out and give us $30 million or $40 million based 

on a request made two weeks ago. Otherwise we are going to have to 

shut it down in two weeks time." Surely the whole thing of Confederation, 

and this is the argument of Confederation, surely we have a responsibility 

in Confederation as well. And surely our responsibility, if we are 

looking for money from Ottawa,is to inform Ottawa well ahead of time, 

well ahead of time, years before the time, not just a few weeks which 

was indicated by the minister. And that was definitely stated there, 

that it was onlv in th~ la~t few weeks that there was a real effort, 

a real strong effort made. Surely they should be informed if the whole 

financial picture laid out to them and it cost an ongoing based business. 

The other point that was made referring to the report and - there-

was a great deal made of the report, the preliminary report produced 

-
indicated the close-down of the mill. And yet the minister stated then, 

immediately he said that they had to close down the mill. He indicated 

that the mill has six months grace to prove its viability. Surely no 
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MR. STRACHA.l"l': 

mill can prove its viability if you have just announced it is going to 

be closed down. Surely if you wanted to give it six months to prove 

its viability you should have given it six months. But to turn around 

now and say that you are going to close it down and then make a statement 

here that it still has six months to prove its viability takes the legs 

right out from underneath it. It takes legs out from underneath the 

management. It take legs out underneath the market. It take the legs 

out from underneath the workers. If you intended to give it six months 

grace to prove its viability, and that is what the minister used, his 

actual words, the~ have got six months grace to prove it, then why 

close it down. Why announce it is going to be closed down? Why not 

wait until a closer period of time or decide on some other position. 

Or if you are going to close it down tell them now. But you have stated 

quite clearly here that Mr. Sweeney and the rest, the advisory board 

and so on have still got six months to go. How can they have six 

months to go when you have just notified them that they are going to 

be finished and out of work in six months. Similarly, of course, this 

takes the underpinnings right out in the market place because who is 

going to give contracts of any form? How can you ever prove the 

viability of the mill in the next six months if the market place knows 

that you are not going to be in operation, that you are not producing 

any produce to sell on a market place. Because all it is then is a 

fire sale. It is impossible because people will know that your product 

is not going to be there on a long term, so no one wishes to get into 

long term contracts. So all you can look for is small block contracts 

for your product. And how can you ever produce then a report iri- six 

months time which will prove your viability under these conditions. -

You could not do it in any business, never mind a large business like 

Labrador Linerboard. It could not be done in a small fish plant, for 

instance - that if they knew that in six months time that you are going 
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MR. STRACHAN: 

to be out of business they are going to undercut your products. 

They certainly will not give you long t .erm contracts nor will they 

be very interested in getting anything from you because they know 

that you keep producing for six months, they cart pick it all up 

at the end for next to nothing • . 

So I think that the words here should be very carefully weighed 

because I feel here that if we are going to give them six months grace 

as was stated then there was no need to make the decision that was 

made. Or it could have been made in a different light or in a 

different way or under different tet"lll.S or different conditions 
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MR. STRACHAN: because there is no way. It is aJm'ost 

impossible for Sweeney· and all the Advisory Board -I think 

we have used Sweeney too much, but I think people are 

looking to him as a businessman with his respec tab ili ty -

there is no way that they can ever prove the viability 

of such an operation, if you are going· to immediately 

announce the closure. 

Now the minister, one ~oint made 

here, the minister was on about, it is that he asked~and 

I do not know if it was a plea,or he asked that if we 

go along with it he stated that he should stop supporting 

petitions in this House if we are so concerned about 

NM- 1 

resource development in this Province. And I will tell the 

minister right now - I will, I would be glad to stop presenting 

petitions or present them and say I cannot support them because 

we do not have the money to give the services, but I can only 

do that on the condition that I see that what little money we have 

for services is distributed evenly within this Province. 

SOME RON. MEMBERS: Hear! Hear! 

MR. STRACHAN : vfuen we see $1 million paving programme 

in one district, one minister,and we see the Norma and Gladys 

being wasted, when we see money being wasted in other schemes, 

then if we can see these cut out then I will go along with it 

one hundred per cent. 

AN RON. HEHBER: Hear! Hear! 

MR.. STRACHAN: 100 per cent. I think the people of this 

Province need to be told. 

AN RON. MEMBER: Yes, we are all in this together: 

MR.. STRACHAN: And I agree with the Premier on this. I agre~ 

with the Minister of Finance on this and the Minister of Justice, 

if this is what he is stating, that the people of this Province 

need to be told we are in a tight money situation, a difficult, 
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MR. STRACHAN: · financial situation and ~ve need to tighten 

our belts. And I would be first to agree and go along 

NM- 2 

with that, totally and absolutely. I would be the first with 

the Minister of Transportation to state to the people of 

Cartwright that that is the amount of money we have got for 

that road and it is very, very expensiv~ to maintain equipment 

in Cartwright over a year period in order to keep six miles 

of road open. I would agree with that much as it is my district, 

probably the worst district in the Province, much as it needs 

it ID;Ore than any"' other district but I cannot do that when I 

see .contracts being let for paved roads elsewhere in the 

Province, w~en I cannot argue about airstrips.-

AN RON. MEMBER: \Vhat do they think we ·are, stupid? 

MR. STRACHAN: - when I see money being let out for 

Norma and Gladyses. It is far more important to have airstrips 

on the Labrador Coast so we can fly safely and in comfort than 

it is to have some of the foolish things that we have got going 

on and the waste of money. The Norma and Gladys should be pulled 

up. Similarly -

MR. SPEAKER: Order, please! I think the hon. gentleman is 

aware that certainly the Labrador Linerboard mill and matters 

pertaining to it a quite broad area of relevance,but I would 

point out it would not correspond with the area of relevance 

in the Address-in-Reply or the Budget debate. 

The hon. member for Eagle River. 

MR.. STRACHAN: I thank you for your ruling, Mr. Speaker. 

I was rebutting particularly the statements of the Minister 

of Justice on petitions and -

MR. HICKMAN: You should not. 

MR. STRACHAN: - and so on so I was just -

AN RON. MEMBER: You should be ashamed to. 

MR. HI~Jlli : in support of the Norma and Gladys. 
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~fR. STRACHAN: Since the minister mentioned petit:i.ons I was 

just going on the variety of petitions that have been presented. 

I will try to get back to the topic on hand. In fact ~t b~ing 

close to six o'clock I move the adjournment of the debate. 

MR.. SPEAKER: Is it agreed we call it six o'clock? 

SOME RON. MEMBERS : .Hear: Hear! 

MR. SPEAKER: It being six o.' clock I leave the Chair 

until eight this evening. 

J 
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The House-resumed at 8:00 p '~m. 

Mr. Speaker in the Chair. 

MR. SPEAKER: Order, please! The hon. member for Eagle River. 

MR. I. STRACHAN: Mr. Speaker, I was hoping the Min~ster of Justice 

would be in his Chair. I would imagine he is fairly close by. 

SOME RON. MEMBERS : Oh, oh! 

MR. NOLAN: On a point of order, Mr. Speaker. 

MR. SPEAKER: A point of order bas come up. 

MR. NOLAN: Do you think you can silence those opposite so that the 

hon. member can be heard,or will we adjourn? 

MR. SPEAKER: I cannot adjourn~there being no motion before the 

Chair. The hon. minister. 

MR. HICKMAN: I say to hon. gentlemen, if you cannot stand the heat 

you had better get out of the kitchen. 

MR. NOLA..~: What do you want us to do, move about from party to 

party like you do? 

MR. HICKMAN: Why not? You have. 

AN HON. MEMBER: The Opposition is split three ways. 

MR. STRACHAN: This is not off my time? 

MR. SPEAKER: Order, please! The hon. gentleman should be able to 

continue without undue interruption. 

MR. STRACHAN: Mr. Speaker, the Minister of Justice prior to our 

break, the Minister of Justice threw out a challenge -and in some ways 

informed, I think in some of the points he raised we have sort of 

rebutted in some ways. But he threw out the challenge that we over 

here have been totally negative about this debate or totally negative 

in our attitude towards Linerboard. So I would like to accept this 
. 

challenge and throw a challenge back to them and hopefully see whether 

he will accept it or not, But we all know that in Labrador Linerboard 

we, the people of this Province,have invested over $300 million. 

We all know that the mill,or we have been told so,that the mill has 
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MR. STRACHAN: 

six more months to go before phase down and close down. We all know 

that it is a smack in the face of this Province in the business 

world if that mill closes. We also know that the people on the 

West Coast and in the Northern Peninsula and many areas would be 

out of work. We also know that if we -are going to try and get this 

mill back into operation, for instance, in a year's time or year and 

a half's time by whatever means, the start-up costs and trying to 

get people back into the woods would be very, very high indeed. 

In fact, it would be an extremely high cost to this Province 

with unemployment created and then with people having to start back 

into an industry again. 

We have been told that the reason why,and I accept the reason 

why,and I think the reason behind it is that this Province does not 

have the funds, does not have the money to keep the mill going. And 

if I can put this in a nonpartisan way, I do not mean this in the 

slightest bit i~ a partisan way, that if we do not have the funds 

then canwe find the funds to keep the mill going for a longer period 

of time. , 
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HR. STRACHAN: We believe~as the member for Stephenville 

has pointed out,that the management under Hr. Sweeney and 

the Advisory Board,which is a very good collection of 

respected businessmen,have started to turn the mill around, 

management of the mill around. The whole production of 

J the mill has started to turn it around in a positive sense. 

We have also been told a number of times the woods supply 

relatively is not as great a problem as we thought it was. 

I mean~the markets are increasing and will increase 

~vi thin a year's time. 

So is there any way we can buy more time for the mill? 

Is there any way that we can prevent losing this $300 million 

investment the people have? I brought it up earlier on. and 

the Minister of Justice brought it up earlier on,that 

possibly if we looked at the Public Services of this Province 

for the next year. We must remember that it is the peop~e of 

this province who have invested over $300 million in that mill. 

That mill is essentially the property of the people of this 

province • They stand to lose that $300 million investment. 

Instead of trying to make the west coast area and 

the Bay St. George area look as though they are penalizing the 

rest of the province by drawing in all these funds, would it 

be possible if we could change the attitude and not actually 

it should be changed by us here. But certain sacrifices ~.;ould 

have to be made - Hr. Speaker, I find it very difficult tr;:zing 

to respond to the Minister of Justice -

MR.CANNING: replying to the Minister of Justice to 

MR.SPEAKER: The han. member is having difficulty in concentrating. 

~fR. STRACHAI.'l': The point I ~.;as trying to get at here was that 

the min~ster was stating was there any way that we could cut back 

on the public services in this province. He mentioned in rather 

a ?artisan fashion, we mentioned $.1 million for Green Bay and 

the Norma and Gladys ,and so on I am stating nm.; in a non-partisan 



May 10, 1977 Tape 2502 lb-2. 

MR.STRACHAN: sense, is there any way that we could cut 

back on the public services in this province? Would the 

minister,for instance, or the government be prepared to 

set up a committee of this House for instance to look at 

certain ways of trying to cut back on the public services 

in this province 7 so that we could see that not~ing was dorie 

in a partisan fashion. One district especially was not 

getting the regulat money, or another district was not getting 

any more. That if we could set up that kind of thing and 

try to cut back sufficient funds - I do not know the quantity 

of funds that is required. I think it is something in the 

region of $20 million. Something like that is required-in 

order to be able to balance the budget and at the same time 

put sufficient funds in to keep the mill going for a one year 

period. 

If the Advisory Board feel, and if Mr. S'Yreeney feels 

that the market is changing around and if that is the case,if 

it could be done, if this is the crucial year - we have been 

told that it is the crucial year,there is a possibility, a 

great possibility - if that could be assured to us, Is there 

any ~vay then that this a:ould be done if money could be pared 

off some of the budget. Some of the moni~s spent on some 

.foolishness, and also on good products too and I think it 

would require therefore to be very much a non-partisan sense. 

If ~the money was pared off various things and explained to 

the people of the province that that money ~v-as required in 

order to keep the mill going~which essentially is their 

investment. 

We then get down to the point that if we do ask the 

people of this province to do that kind of thing~to give up 

certain benefits, benefits that they require, ~vhether they 

be paved roads or whether it is water or sewerage somewhere 

or whether the~e is anything else in other fields, as well ---. 
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as some of ·the strenuous things the government 

is into, the things that produce nothing. Some of the social 

fields for instance we can cut the money out of there. If we 

could put together enough funds to keep the Linerboard going 
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MR.. STRACH.Al'-1 : and to try and get the whole thing or take the attitude 

that >ve own the mill, the people of this Province o\m the mill, they 

have over $300 million into it~ could we then go and instead of 

government running the mill,and we have all agreed that that is bad, 

that it needs to be changed, could we look at a contract for instance 

that could be set up with a company, \vhether it be with Consolidated 

Bathurst or MacMillan-Blodell or \-7hatever company,that they run the 

mill on a contract basis, that they accept the product and put the 

product into their operation and into their marketing lines and they 

run the mill free of any interference from government under these 

management contracts. 

I do not know. This idea may be totally wrong. 

Maybe there is a lot of - I can see a lot of difficulties even 

measuring it out,but we must face the fact that this Province is 

in desperate straits, financially in desperate straits. 

And we must accept the fact that we. are in essence 

in six months time closing out one of the greatest assets that this 

Province has. And I am sure that we could express and try to do it 

in such a way that it was nonpartisan, express the fact that if we 

could pare money off some of the budgets,and we would only agree on 

this side, I think, on that basis that if we saw the money was pared 

off equally,that there was no selfish distribution of the funds of 

this Province for one district or another district, that it was not 

distributed in a partisan sense, that if you could do that that you 

can manage to pare sufficient funds because what are we talking about? 

$25 million I believe, something in that region to balance. 

MR. DOODY: 

1'-lR. STRACHAN: 

Ai.'-1 RON. MEMBER: 

MR.. STR-\CH.A..1' : 

MR. NEARY: 

MR. STRACHAN: 

$55 million 

There was question of it turning $55 million. 

You are in for $30 million an~vay. 

You are in for $30 million regardless. 

You are in for $30 million whether you owe for -

When it closes, you still have to put in about ~JU million 

so you require $25 million regardless of the funds if you could give us 
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MR.. STRACHAN: the information and lay out the information to us so 

we can see it clearly and openly whatever the funds are. Be it 

$25 million or $35 million or $55 million or $60 million. 

MR. SMALLWOOD: 

MR.. STRACHAN : 

MR. S¥..ALU-700D : 

May I interrupt the han. gentleman? 

Sure. 

Do I understand him to be suggesting to the government 

that the amount of loss there is likely to be this year to operate the 

mill, not to service the debt, but to operate the loss,that we would 

agree on this side to an even-handed reduction in all kinds of things 

to make up that money? 

MR. STRACHAN: ~~at I am e~sentially suggesting is that in order to 

keep that mill going, and it is an investment to the people of this 

Province -

MR. S¥..ALLWOOD: Count on me. I will vote for it. 

MR. STRACHAJ.~: And if it could be done,and we must admit the fact that 

we are with our backs against the wall and instead of the idea of 

selling the Stephenville and the Bay St. George area that is draining 

the rest of the Province because it is the people of this Province~ 

all over the Province that has this investment, this $300 million 

investment that is owned by them essentially regardless of ~vhatever 

reason, it is owned by them,and to close that down and let it sit 

there it is still their investment which one day might be taken over 

by an outside corporation for a very low sum and essentially a give-

away, a fire sale possibly,or we may try to negotiate with them but 

they will have the upper hand of the negotiations. 

Why could we not decide now that under their 

contract, their management contract,that they come in and run that 

mill because the government should not be, and we have all agreed to 

that I think fairly well, the government should not be in the 

business of producing 1inerboard, that if we could manage to scrape 

by \vhatever means the amount of money \ve require to keep that mill 

going are we _prepared and are the people of this Province and the 
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MR.. STRACHAN: administ r ation and ourselves prepar ed to make these 

kind of sacrifices? Now that is a very big thing to sell and I agree 

with it. But the thing is that the people on the West Coast are our 

br others and sisters, we are all in it the same together,and the 

people of this Province , every person in this Province virtually 

owns that mill . It is our resource. It is the reputation of every 

person living in this Province who will be blackened in the business 

world of North America because this mill closes down quickly on the 

heels of Come by Chance , that tole will be looked upon in a scathinr' 

fashion by people in the business ~o1orld. 

/ 

JM- 3 
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MR. STRACF~N: And if there is any way possible that we 

can manage to put those funds together then it has to 

be a concerted effort at which we all sell it to everyone 

in the districts and everyone o~ the.people in this 

Province that we require their money and ~Y'e believe ~Y"e 

do have an investment which can work. It is incumbent 

therefore on the government to make very clear and very 

plain all information pertaining to the mill, so that we 

can sit down and look at all the information and we have 

as much information as they have so we can make decisions 

based on wisdom. 

I felt strongly about that not only on Linerboard 

or forest resources,but I also feel it on many other of our 

renewable resources, that we cannot have a policy for one 

government because they are over there on a renewable 

NM- 1 

resource and then next election change the policy around for 

another administration,and then the next election after that 

change the policy around for another renewable resource because 

then of course in the business world, the businessmen and the 

industries and corporations will not know where they stand with 

us and will therefore only plan for four or five years and 

be prepared to change their policies, For instance,in oil and 

gas,and I will certainly debate this when it comes up, that I 

think that if this administration develops the policy in oil and 

gas which is against the principle of our policies here, then 

when this side is over there and we go and try and change 

these contracts or change some of the basis of our arguments, 

our policies, "lve are going to look very difficult, very obstinate 

and stubborn people in the business world. So I think that we 

require a far more rational approach, a far more logical approach,and 

a far more non-partisan approach to the use of resources in this 

Province so we can develop long term policies and not short term 

purely political policies. 
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~1R. DINN: 1-lould the han. member permit a question? Are 

you saying that,for a~ample, in the water and sewer for this 

year that we should take the $15 million or $20 million and 

put it into the Linerboard and no water and sewer? Is that 

what you are saying? 

MR.. STRACHAN: No. No. No. I am not saying that at all. 

What I am saying, I do not know what '"e have. 

MR. DINN: 

MR. STRACHAN: 

MR. WHITE: 

MR •. DINN: 

MR. WHITE: 

~. STRACHAN: 

It is equally distributed. 

Yes. I am not saying that at all. 

This year. 

It was last year. Do you want to see the figures? 

No, I showed you the figures 'Jerry'. 

If I can respond to the minister. I was not 

meaning that in any partisan sense at all and I was not referring 

to his department at all. I mentioned water and sewer. I mean 

public services in general. I am sure that if we looked at 

public services we could find a lot of extraneous amounts of 

money and some amounts of money which are spent in some ways 

which could be saved. If we are to tell the people of this 

Province that you have a choice of this or the Linerboard 

going down, and the Linerboard is your $300 million investment- and 

I do not want to get pickey about it or get into small things, 

not at all- I think that maybe snme people in some areas and 

so on would accept that, that there are some funds which cannot 

be spent or monies available. They have had a great deal in 

the past. They are fairly well off. They are reasonably well 

off and that $2 million programme for their area is not ready 

to be acquired this year, that next year would be fine. If they 

realize that that is sacrifice, that that $2 million was to be 

utilized and used for a resource which they themselves own 

anyway,but I am sure that you could put together out of the 

$1.25 billion budget for this Province this year, I am sure 

that if we sat down and very carefully went through it that we -
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MR.. STRACHAN: I think if we had to make the sacrifices people 

would maybe ~vant to make them. The thing is whether the politicians 

want to make them, not whether the people want to make them. And 

if you can save that kind of funds then surely we have sufficient 

funQS then to put into Linerboard to keep it operating as long 

as we understand and as . long as it is expressed to us that 

Linerboard can function, that it can work, that all the 

facts are on the table and we really do believe it 

can work. 

Nmv I say that on the basis of not having any facts 

at hand or information at hand, but the minister did state 

that nothing positive has come from this side,and we are sitting 

here without the information that the government has, the 

administration has to make their decision on Linerboard. And 

what I am stating is that possibly that, maybe one ·of the 

positive things we could think about of trying to save 

sufficient funds - what 
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MR. STRACHAN: 

are we talking about? Two per cent is it, two and a half per cent, 

$25 million out of $1.25 billion - is two per cent? 

AN HON. MEMBER: No. 

MR. STRACHAN: Something like that. If we could save two per cent, 

for instance, or three per cent,of that region, if we could save 

three per cent of the budget of this Province this year, bear it 

down and take three per cent and put it in the Linerboard as our 

farther investment and already a very huge investment that this 

people already have, and surely we could sell this idea to people, 

that we are going to try and make that investment because we believe~ 

as is pointed out by management of the mill and by the advisory board~ 

that possibly, and we could make that decision six months from now 

when the final reports from the advisory board come out, not the 

preliminary reports but the final reports come out, we could then 

be in a position to realize whether we do make that decision then, 

that if an·advisory boarq advises that the mill could function and 

be viable and turn around in three years as the member for 

Stephenville(Mr. McNeil) has stated, that this could be done,then 

why lose a $300 million investment[ .. Why close it down, with all the incumbent. 

unemployment and welfare,and then plus the fact the start-up costs 

down the road a year or two years or three years would mean a tremendous 

amount of money to be ploughed into the area to start the thing up again, 

if we can continue it. And I know this is a contingency kind of 

' thing, but I throw it out and hope that maybe it could be looked at, 

that a response could be made on it. But I would say that we would 

only be convinced of the honesty if we on this side were party to 

some of the decisions as to how money is going to be scaped off 

in some of the public services in rural Newfoundland and Labrador. 

But I am sure that we would feel that it is a worthwhile suggestior, 

that it could be looked into and possibly an avenue should be explored. 

And I feel that if the government and the administration is really 
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MR.. STRACHAN: 

fundamentally interested in keeping that area alive,and not only that 

area but the whole ripple effect,the domino effect all over the 

Province, and the attitude that people outside of this Province 

hands to us that surely our backs are against the wall, all of us, 

and we s~ould therefore be able to take this approach and look at 

this kind of an approach. And I say it in a total nonpartisan, 

nonpolitical fashion, that surely we can save or sera~ two per cent, 

two per cent of -the budget of this Province this year to keep that 

mill going,if we can keep it going and if it has been deemed advisable 

by the advisory board and by the management that it can be going and 

one of the big corporations will take a management contract. Let us 

sell it · to them for a song. Let us give it to them. It is our 

investment that people have $300 million into, We own the 

resource. They manage it for us as only they can do best. They 

are the only ones who can. So I throw that out and propose it 

as sense and hope that someone will respond to it. 

MR. SPEAKER: The han. member for LaPoile. 

MR. NEARY: Mr. Speaker, I thought for a moment there that the hon. 

gentleman who just took his seat, Sir, was reading my mind over 

supper time. But the hon. gentleman went off on a little bit different 

tangent than I am going to steer my direction at the moment, Sir. I 

believe we should do something positive at this particular point in 

time, Sir, but not necessarily what the hon. gentleman suggested. So 

after my few remarks, Mr. Speaker, I am going to throw out what I feel 

is the only alternative to this House at this particu~ar time. I am 

going to, if it is in order, Sir, after a few brief remarks, I am going 

to move a sub-amendment to the amendment. 

AN RON. MEMBER: That is not in order. 

MR. NEARY: It is in order, Sir. 

AN RON. MEMBER: It is not. 

MR. NEARY: How does the hon. gentleman know it is not in order when 
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MR. NEARY: 

the han .. gentleman has not even heard it yet'? 

Mr. Speaker, we ·have heard over the last couple of days a 

wide ranging debate on the government's decision to close the 

Linerboard mill at Stephenville. And the debate has been a go.od 

one up to the present time, It has given members, especially on 

this side of the Rouse, an opportunity to get a lot of things off 

their chest. There was a lot of things that had to be said about 

the operation of "the Linerboard mill over the past thte.e or four 

years. There have been a lot of mistakes, a lot of bl-unders. 
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MR. NEARY: Some have been pretty costly. There have been -

It has been pointed out by members on the government side of the House, 

Sir, that the fault does not necessarily rest ~nth the administration 

that is ~r:~~ntly in power. Well that is an argument that we have 

been hearing now for five years and it would only lead one to ask a 

question, Sir: ~~en will the administration start to accept responsibilities 

for their decisions? After five years in office I do believe, 

Mr. Speaker, that some of the things that have happened in the past 

five years in this Province that have added to the financial mess that 

we are in in this Province, some of the responsibility for this, Sir, 

must · rest on the shoulders of the administration that have been running 

this Province for the past five years. You cannot blame everything 

on the previous administration. And that argument, Sir, no longer has 

any creditability in this Province. Hy hon. friend from St. John's 

East can get up all he likes ar.d stick the darts intc t he former 

Premier of this Province, attempt to smear the former administration 

and the farner Premier of this Province, attack the han. gentleman's 

character and all that but that ~~ill do nothing, Sir, that will do 

nothing for the Linerboard mill in Stephenville,believe me. 

Hr. Speaker, we have heard the hon. member for 

St. John's North stand up and preach us a sermon on how to make 

linerboard and how to make paper when the hon. gentleman knows as 

much about making linerboard and making paper as my posterior knows 

about snipe shooting. The hon. gentleman was taken to task tonight 

on CBC, Here and Now by the union representatives and I must say, 

Sir, I have to congratulate that gentleman for the excellent presentation 

that he made tonight on CBC's Here and Now and brought out a fact~by 

the way~that hon. gentlemen-that I would think have escape4 the attention 

of hon. gentlemen on both sides of this House. And when we are talking 

about the deficit of the Linerboard mill 1 it is not fair for the government 

to throw in the principal and the interest on the capital outlay, the 

capital amount that was necessary to build that Linerboard Mill. The 
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MR. NEARY: actual loss on -the actual deficit rather on Liner board 

this year in the current fiscal year is around $85.00 according to 

the figures that the union produced and were confirmed. 

AN HON. MEMBER: $88.00 a ton. 

}ffi. NEARY: $88.00 a ton. So that is a far cry, Sir, from 

JM- 2 

four hundred-and-some-odd dollars that we have been hearing about, the 

figures that have been bandied about. I am more inclined to think that 

the president of the union is correct, that the actual deficit is only 

around $85.00 or .$88.00 a ton 

MR. DOODY: That is this year. 

MR. NEA..~Y: That is this year, Sir, and that would go dm·m next 

year and be wiped out; as a matter of fact be turned around and turned 

into a profit in the third year. And that fact does . not seem to have 

registered with hon. members. 

Then there is the question-of the timber resources, 

the timber rights in this Province that we have given up to Bowaters and 

Price Newfoundland Limited. Everybody seems to walk on egg shells "tv hen 

it comes to these two companies. Everybody seems to think,and we have 

heard the fear expressed again during this debate~that if we do anything 

to rearrange the timber resources here on the Island of Newfoundland 

that Bowaters is going to shut her down, Price Newfoundland are going 

to pull the plug,and the people in these areas are going to be left 

high and dry. Well, Sir, I am inclined not to believe that. These 

two companies have done pretty well in this Province. They have 

taken literally billions of dollars out of Newfoundland in the past 

forty or fifty years in profits, profits that went to shareholders 

outside of Newfoundland and outside of Canada. And I do not think for 

one minute sitting down negotiating the timber resourc.es, their concessions, 

to try to get a low cost wood, a lower cost "tvood for the Linerboard 

Mill is going to 
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MR. NEARY: drive ·either Bowaters or Price out of this Province. 

They may not like it, Sir. But I say if they do not like it they 

can lump it. They are our resources and if we want to keep the 

Linerboard mill afloat then the key to the success of the Linerboard 

mill, as the President of the Union indicated, is that they 

have to get t-10od at a cheaper price, lo~rer cost wood. Hell 

that makes sense, Mr. Speaker, it makes sense and you are 

not going t~ get anybody to look at that Linerboard mill unless 

you can get wood at a lower cost delivered to Stephenville. 

Therein lies the problem, Sir, and we can hope and pray,and 

the ~inister of Finance can say, Oh he is down on his knees 

every night hoping and praying that something is going to turn 

up. Nothing is going to turn up unless this House is prepared 

if necessary to bring in legislation, if ~.re have to, if Price 

and Bm.;ters will not do it in a reasonable manner, will not sit 

down around the table and negotiate with the government of this 

Province, then let us bring legislation into the House and force 

them to do it. 

And oh, Mr. Speaker, there are people now cringing 

when they hear me say that. There are people saying, "\-Tell 

you are going to turn the place into a banana republic . " I 

can almost read their mind. Well, Sir, as far as I am concerned 

we put up with this now long enough. Bowaters once threatened 

to pull out of Newfoundland. It was a very mild threat, When their 

bluff was callad they were· not long before they changed their 

mind. And I do not think for one minute; Sir, that either one 

of these companies,if they want to be good corporate citizens 

in this Province and in Canada, either one of these ·companies 

should reject the request of the government and the Legislature 

and the people of this .Province to rearrange the timber resources 

so that we can get a · lower cost wood for the Stephenville Linerboard 

operation. 
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MR. NEARY: There was a time in th~s Pro~ince, Mr. Speaker, 

when according t~ the experts, Dr. Stuart Peters, who has now 

suddenly _become an instant expert on industrial development in 

Atlantic Canada~and the other gentlemen, Mr. Ed Ralph I believe 

it was, who was the Chief Forester with this Province, who 

was sent down to forestry school I believe down in Connecticut 

and is now back running our -

AN RON. MEMBER: (Inaudible). 

MR. NEARY: No, he did not get his furniture sent down on 

a water bomber,but the hon. gentleman tried. This gentleman 

is now setting up lumber mills in Newfoundland. This gentleman 

was supposed to be an expert on forestry. 

MR. MORGAN: Hr. Ralph. 

MR. NEARY: Ed Ralph and Dr. Stu Peters, and there was a time 

when they were advising the administration that it was feasible 

to start a fourth paper mill in this Province, let alone a 

third. 

MR. MORGAN: - Stephenville again. 

MR. NEARY: So, M~. Speaker, there is no doubt about that. That 

certainly made sense to me, Sir, that the thing to do is to 

try and negotiate with the paper companies to change the timber 

resources, their rights in this Province. 

Mr. Speaker, another point that was brought out, I believe 

by the hon. member for Stephenville~was the fact that the workers 

in Stephenville at the Linerboard mill have already made sacrifices. 

They were prepared over the last couple of years not to rock 

the boat. They were pre~ared to accept lower increases in pay than 

their counterparts got in the paper industries across Canada,and 

it may interest members to know that the paper makers at the Linerboard 

mill in Stephenville are the lowest paid in the industry, There is 

an indication of sincerity, Sir: there is an ~ndication that the workers 

themselves and the people of StPohenville were prepared to make sacrifices. 

The office workers at the Linerboard mill are the lowest ~aid in the 

industry. The tradesmen at the Labrador Linerboard mill are the lowest 

paid in the industry. I 
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MR. NEARY: And the operators at the Linerboard Mill at 

Stephenville are the lmvest paid in the industry. These 

are facts,Mr. Speaker. My hon. friend says >ve still 

cannot make a go of it. It is not the fault of the 

employees." God only knm·7S they have tried. So, Hr. 

Speaker, we can go on and on and on, one side of the House 

accnsing the other of trying to make cheap political points, 

of p:'_aying politics with this very serious matter that ~ve have 

before us in .the Bay St. George area. 

No doubt, Sir, I must say, the Eon. Hinister of 

Justice, the Government House Leader today hurled a few 

broadsides at the Opposition and accused the Opposition 

of making cheap political hay, playing politics with this 

matter. Then the Opposition no doubt will get up and hurl 

lb-1. 

a few more insults and a few ~ore broadsides at the Government 

and accuse the government of playing politics. 

:Hr. Speaker, you cannot help then but asking yourself 

a question, how do you keep politics out of this? The Premier 

will take to the airways and take to television and stick a 

few darts into the Leader of the Opposition. The Opposition 

generally, the Leader of the Opposition,will question the 

figures and stick a fe,., darts into the government. The 

figures \vill be questioned back and forth. There will be 

members on this side who say we do not believe the figures. 

~&at is it they say about figures? Figures do not lie ~ but 

liars can figure. The government will get up and say, 

the figures'are authentic because we have had them checked 

by the Advisory Board,and so on and so on. So the arg~ent 

goes on and on and on and nobody wins. The ones ~.;ho will 

suffer, the people, the employees first and then the people 

in the Bay St. George area. I believe,Mr. Speaker, 

sincerely,that the matter has to be removed from the realm 

of politics 1 that the matter has to be lifted above 
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MR.NEARY: partisan politics. Maybe I am naive,Sir, may-

be it cannot be done. But I say it can ~e done. The only 

way it can he done,Mr. Speaker, is for the government and 

the Opposition, the official Opposition and the government-

to agree to the appointment of a special committee of 

the House 

MR. J. CARTER: Not you! 

MR.NEARY: The Han. gentleman can leave me out if he wants 

to , but I certainly would leave the hon. gentleman out. 

The hon. gentleman may knm.; a little bit about savoury 

bu_t he does not knm-r anything about linerboard. Mr. Speaker, 

a special committee of th~s House is urgently required at 

this moment. It is the only way, Sir, that we as elected 

representatives of the people can do a service to the people 

of this province,especially the people in the Bay St. George 

area. Have members appointed to the Committee representing 

both sides of the House t defuse this political atmosphere 

that we have at the present time. 

Mr. Speaker, another reason >-rhy we should hav:e this 

special committee set up is because the House is going to adjourn 

in another three or four c-reeks - well the House will adjourn 

before the middle of June,I will predict that right now 1 because 

the middle of June, but,Mr. Speaker, fortunately, fortunately, 

Sir, the Linerboard Mill has a six months stay of execution. 

-
During that time we must not sit back on our haunches and wait 

for something to haP.pen. If we had this special committee it 

could \vork hand in glove, Mr. Speaker, with the employees group; 

with the unions, it could work along with the Advisory Committee, -

it could 'I;·JOrk with the people in the Bay St. George area, it could 

work with the officials of government,and it could work, Sir, with 

managenent, and the peeople of the Bay St. Geoge area, with a view, 

Mr. Speaker, of co-ordinating the >.rork of all these groups and 

scrutinize all the reports and documents etc. that will result over 

the next three or four months from the work of the Advisory Board 
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Mr. Neary: 

and all the other groups in the Bay St. George area. And above all, 

Sir, it would keep the Linerboard problems above partisan politics. 



May 10, 1977 Tape No. 2509 

HR. NEARY: And we could use the best brains,if we have 

any in this House, the best brains on either side of the 

House, both sides of this House to handle this urgent 

matter. Now there is a positive suggestion and I regret 

that the bon. the Premier is not in his seat tonight to 

hear that suggestion. 

Mr. Speaker, sometime in June this House is going 

to recess for the Summer. We will not bt back any more 

until maybe s?me time in the late Fall, By that time it is 

too late, the Linerboard mill is gone. She is closed. The 

shutters are put on the window·s. There will be no sense 

NM- 1 

of urgency, the House is closed, bu? a special committee of 

this House can meet right through the whole Summer. A special 

committee of the House, Sir, would eliminate all the petty 

politics and bickering that we have seen over the last forty­

eight hours in the debate on the decision. to close the 

Linerboard mill at Stephenville.· 

fu'l' HON. BEMBER: What are you reading? 

MR. NEARY: I am not reading a thing, Sir. I have not 

got a thing,and if my hon. gentleman wants.to come over and 

take a look, all I have here is an amendment that I am 

going to move and hon. gentlemen, I hope,will vote for 

it. 

Let us hear it. HR. MORGAN: 

rfR. NEARY: Yes. The sub-amendment I &~ going to move, 

Sir, is in order. 

~1R. MORGAN: Seconded by whom? 

MR. NEARY: It is going to be seconded by my han. -friend, 

the member for Port de Grave (l'[r. Dawe). 

Xr. Speaker, I am not making this amendment,by the 

way, I want to tell the House this, I am not making this 

amendment for unlimited time. As a matter of fac~when 

I move the amendment., and I had to write it out in my mvn 

handwriting?Your Honour,because my secretary is not here 

tonight. 
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HR. NEARY: I am not doing it for unlimited time. I do not 

need unlimited time. I do not think there is one new 

idea can be injected into this debate at this particular 

time. Everything that can be said about the Linerboard 

mill has been said. And I do not want the debate to 

collapse. The mofion \vill be put, the government ~vill vote 

how will the government vote on this one? Let me see, what 

is the resolution? 

MR. MORGAN: Oh! He has not seen the resolution yet. 

MR. NEARY: The resolution - The govgrnment will vote for 

it. No, I think the resolution is just to have a debate,is it? 

AN RON. ME~.:BER: (Inaudible). 

MR. NEARY: The amendment, the amendment is a vote 

of non-confidence. 

MR. DOODY: Right. 

HR. NEARY: That is right. Once an amendment is moved 

it is a vote of non-confidence. So the Opposition have moved 

a vote of non-confidence in the government. They have amended 

the resolution. And, Mr. Speaker, the Opposition ~··ill vote 

for it, the government will vote against it, and then using 

their majority,and then the debate will die. 

MR. MORG~~: No, you can go back to -

MR. DOODY: The government may have the opinion and assistance 

of han. members -

MR. NEARY: Oh,there it is now. That is the key to the whole 

thing and I am glad my han, friend read it out. Because there. 

is why, Sir, that is what has motivated me -

AN RON. MEMBER: That is the original -

MR. NEARY: - that is right -has motivated me, Sir, to move 

a sub-amendment,if it is in order. And I am not going to make 

as a matter of fact,once I read the amendment that is it, no long 
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MR. NEARY: winded speeches. Mr. Speaker, if we are going to 

accomplish anything at this point in time, Sir, it is to 

offer positive, constructive suggestions to the Rouse and to 

I 

the administration. Now if they fall on deaf ears well then 

that is not our fault. But nobody will ever be able to 

accuse me, point a finger at me and say that I played politics 

~vi th this because I am not. I am begging and asking the 

government to set up a committee representing members on 

both sides of the House and use the best brains that we have 

in this House to try to find a solution to this problem. 

Now that is a pretty fair proposition, Mr. Speaker, 

and having said that, Sir, I would like to move the following 

sub-amendment, to remove all the words after "t:~at" and - I 

said substitute, what I should s~y is add therefore the 

following, "That the House appoint a special committee to work 

hand in glove with the employees groups, the management·, · thE" 

advisory board and the people of Stephenville with a view 

to co-ordinating the work of all groups and scrutinize all 

reports, documents, etc . to keep tbe Linerboard's problems 

above partisan politics and thus using the best brains 

available on both sides of the House to handle this urgent 

matter." 

SOHE RON . MEMBERS : Oh, oh! 
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MR. NEARY: No, Sir, no, that is it, it 

is just written out in my hand writing, that is all. 

MR. SPEAKER: I understand that this is 

moved by the hon. the member for LaPoile (Mr. Neary) 

seconded _by the hon. the member for Port de Grave (Mr. 

Dawe). Therefore moved by the hon. the member for 

LaPoile, seconded by the hon. the member for Port de 

Grave, to remove· all the words after 'that' and to 

substitute therefore the following, "The House appoint 

a special committee to work hand in glove with the 

employees groups, the management, the Advisory Board and the 

· people of Stephenville with a view to CO-:'ordinating the 

work of all groups and scrutinize all reports, documents 

etc. to keep the linerboard problems above partisan 

politics thus using the best brains available on both 

sides of the House to handle this urgent matter. 11 

MR. SPEAKER: · Is the House ready for the 

question? 

MR. DAWE: 

MR. SPEAKER: 

de Grave. 

Mr. Spe9-ker. 

The han. the member for Port 

MR. DAWE: I did not intend to speak at 

this present time. Actually I had a call in to 

Stephenville to try to get some further information. In 

supporting this amendment by my han. friend from LaPoile 

{11r. Neary) I made it quite clear to him in doing it I 

did not want to use it in any way as a device to prolong 

the debate. But since I have been a member of this House 

I have never been so perplexed, or giveri such deep 

concern, as I have to voting on this important matter. 

I want to assure all members on both sides of the House 

that I am not going to be involved in any partisan, cheap 

politics in this matter. I do not intend to and I am 

not going to get involved in any "~.-lay. 

I would like to suggest to the 
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MR. DAWE: government to reconsider, 

or to at least try in any way possible to delay the 

closing of · this mill. I do not think there is anything 

I can ,add to \vhat has been said these last two days, 

but I have one or two suggestions. Probably it may be 

practical,or it may not~but I would like to bring to 

a _~Qmmittee - probably it has been looked into by the 

Advisory Committee previous to this. 

The last few years I have 

had considerable experience in bringing bulk cargo into 

Newfoundland, and I have some idea of the costs involved. 

A company that I am associated with last year brought in 

80,000 tons~which I would say is a fair amount, 80,000 

tons. There is a way to reduce the costs, in my opinion. 

I could advise the House on freight rates, and I am sure 

the House would be amazed. 

I can also say that I am 

familiar with the discharging of products brought into 

Newfoundland. We are in the salt business for fishery 

purposes, and road salt. There is the possibility today 

to bring in salt - that is in bulk form now, from New 

Orleans to Newfoundland, nine dayssteaming to Argentia 

from New Orleans - and bring it in at the rate of $6.50 

per ton. This is a self-~nloading steamer. She is 

C~E~ble of discharging at the rate of 1,500 tons per 

hourF 1,500 tons per hour. 

The hon .. member asked me to 

second his motion just as I was going to make a call_ to 

Stephenville to find out the number of cubic feet in a 

ton of chipped wood. If I knew the actual number of 

cubic feet in a ton of . chipped wood, I could explain to 

the House -

AN HON. MEMBER: About one hundred. 

MR. DAWE: About one hundred? - what it 

would cost to ship that chipped wood from Happy Valley 
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MR . DAvTE: to Stephenville. We are 

planning to bring in salt this year and I have a 

brochure here from M .r~ . Patterson and Sons Lirni ted, a 

Canadian company. There is an 800,000 ton bulk 

carried. She has 3,230 cubic feet . This ship made 

her maiden voyage 



May 10, 1977 Tape 2511 lb-1. 

MR.DAWE: last year. She is in England. She is going to 

England in July. They are placing on that ship two six ton 

grab buckles. If that ship was bringing grain or salt to 

Newfoundland she will be able to discharge at the rate of 

512 tons an hour for salt and 464 tons an hour for grain. 

May I . say,Mr. Speaker, that those wood chips could be 

discharged and placed in piles at Stephenville for not more 

than $1.50 per ton. $1.50 per ton! We have had experience 

in this boat cargo movement and we can go into Stephenville 

and discharge salt and place it and load it on trucks for 

$1.50 per ton. So I try to bring this before the Hous~ , 

that probably I do not say -- I mean, the men who are on 

this committee are very experienced. They have looked in~o 

this. But what I am complexed with - is why should the cost of 

the wood be so expensive to move it from Happy Valley to 

Stephenville? 

As an example, I related to salt because 

it is a thing that I am very familiar with a~d these wood chips 

is a bulk cargo to bring salt from New Orleans to Argentia 

was $6.50 a ton 5 but to move that salt then from Argent±a to 

Clarenville to the Highway Depot by truck would cost you 

$6.50 ~ ton. So I am trying to relate that if it is done in 

the proper way,the way things can be done,it costs just as 

much to move that salt from Argentia to Cl~renville as it is 

to bring it frvm New Orleans to Argentia. 

I am very perplexed in this matter, Mr. 

Speaker 0 I am non-partisan,and all I hope and pray is tha~ . the 

government could find some way to keep this mill in operation. 

I did support this Bill when it came befo~~ the House when 

I was a member. I would say if this present government. 

brought in a similar measure today I would be supporting 

the same thing today, anything that would give employment 

and any industry that is based on natural resource. 

I 
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MR. DA~I/'E: I am not supporting this in any way in any non­

confidence in the government. I am not a person who believes 

in criticizing this one or criticizing this, that or blaming 

this one or blaming that one • _To me that gets you nowhere. 

I am doing this in good faith and with the utmo·st sincerity 

that in some way that for the good of Newfoundland this mill 

at least could be prolonged ~~ any way to provide at least 

one more try. We realize the position that the Minister .· 

of Finance is in, the position of the province. Every member 

knows the financial difficulties, inflation, the cost of water 

and ~ewer age, the cost of highways, demands on the Treasury. 

I had made a note even before this. when the hon. the Minister r.f 

·Justice spoke this afternoon then I was prepared to make 

sacrifices in my own district if this is what is required 

to help to keep this mill going, to give it a second chance. 

So, Mr. sreaker •. my remarks will be brief. 

I will just point out ·to the members of the House my concern 

in this matter. I do trust that it will be taken not as a 

motion - or not as · an intent of non-confidence in this government, 

which I have not. I do not want to be associated in that 

manner but I do this with deep desire and concern. I do trust 

that in some way, I repeat, in some way the government could 

probably reconsider their position in this matter and in some 

way that ways could be found at least to give this mill 

another try. 

I hope that this Select Committee could be 

appointed and in a non-partisan way. I do not· want to .be a­

member of that committee. I would not have the time to be a 

member of that committee if I were asked. 
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MR. DAWE: I will be busy in my own 

business when the House closes, so I am not doing that 

to try or to suggest in any way that I should be a 

member of that committee, but I would pass on any 

information that they would think might be of any help 

to them. 

I do say, Mr. Speaker, that 

I have much pleasure in seconding the motion prpposed 

by my bon. friend from LaPoile (Hr. Neary), and I do 

trust that the government will accept this in the 

spirit in which we have done it. And by this being 

non-partisan, at least the people of Stephenville will 

feel that at least we have given it one more try and 

that by this means there may ~e the possibility of 

saving Stephenville. If after this trial no improvement 

is made in the operation of the mill at Stephenville, 

then I would have no other choice but to support and 

recommend that the mill would be closed. But at the 

present time I think, in light of the information that 

has been presented to this House - I understand there 

is a very capable manager there now by the name of 

Mr. Sweeney. 

I do not go, certainly, for 

all those so-called experts. There are lots you read 

about, not related to this, but the cost of the 

development of James Bay Hydro electric, experts 

estimated the cost and it soared the line. The Concord -- - -

Aeroplane; the so-called experts were so far wrong i~ 

their forecast - and you could go on. People who are 

trained and are supposed to be so-called experts have 

been proven to be so wrong and they could be proven to 

be wrong at this time. That is the spirit in \V'hich I 

second this motion and I trust that the government will 

give it their most serious and careful consideration. 

MR. NEARY: Thank you, 'Eric'. 
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MR. SPEAKER: Before asking if the House is 

ready for the question or recognizing any other hon. 

gentleman,·as the case may be, I would inform hon. 
I 

members that I have made a minor alteration as to form 

in the sub-amendment. As hon. members know the Chair 

may do that, not as to content, obviously, but as to 

forrnr and that is, instead of the amendment reading to 

remove all the words after 'that' and substitute the 

following~ the amendment will read, "To add the following 

words to the motion. 'And furthermore that the House 

appoint a special committee etc.' identical thereafter. 

Is the House ready for the 

question? Those in favour 'aye', contrary 'nay'. In 

my opinion the 'nays' have it. 

AN HON. MEMBER: Devide. 

MR. SPEAKER: Let the House divide. Call 

in the members. 
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DIVISION 

MR. SPEAKER: Those in favour of the motion 

the sub-amendment please stand. 

Mr. Hodder, Mrs. Macisaac, 

Mr. Canning, Hr. Strachan, Mr. Nolan, Mr. Simmons, 

Mr. White, Mr. Smallwood, Mr. Rideout, Mr. McNeil 1 

Mr. Neary, Mr. Dawe. 

H.R. SPEAKER: Those opposed to the motion 

· the sub-amendment please stand. 

SOME HON. MEMBERS: Shame! Shame! Shame! 

The han. the Minister of 

Transportation and Communications, the hon. the Minister 

of Social Services, the hon. the Minister of Rural and 

Industrial Development, the hon. the Minister of Justice, 

the hon. the Minister of Finance, the hon. the Minister 

of Municipal Affairs and Housing, the hon. the Hinister 
.. 

of Fisheries, the hon. the Minister of Manpower and 

Industrial Relations -

SOME HON. MEHBERS: Shame! Shame! 

- the hon. the Minister of 

Education, Mr. Young, Dr. Twomey, Mr. Goudie, Mr. Windsor, 

Mr. Cross, Mr. Patterson, Mr. J. Carter, Mr. Woodrow, 

Dr. Winsor, Mr. Marshall. 

MR. SPEAKER: I declare the motion lost. 

Twelve voting for it, nineteen against it. 

The hon. the member for Naskaupie. 

MR. GOUDIE: Mr. Speaker. 

SOME HON. MEMBERS: Hear, hear! 

MR. GOUDIE; The remarks that_I have to offer, 

Mr. Speaker, can apply either under the sub-amendment or 

the original motion. .There has been very little emphasis 

placed on the situation, not as it exists now in Goose 

Bay -well that is part of it, Happy Valley ~Goose Bay _area, 

Northwest River and Mud Lake, three of the four communities 

in my district which are directly affected by the close-
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MR. GOUDIE: down,or the eventual closedown 

of the Labrador Linerboard mill at Stephenville. We 

are fortunate, I guess, in some ways in that we have 

already gone through it. We started last October in 

the Happy Valley - Goose Bay area when the axe was 

dropped, and the people now, they have agonized through 

it all Winter. They have fought all Winter, they have 

tried their best all Winter to stay alive. So we are 

not directly affected anymore. 

What I would like to do in 

offering these few remarks is just provide a brief · 

sketch. I should like to use a few figures tonight -

a lot of people have been using a lot of figures today 

to try and descirbe for the hon. House, and through the 

hon. House the public, I guess, of this Province,and 

explain a little bit about the Happy Valley - Goose Bay, 

Northwest River and Mud Lake areas. I·will just read some of 

the facts and figures as I have them here in this sketch 

which was compiled on the 19th of January 1977, although 

looking at some of the figures I would suspect that some 

old figures are being used. 
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!--ffi.. GOUDIE: To start at the top, the Town of Happy Valley/ 

Goose Bay was a result of the amalgamation of the b~o towns of Goose 

Bay and Happy Valley in 1974. Prior to-that there were the Town of Happy 

Valley and the local improvement distr_ic~ _of Goose Bay. It goes back to 

1941 when the RCAF decided to establish a base to serve as a refueling 

base for Allied aircraft. I think that is a pretty shak~y !tart _for any 

town to have, Mr. Speaker, in this Province, ~town that is built 

around an operation that is designed to carry out war - the war ~.ras 

already going then - but when you have to base a civilian community 

in this Province on an industry ~vhich supports ~var, the killing of 

people of the world, then you are off to a fairly shak_f7Y start. ·-Hopefully 

~vars are never going to continue for an indefinite period of time, 

otherwise.__ we would not be around here to worry about it anyway. 

Happy Valley_was established five miles from 

Goose Bay in 1943 by a group of civilians who began work on the base. 

The main impetus for grmvth came about wh~n the United States 

Government signed a t~venty-year lease with the Canadian Government 

for land on the Goose Bay reserve to contruct the USAF military base 

which eventually housed 10,000 personnel and their dependents -

that is just the military people we are talking about here, not the 

civilians. 

With the RCAF, RAF and large USAF presence, 

there w·ere significant demai_lds for civilian employment on the base. 

Thus, the population of Happy Valley increased by over 4, 500 bet-.;veen 

1951 and 1971. 

The Labrador Linerboard operation >vhich 

commenced in the early 1970's provided more impetus to the local 

economy. However, the problems began surfacing in the mid-1970's 

when the USAF announced that it intended definitely to close down 

its operation. At this point in time, there are ten USAF military 

personnel in Goose Bay - no dependents. 
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HR. GOUDIE: The effect of this was somewhat cushioned 

by the Federal Government's announcement that it would keep the 

base open and hire most of the USAF civilian employees. It was 

estimated that the net effect of the USAF pull-out would result 

in a reduction of airport employment from 1,083 personnel to 850. 

The crunch came in 1976 when the Gull Island 

power project did not proceed and it was announced that Labrador 

Linerboard would phase out its operations in Labrador. Linerboard 

employed 250 permanent personnel and 400 seasonal ~~~oyees who worked 

in the Goose Bay area. Most of these employees - the seasonal 

employees, and many of the permanent employes - were people who had 

moved in from the Island part of the Province. 

I guess this next paragraph is fairly important. 

Prospects for th~ future are not t~at bright. The mainstay of the 

economy is the 850 jobs at the airport, and unless a successful ~·mods 

operation can be established, it would appear that there will be a 

decline in the size of the community. 

So, I sympathize with the comments so ably 

put today by the hon. member for Stephenville (Mr. McNeil). I think 

he did a tremendous job in his presentation. 

As I have said, we have been going through 

this in Goose Bay on a smaller scale, although we are not talking 

about 25,000 people in the Happy Valley/Goose Bay area- it is a 

considerably smaller population than that. As a matter of fact, 

the population figures here for 1976 is 8,114 people. 

We could go on right down through - although 

there is very little point, I think, to go over the past history of 

the average salary of $8,600 per person in the Happ~ Valley/Goose 

Bay area a couple of years ago and compare it with what it is now -

there would be very little point in that, I think. But, just in 

terms of the unemployment itseif in the area, these figures were 
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MR. GOUDIE : compiled on the 30th of April this year, 1977, 

with a compfrison to figures on the 30th of April, 1976. I l-10uld 

like to point o~t that the figures I am going to use also represent 

coastal communities from L'Anse au Clair to Nain , but in terms of 

per centages the figures used as part of the overall total represent 

between one and a half and two per cent of the total figures we are 

talking about . 
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MR. GOUDIE: 1977~job vacancies right now are forty-five. 

In 1976 there were seventy-three. But the registered clients with Canada 

Manpower in Happy Valley- this is an interesting one- 1977; 2,536 people 

unemployed in a town with a popalation of a little more than 8,000. 

1976, still heavy unemployment then, but not nearly as bad - 1,274 people. 

These people, the registered clients,for instance, in the general labour 

or construction, heavy equipment fields are 1,320 or 52 per cent of the 

registered clients. There are vacancies in the labour field, approximately 

15 per cent of all jobs available for a total of 38 jobs. 230 people 

registered as of April 30. This is directly connected with the phaseout of 

the wood harvesting operation which well can be argued either for or against 

support of the Labrador Linerboard operation. 

Canada Manpower in our area passed out or allowed 

29 Mobility Programme grants to people to move outside the area. Their job 

placement - this is interesting for the area - placed 19 people locally, 

5 outside - 24 people out of 5,536 in that one little area. 

I mentioned in a few remarks a couple of weeks 

ago in this han. House that I thought also that the largest employer in the 

area right now, the federal Department of Public Works,was laying off. So 

they had some of the figures checked out. I do not know - apparently my 

remarks were not well-founded at that point in time, because if these figures 

are accurate,and I have no reason to doubt them, and I was not accurate; 

however, it is going to be interesting to see what happens over the next 

couple of months. But as of July 1, 1976, they employed 531 people - that 

is the federal Department of Public Works. As of May 1, 1977, they employed 

526. The. projected programme, if you will, from the 1st of May to September 

1st this year - 14 casual jobs will be terminated in June. So that ma~ 

represent the figures that I referred to earlier, that is in a different. 

debate. There are figures I can use here in relation to schools. I do not 

think it is necessary that I bring these figures out, but here is an 

interesting one. Last fall, we got the news in October I think it was, that 

the wood harvesting operation in the area would not continue any longer. 

Two or three trips of the William Carson - I am not sure - were booked for 

passengers going one-way in November to other parts of the Island. To date 
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MR. GOUDIE: for this shipping season,which will begin on 

7th June - the boat leaves here to travel to Goose Bay and then return -
I 

there are 144 families who have made reservations to move one-way from 

Goose Bay. So I am going on the assumption from that figure that most 

of these families are former Labrador Linerboard employee people. I 

was not able to get any accurate figures on the effect' of the closedown 

on business -

AN HON. MEMBER: 144 families? 

MR. GOUDIE: 144 families reserved one-way. Now as I said, 

C.N. could not say that they were Labrador Linerboard employees,but if they 

are going one-way I think we can probably assume that many of them are, or 

most of them, the casualties from the closedown of the wood harvesting 

operations in the area. 

The member for Stephenville (Mr. McNeil) when 

he was speaking suggested that perhaps I could tell some stories about the 

hardships the people suffered in this kind of a situation. Yes, I could 

and I just wanted to point out that governments federal and provincial when 

they employ people in that part of Labrador, and I think most other parts, 

offer a Northern living allowance. Generally I think the figure 

I 



May 10' 1977 Tape 2516 RT-1 

MR. GOUDIE: the people put forward is that it cost ten 

per cent more in Labrador to survive than it does in the Island part 

of the Province. So, the benefits go up ten per cent as well. 

I do not want to tell too many stories, but 

I think two, perhaps, bear repeating. I will, in a minute, get 

into and describe briefly the assistance that Government did come 

up with to help people through the Hinter. I know of families, a 

nUI:lber of families in Happy Valley, 'lvho moved into one housing unit,,--

two families in-one housing unit,- so that they could get through 

the Hinter,- sharing the cost of the light bills, the heat bills, 

and the grocery bills, because their Unemployment Insurance and 

the little savings they had would not take them through the Hinter 

because of the cost of living there- and we had an easy Hinter,just 

two nights, thirty degrees below (Celsius) - that is all in the full 

1-linter. That is hardly an average · daily temperature, let alone a 

nightly temperature Ln my part of Labrador, at least for two months 

of the year. So, we got off pretty easy. 

\~e did get some assistance, or we will be 

getting some assistance from Provincial Government shortly. I 

understand that up to a maximum of $308 a month Hill be provided 

to families r,;ho qualify - people who were affected by this 

Linerboard closedown in my area. Cheques, I am told, will be 

coming out this week - are being issued this week - from 

Stephenville to help pay off some of the debt that people ran into 

in my area through the Winter - in the areas I mentioned - rent, 

light and- fuel. So, that is a help. But, where do people go? 

They are going on the Hilliam Carson somewhere~ they do not 

know quite where to - well, I suppose they know where they are 

-
going in terms of their actual physical move. I do not know if 

they know ~;rhere they are going in terms of employment . 

. 
But, all of this stuff, the social effects 

that this kind of a major closedmm has on an area'~ brings out many 

feelings and many reactions in people. I was a little bit surprised 

one day last November. I received six phone calls one afternoon 
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HR. GOUDIE: between about 3:30 and 5:00 o'clock in my 

office from various people that I knew ~·1ere working with Linerboard. 

They were telling me: "You had better get out of your office. There 

are 100 Linerboard employees coming down to tear it apart!' I said, 

"You are joking, you are joking, they would not do that", so I brushed 

it off. I got home and just finished supper at 6:00 o'clock and 

the RCMP called: 11We have our full Force, 24 RCMP officers, on full 

standby for the night. We just wanted to let you know that. We are 

not telling you - to move your family. We are not telling you to do 

anything. We are just telling you that there is a group, allegedly 

a group of Linerboard employees,who have decided they are going to 

use you for a scapegoat and tear apart your house and your office, 

if necessary, to make their point." So, I shipped the family out -

moved them out of the house - my wife, my seven year old son and 

my five year old son. So, do not tell me about the social effects 

the phasedown or the close-out of an industry this size has on 

anyone. I know. I know ~vhat I am talking about. 

Well, that is it. It is done in Goose Bay. 

It is finished. 

I am going to vrind up my remarks because I 

cannot speak with any knmvledge on the financial implications of 

keeping it open or not keeping it open. I can guess. I prefer to 

sit back and listen to the experts and hear what they have to say. 

The social effects I can talk about • I have illustrated my point, 

I think. 

So, what are the alternatives for the 

Happy Valley/Goose Bay area? I keep saying that we have gone through­

the stage where everything is closing dow·n. There i-? one little 

group of people ~vho were affected· by this operation and Hho still 

have not gotten satisfaction - at least, in their opinion and in my 

opinion. There are ten men who· o\vn trucks, representing investments 

of $40,000 - $50,000 - $60,000 each - there are fourteen trucks 
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MR. GOUDIE: involved- who are now trying to get assistance 

from. ~he government. I hope that they will get some kind.of 

assistance through a loan, or small grants so they can convert 

their vehicles and take advantage of some road construction 

which thankfully will be going ahead this summer in the area, 
. -

some work going ahead on ·the road from Goose Bay to North 

West River. 

I hope that comes. We are holding 

discussions on -it right now~ maype that will. What are 

the alternatives? Rayor Van Beke is onea I do not 

know. if he is going to be an alternative or not. Up until 

Friday of this week he was employing directly in the area 

twenty-four men cutting wood. I do not know if the gentleman 

has been able to get or renew his permit to export wood. On 

Friday past he had not - at least I have not been talking, I 

should not have suggested that I was talking to Mr. Van Beke 

himself. I was talking to his representative 

here_in St. John's. I certainly hope that they can come up 

with some kind of an industry. They are not receiving, not 

that I know of~any financial assistance from this province, 

if the Minister of Finance can indicate I do not know . 

MR.DOODY: No, nothing. 

MR.GOUDIE: Sc, ±f it goes or fails it will do so on its own 

merit. I hope it goes ahead. I am not all that fond about 

a European company coming in and skimming off the profits. 

Granted,in doing tlla~ they \vill provide some employment. I 

would like to see some of the profits stay in the area for 

a change. We have a tradition of shipping things out of 

Labrador, elsewhere. 

We have a second alternative, - because 

government kindly agreed to put the cost of a survey, a 

market survey and a feasibility study which hopefully will 

be completed in the next five or six months, it will give 
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MR.GOUDIE: some ind~cation of whether ' or not it is practical 

to go ahead with the sawmill operation or some other type of 

operation. 

The third alternative is - I do not know 

if it is an alternative yet. But the possibility is there I 

guess. The Happy Valley - Goose Bay Development Corporation 

is not in place.They have hired a director. They were funded 

jointly by the provincial and federal governments with a 

sub-agreement which was signed this spring. They are going 

to look.into markets as well. Not just European markets,I 

understand~but I also understand they are looking for other 

markets. But if the telegram has not arrived in the P~emier's 

office right now it will be within the next few hours. They 

are sending a request, an official request from that development 

corporation to government that government· leave -the Lcbrador 

Linerboard equipment which is presently in Goose Bay, leave 

it in the area for an additional three months, while overseas 

markets are being investigated by the Happy Valley-Goose Bay 

Corporation. 

I do not know what the reply is ~oing 

to be. I would urge the goverD~ent - well the equipment is 

going to have to stay there until June anyway. There is 

no way you can get it out 

A...N'. HON. MEMBER: (Inaudible) . 

MR.GOUDIE: Yes, yes._ That is right after the shipping season 

is -bver we would like to see it stay a little while longer 

]ust in the hope that this development -

MR.ROBERTS: (Inaudible.) paid for by Ottawa . 

1-1R. GOUDIE: - yes. Yes. It is just as well to let the 

eq~ipmen~ to rust in Goose Bay as it is to let,it rust some­

where else. 

MR.ROBERTS: (Inaudible.) 

MR.GOUDIE: Probably it w~ll not, at least not as quickly. 
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MR.GOUDIE: But anyway we are hoping~ These are the three 

things that we hope will work out . I would like to commend 

the development corporation~and for the role it is playing 

government as well, in trying to help the people of Happy 

Valley-Goose ·Bay, North West River and Mud Lake to come up 

with some kind of an alternative industry. ~wo delegations 

came down during the winter months of 1976-1977 and discussed 

with the resources committee of Cabinet alternatives for the 

area. There was mutual agreement on both sides, government 

and the delegations concerned~trr~t we did not wish to see 

a crown corporation involved any more in our area at least 

in harvesting wood, just based on past records. 

So hopefully we will come up with a 

co=op perhaps.I do not know. I know the Minister of Tncnstrial 

2nd Rural Development is extremely interested in this. And 

has been extremely active,he · and some of his staff, in tryi~g 

to come up 
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MR. GOUDIE: with some kind of a working plan for 

the area. So we are hopeful. Right now we do not have too much to go on 

for the Happy Valley - Goose Bay area but we are hopeful, and if the markets 

are there they will be found,I am sure, either by government or by the 

Development Corporation or both. An~ the technology to harvest the wood 

and - well, the technology to harvest the wood is already there. I think 

we need to come up with some kind of working plan or working agreement, if 

you will, whereby we can ship the wood out at a little cheaper cost than 

has been in the past. So I am not quite sure, Mr. Speaker, under which of 

the two these remarks fall, the amendment or the main motion. But they 

were some concerns from my area that I wanted to· express, and I wanted to · 

let the members, particularly the members for the Bay St. George area know 

that I sympathize with them and I feel for them. I just hope that their area 

can stay alive and I certainly hope that my area can. 

AN HON. MEMBER: 

SOME HON. MEMBERS : 

MR. MORGAN: 

side. 

AN HON. MEMBER: 

MR. MORGAN: 

before? No. 

SOME HON. MEMBERS : 

MR. MORGAN: 

MR. DOODY: 

MR. MORGAN: 

MR. SMALLWOOD: 

Hear, hear! 

Yield! Yield! 

Well, there were two who spoke on the other 

Go ahead ,boy. 

Did the hon. gentleman speak in the debate 

Oh, oh! 

Is this his first time speaking in the debate? 

No, he has not spoken. 

He has not spoken? Then I will yield. 

Mr. Speaker, I thank the Minister of 

Transportation for his courtesy which he has shown to me on every occa~ion 

where we were involved together in anything. 

I have deep sympathy for two-hon, members of 

this House tonight - the member for Stephenville (Mr. McNeil) and the member 

for Naskaupi (Mr. Goudie). 

It must be a mournful experience to see the 

way of living of your district - to see it die, to see disaster overwhelm it. 

Every member of this House, I suppose, has had exper~ence of misfortune in 
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MR. SMALLWOOD: his constituency. This or that or the other 

thing has happened and it has adversely affected some of his constituents, 

but not many. The hon. member for LaPoile (Mr. Neary) when he was member 

for Bell Island had much the same bitter experience of seeing the only means 

of living for the great majority of the people of Bell Island disappear 

rapidly. That must have been a very bitter experience indeed. The latest 

is Stephenville and that area including a large part of St. George's district 

and a very large part of fort au Port district, and now the district of 

Naskaupi. I would guess that the economic condition of Naskaupi is the 

worst in the Province tonight. I do not know if the member for Naskaupi 

(Mr. Goudie) would agree with that. I do not think perhaps he heard what 

I said - that the economic condition of Naskaupi district is the worst of 

any district in the Province tonight. It is -

AN HON. MEMBER: The worst -

MR. SMALLWOOD: It is the worst of any district. In the case 

of Stephenville, the mill is still running. 

AN RON. MEMBER: Yes. 

' MR. SMALLWOOD: And-

AN RON. MEMBER: We do not have -

MR. SMALLWOOD: - 400 to 500 men are employed in it at reasonably 

good pay. In the case of Naskaupi, the whole of the Labrador Linerboard 

company's operation has, I believe, ceased completely. I do not know to what 

extent this Dutch gentleman is operating there and how many men are working 

cutting -

MR. GOUDIE: Up to a week ago he had 24 people directly 

employed in cutting wood. 

MR. SMALLWOOD: 24 people - that would be a poor substitute for 

the larger - much larger number there have been. 

MR. GOUDIE: Yes. But he is making an ef£ort. I just 

AN RON. MEMBER: (Inaudible) 

MR. GOUDIE: ·w;lsh him luck that he can -

AN RON. MEMBER: He is not to be condemned at the moment. 

MR. SMALLWOOD: Oh, no. Who is suggesting condemning him? 

Not I. I say, ' 
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MR.SMALLWOOD: however,the twenty-four men-

Ma.ROBERTS: A pretty small number. 

MR. SHALUvOOD: - c.irectly employed by that Dutch gerr!tleman 

is not a very happy substitute for~the- what was it,several 

hundred men? 

MR.ROBERTS: 536 

MR.SMALLWOOD: 500 men who were employed in the bush in 

that part of our province. So, I feel keenly for these 

four hon. members of this House, St. George's, Stephenville, 

Port au Port, and Nas~aup£: __ I would hot have it happen to 

any hon. member. I would not have it happen to any part 

of our province. To me, perhaps more than to any hon. member 

of the House tonight, it is a trcgedy that ought not to have 

had happened. It is a tragedy that began when the government 

with the unanimous consent of this House decided to nationalize 

that company. Or if not that . company then the company's 

property. I am not clear at the moment which it was. 

MR.ROBERTS: They bought the assets. 

MR.S~~LWOOD: They bought the assets of the company,not 

the company. then ~I assume,set up a new company in place 

of the one whose property they bought, and under a new name. 

wholly-owned by Her Majesty the Queen in right of Newfoundland 

a public corporation, a Crown Corporation. To me taking 

that over was as wrong as wrong could be. The government had 

all power , this House had all power and they could have 

exercised that power to exercise the most rigid controls 

over the company that existed. They did not need to buy 

the property of the company, its assets. They could have 

controlled the company. They had the whip hand. Just as~ 

they could have controlled the Churchill Falls Power 

Corporation. They did not need to buy out that company, 

tobuy out the majority of the shares and become the 

majority shareholder. They could have controlled. 
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MR. SMALLWOOD: This House is the High Court of Parliament. 

This House can pass laws,which in the saying of lawyers, to 

do anything except one thing, no law, that this House can 

pass. Can make a man out of a woman or a woman out of a 

man. They say that doctors can do that. They have done 

it in a few cases. But this Parliament cannot. But there 

is not much within the constitution that this Parliament 

cannot do. It is supreme. It makes the laws of the land, 

within the constitution, within its . jurisdiction. 

The Parliament of Canada for the whole 

Nation has certain powers to ffiake lawsas laid down in 

the Constitution. And this Parliament here, which usually 

we call Legislature or House of Assembly, this is the 

Parliament of the Province of Newfoundland. It,within its 

· limits as laid down in the Constitution,is supreme and it 

could have exercised absolute~and I mean absolute control 

over the company instead of buying out their property and 

going into business. 

The government went into the business 

of producing linerboard paper. First, the government went 

into the business of completing the construction of that 

great mill. I think they were the best in office, the 

best part of a year before the mill was completed and 

production began in it. That was the beginning of the 

mistake. A great blunder, although it was unaEimously 

accepted by this House, all hon. members on all sides 

voting for it, and speaking some of them in favour of it . 

I have just been reading the debates on Thursaay May 4, and 

Friday May 5, 1972. It was a unanimous decision of the 

House. The House was wrong. It was not the first time 

the House was wrong. It will not be the last time. It 

was wrong on that occasion as it was wrong also to pass 

a law nationalizing Churchill Falls Power Corporation or 
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MR. SMALLWOOD: authorizing the purchffie of their shares 

on what was in fact, in fact if not nominally?in fact a 

compulsory 

I 
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:l-IR. SN..A.LL\\YOOD: basis, and all the trouble, ~tr. Speaker, 

has flowed from that first fatal blunder of putting the Goverr~ent 

into something in 'vhich you had no experience at all. The 

Government of Newfoundland had never operated a great paper mill. 

In Grand Falls,a company had done so, in Corner Brook,a company 

had done so, but they Here private companies. Here ,.;as a case 

where the Government of the Province went into the business of 

making linerboard paper, and in that , they had had no experience. 

They have had a lit-tle, the last two or_ three years} but they had 

had none. Maybe you can say. they have been practising - they 

have b~en apprenticed to the business of manufacturing linerboard 

paper and they have not made a very good fist of it. I would not 

recommend them today to take over any linerboard paper mill and 

begin operating it, managing it, even with the experience they have 

had, because the experience they have had does not indicate that 

they are really competent managers of such a great mill. So, that 

is where~ !:he blunder was made, and from it evil results have come. 

Because, as it has been said so eloquently by my hen. friend, the 

member for Stephenville (Nr. McNeil) in his remarkably able speech 
... 

today - emotional but factual, convincing, sincere; - one of the 

best speeches I have ever heard of many hundreds of speeches in 

this house and in the old Colonial Building - as he pointed out in 

his speech today , it has been one long, almost unbroken, monotonous 

series of blundering mismanagement. 

When the Government took over the property, 

I understand - I can be corrected 6n this - but I do understand 

that they found in existence a contract, a shipping contract with 

-
a highly reputable shipping company- I am not sure if _they were English 

Tney were European. I think, perhaps, English - a contract for, I think, 

five years to transport the pulpwood cut in Goose Bay~ in that area~ 

to Stephenville. A contract had been made. It was for a term~ I 

believe, of five years, and the prices to be paid by the mill for 

the transport of the pulpwood to Stephenville,--· the pr-ices "'ere named 
-- ~--

in the agreement. 
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HR. SMALLHOOD: Is it correct that the Government - and I 

have made this point sufficiently often that I scarcely need not 

say nmv at this point that tvhen I say Government, --- the present 

Administration$ - in connection with the Linerboard paper mill 

I really mean one man-.r· I mean John Crosbie, - a powerful man, self­

willing, a man of great power, great determination, great will 

and great ability,· but no ability to run a paper milL_ He had 

never run a paper mill, he had never worked in a paper mill, he 

did not know anything about paper mills, but he was a powerful man -

is it correct that in effect John Crosbie took that shipping 

contract and tore it up and proceeded at once to make a new contract 

with the same company,.- - the same steamship company,- employing the 

saoe ships at several times the price per ton. Is that correct? 

If it is -

AN HON. l"rE~iBER: I do not knm-1 if it is correct, but it does 

not sound like John Crosbie. 

(inaudible) 

HR. SHALLWOOD: If it is correct, it is a gigantic blunder, 

to say the least. If, when the Government took over, they found 

in existence a contract between the old company, the original 

company,· and a European company - I believe British.· I have been 

told it was_British. In fact, I have been told it 
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MR. SMALLWOOD: is British. In fact I have been told 

their name and I have forgotten it - for a period of,I believe, five 

years at certain stated prices per ton of pulpwood to convey that 

pulpwood from Goose Bay to Stephenville; and that the government tore 

it up and proceeded to make a new contract with the same shipping 

company who would use the same ships to do the same work, 

but at prices between twice and three times as high as in the first 

contract. Is that correct or not? 

MR. NEARY: Crosbies ended up in one of the -

HR. SMALLWOOD: 

AN RON. MEMBER: 

MR • . SMALLWOOD: 

Is that correct or not? If it is correct -

to my knowledge, 

The hon. gentleman~to his knowledge not -

I do not know if he was a member of the Board of Directors when that was 

done, if it was done. I do not know if, being a member of the Board of 

Directors, he was aware of everything that the Board did. I do not know. 

MR. OOODY: I was not at that time, no. 

MR. SMALLWOOD: Is it correct that when the nationalization 

took place another contract was found to exist providing for the transport 

of the finished products of the mill itself in Stephenville to Europe 

AN RON. MEMBER: (Inaudible) 

MR. SMALLWOOD: - and that it was for a period of, I hear, 

five years- that it, too was torn up, and· that a new contract was made with 

the same company as the one with-which the contract torn up had been made, 

but for considerably higher prices? Now if that is correct, and I have no 

personal knowledge that it is so, this -

AN HON . MEMBER: 

MR. SMALLWOOD: 

AN HON. MEMBER: 

MR. SMALLWOOD: 

A.~ HON. MEMBER: 

What are the charges? 

I am not charging. I am· asking question~. 

(Inaudible) 

I am asking questions. 

The bon. gentleman might have a new suit to wear 

tomorrow if he stays outside the ·House. 

MR. SMALLWOOD: 

AN HON. MEMBER: 

MR. SMALLWOOD: 

Is it correct that there was found to exist -

Take your vile -

- a marketing contract to market the product of 
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MR. SMALLWOOD: the mill, and that that contract was for 

a period of five years? Is that correct? Was it with a man named Heinzel 

in Vienna?- a man, -by the way, whom I met once at least~maybe twice1I 

was in his office -

AN HON. MEMBER: 

MR. SMALLWOOD: 

AN HON. MEMBER: 

MR. SMALLWOOD: 

Wilfre& Heinzel. 

- in Vienna. Wilfred Heinzel? 

Wilfred Heinzel -

Yes. And Heinzel, the owner of four or five 

small factories similar to the one up in James' Lane. The making- oh, no -

not similar necessarily because in James' Lane the factory~I believe, takes 

the finished product and makes boxes or cartons of it whereas his - factories 

bring in the fluted material and the linerboard paper for front and back and 

make linerboard, cardboard carton material - and that that contract was for 

240,000 tons a year, and that it was for a period of years, and that it was 

torn up. Now I could understand if the government or if John Crosbie took 

over the Linerboard mill as a sort of pet hobby of his own and was going to 

run it, that he would want to repudiate all contracts that existed before he 

took over. I could understand his doing that. I could understand his wanting 

to make his own contracts, including a contract for the marketing of the 

product. Now,Mr. Speaker, it is very obvious that if you have a paper mill, 

then the supply of wood for it is of absolutely basic importance. Without 

the wood,no mill. You canriot make linerboard paper without wood. It 

cannot be done. So getting the wood is of prime importance. Transporting 

it from the source to the mill that is going to use it is of prime importance. 

The conveyance, the transport of it, the shipping of it - prime importance. 

Then, assuming the mill is there and that you have first class management, 

the next thing of prime importance is marketing the output of the millr 

That is of prime importance. If you fall down on the wood 1 
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MR. SMALLWOOD: the mill has to be a failure. If you fall down 

on the marketing the mill has to be a failure. No matter haw 

good the mill is~ no matter how efficient the mill is, ~_no 

matter how well it has been designed, no matter how perfectly 

and smoothly is operating its machinery inside of the wallsJ 

_no ·matter how good the management is, if that wood problem is 

nat solved and if the marketing problem is not solved then 

the mill has to fail. 

So therefore it was of crucial importance 

as far as that great paper mill is concerned, one of the largest 

in the world, a mill which was nominally designed to produce 

1000 tons a day- but actually 1200 -- and if the han. members of 

this House ~.;rish to look up my speech \·7hen I introduced the Bill 

in the first inst2nce they will find that I said the mill is 

designed nominally to produce 1000 tons a day, actually it is 

designed to produce 1200 tnns a day - and it is only the other day 

quite recently that it actually reached the 1200 tons a day. 

MR. DOODY: Budget day- 1196 on budget day. 

MR. SMALUiOOD: 1200 to:l.S a few days ago, two or three '\veeks 

ago. 

~.DOODY: They lost four hours one day. 

MR. SMALU~OOD: On one day, yes, on one day. Well it is 

supposed to produce that every day. On that day, that is the 

only day it did produce the 1200 . But if it can do it in one 

day it is a fair bit of evidence, it is rather·convincing, 

rather persuasive that it can be done on two days and if on two 

then it can on three. But it might take a year or two mare to get 

it constantly producing at that rate. 

}fR.DOODY: The market is still -

MR. S}'!A.LLWOOD: Apart from market. I am talking at the moment 

about the mill. I will come back to market. But I said the 

mill itself must be well designed, all the machinery in it must 

be well made, it must be weil installed. You have then a 

I 
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MR. SMALLWOOD: magnificent mill. If you have maginficent 

management you can get it up finally to its rated capacity 

of 1200 tons. This they have done. There is no complaint 

about the mill. I have not heard any complaint about the mill 

itslef. 

AN. HON. MEMBER: (Inaudible). 

MR. S¥ALLE'OOD : That may well be. That may well be. But the 

mill itself is a superb mill, one of the great paper mills of 

the world. I always bridled every time I heard it called the 

Linerboard Mill. You would think it was a shingle mill, making 
j 

shingies or something, making some kind of lumber. some kind 

of board. The main machine in that mill, Sir, is two inches 

narrower than the biggest on the earth. It is a gigantic machine. 

The mill itself is a gigantic mill. It is the second biggest in 

the world. So it is a superb mill. Now, you have to have three 

things. Once you had that mill you had to have wood, well cut~ 

well harvested and well transported, to. keep the mill supplied 

with wood at an economic price. 

Then on the other end you had to have good 

marketing. Good marketing. Efficient marketing. I am told-

in fact he told me himself, and I have not seen "Hilfred Heinzel 

for ahout six or seven years- Heinzel told me himself~ and I 

confirmed iti he was the distributor of linerboard products and 

other paper products all over Europe, the Near East, the Middle 

East, and the Far East for :M..acMillan Bloedel , of British 

Columbia~was and is now,four international paper companies, Fort 

Union,Camp,now they are three of the mightiest companies in the 

world producing paper and paper products, Heinzel is ·the 

distributor in Europe, Near East, the Middle East, the Far East 

this side of the Iron Curtain. The other side of the Iron 

Curtain the marketing agent for those gigantic companies ~v.lth 

whom the. previous owners of the mill made a contract, a five 

year contract under which he was 

I 
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r.ffi.. SHALL WOOD : to market 240,000 tons a year 

of the ~inerboard paper to be made in the mill at 

Stephenville. Is it correct that,in effect, ~-1r. Crosbie 

tore up that contract also? Is that correct? 

MR. MORGAN: No, it is not correct. 

MR. SMALLWOOD: It is not correct? Is it 

correct that he proceeded to make a new contract with a 

company that had never marketed any linerboard in their 

lives, or anything else, because they \<lere only formed 

for the purpose of entering into the contract? Is that 

correct? 

SO:ME HON. MEHBERS: 

MR. NEARY: 

HR. MORGAN: 

HR. SMALLHOOD: 

I wonder? Is there a page? 

AN HON. MEMBER: 

MR. SMALUvOOD : 

Correct! Correct! 

Right on! 

That is some ch~rge. 

Could I get a glass of water 

Excuse me, I will get you one. 

Well, the hon. ~entleman with 

his usual courtesy and unfailing generosity of spirit -

MR. NEARY: The hon. gentleman has finally 

come into his own, a page in the House. 

MR. S~mLLWOOD: No, that is not - do not 

despise any hon. member's courtesy. 

MR. MURPHY: Up in the morning with the 

dipper coming up. 

HR. SMALLWOOD: Good! Good! 

MR. NEARY: Nipper Murphy. 

MR. NOL&~: Where are you~back in the 

baseball park,are you, 'Ank'? 

MR. MURPHY: Ah 'John', I know where I 

came from. 

MR. NOLAN: 

you are going. 

MR. SMALLWOOD: 

MR. MURPHY: 

That is right boy, and where 

Flower Hill? 

I am not ashamed of it. 
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MR. MURPHY: 

in my family. 

MR. S~.ALLWOOD : 

There were no silver sp~ons 

I see. The hon. minister is 

not one who spurns the base means by which he did ascend. 

MR. SIMMONS: The base degrees. 

MR. SMALLWOOD: The base means. 

Mr. Speaker, is it correct -

this is why I voted for the sub-amendment moved by my 

hon. friend from LaPoile (Mr. Neary) asking for a 

committee to look into these matters. They really ought 

to be looked into. They really ought to be - is it 

correct that when Mr. Crosbie took o~er he found in -

the hon. the member for Naskaupi (Hr. Goudie) \vould 

probably be very familiar personally with this aspect -

is it correct that there were in the operation in Labrador 

a number of tree harvesters, tree harvesting machines -

AN HON. HEHBER: 

.MR. SMALLWOOD: 

MR. HURPHY: 

AN HON. MEMBER: 

MR. NEARY: 

Tree! 

MR. SHALLWOOD: 

MR. NEARY: 

AN HON. MEMBER: 

MR. NEARY 

T-r-e-e. 

What is it'? 

Tree.,not three. 

T-r-e-e. 

What do you know! He can spell 

Tree. T-r-e-e. Tree harvesters. 

Go to the head of the class. 

T-r-e-e. 

Hurray! 

MR. SMALLWOOD: These are magnificent _ ~~chi~es, 

Mr. Speaker, which go up to a tree, the operator is in a 

glass enlcosed cabin, it goes up to the tree and knives 

go up and come down the tree and just limb it straight 

down to the ground. Then a knife cuts it off at the bottom 

and a hook - I beg the minister's pardon. 

AN HON. MEMBER: It limbs them? 

MR. SMALLWOOD: It limbs the tree. It limbs 

them out, and then cuts the tree off down close to the 
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!.ffi.. SMALLWOOD : ground saving as much of the 

tree as possible, and then a hook or arms seize and 

lift it right up and lay it down on a trailer that the 

machine it towing behind it - that they found a number 

of these tree harvesters in use there and proceeded to 

sell them? Is that correct? Sold them off, is that 

correct? And also cancelled an order that was alleged 

to exist, to have been placed by the company for more 

tree harvesters that had not arrived. Is it correct 

that that order was cancelled? That the harvesters 

that had not arrived and were in use were sold off and 

the order for additional tree harvesters cancelled? 

And is it correct that not long after that they placed 

orders for brand new tree harvesters at substantially 

higher prices? Is that correct? 

MR. MO RGAi~ : 

MR. SMALL\'lOOD: 

Who? Who placed the orders? 

The new owners. The new 

owners. The present owners. 

Now, Sir, if these questions 

are answered in the affirmative, if the answer turns out 

to be yes; Yes,there was a shipping contract to bring 

the pulpwood from Goose to Stephenville 
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MR. SMALUvOOD: and that it was torn up a~d 

that a new one was made with the same shipping company 

using the same ships but with two or three times a 

higher price? If the answer to that is yes,this happened; 

if the answer to the question, Was there a contract 

covering the shipping of the fini~hed product of the mill 

from the mill to the markets in Europe 9 and that it too 

was torn up and that a new one was made at much higher 

prices vd.th the same shipping company, if the answer to 

that is yes,this happened; and if the question is asked, 

Was there a contract with a highly skillful, highly_ 

successful, highly reputable marketer of paper oroducts 

in Europe and Asia and between Europe and Asia for five 

years covering the marketing of 240,000 tons a year and 

was that torn up, and if the answer to that is, Yes it 

was torn up; and then if the question is asked, Was Mr. 

Heinzel paid a large amount of money in lieu of the 

contract, and if the answer to that is, Yes he \'las paid 

a quarter of a million dollars cash, if the answer to 

that question is yes; if the question is asked, Was a 

deal negotiated for the management of the mill and the 

marketing of the product, neg9tiated with Canada's 

mightiest paper producing company, !'1acHillan Bloedel, 

and that the day before it was to be signed MacMillan 

Bloedel were informed that the deal was off and that a 

new deal was made inst'ead with a little two-by-four 

company that was formed for the purpose, a little two­

by-four company, if the answer to that is yes, and 

if the answers to all these questions are yes,that is 

what happened, then surely everyone hearing that answer 

would agree with Mr. An_drew Crosbie, who told me in my 

own home ~'lith regard to the Linerboard paper mill at 

Stephenville that the management of it was the most 

atrociously, savagely bad he had ever heard of. 



May 10, 1977, Tape 2524, Page 2 -- apb 

MR. H. COLLINS: Why did he not take it over? 

Why did he not take it over? 

1-lR. SMALLWOOD: Did he have a chance to take 

it over? 

AN HON. MEMBER: He is doing good. 

MR. SMALLWOOD: Did Andrew Crosbie have a 

chance to take it over? 

MR. H. COLLINS: If he made a proposal I am 

sure he would be accepted. livhere is he? 

MR. NEARY: The Minister of Justice has 

disappeared. 

MR. H. COLLINS: Where is he? 

MR. SMALLWOOD: I am not answerable -

MR. H. COLLINS: Where is he? 

MR. Sr1ALLWOOD: I do not know. I am not 

answerable for his whereabouts, I am not answerable for 

his business decisions, his business policies. All I 

know about the matter in relation to Andrew Crosbie is 

that he told me in my home, not my house but my home, he 

told me that in his opinion the management of the mill, 

the Linerboard paper mill was savagely and atrociously 

bad. 

MR. H. COLLINS: Why do you not give it to 

him and let us see if he can work it? 

MR. S11ALL~V'OOD: I am not arguing that it should 

be given to him. I am not answerable for him or his 

decisions, I am merely reporting to ~he House what one of 

the ablest businessmen in Newfoundland, one of the most 

successful businessmen in Newfoundland -

~1R. MORGAN: 

HR. S~.ALLivOOD: 

John C.Crosbie's brother. 

Who-is a· brother of John C. 

Crosbie, correct, and no one ever said that John 

Crosbie is not an extraordinarily able man . 

.r.1R. H. COLLINS: And Andrew Crosbie would not---

touch his brother up there with a fifteen foot pole. 
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MR. SMALLWOOD: 

MR. SIMMONS: 

twenty foot pole. 

MR. SMALLWOOD: 

That might well be so. 

Nor the minister with a 

But the minister is making a 

point that really is not germane,· it is not - apropos. 

MR. H. COLLINS: It is very germane. 

MR. SMALLWOOD: No. No. We are not discussing 

the question of whether Andrew Crosbie wanted to take 

over the mill. 

SOME HON. MEMBERS: Oh, oh! 

NR . H. COLLINS: Why did he not take it over? 

MR . F. WHITE : Order! Order! Order! 

MR. SMALLWOOD: Well, maybe he has too many 

things on his plate, maybe he has too many enterpr.ises, 

maybe he has too many business concerns. 
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MR. SMALLWOOD: ~.;re all know that Andrew Crosbie must have 

seventy or eighty companies in New·foundland - aircraft, trucks, 

taxis, printing·, publishing, construction, soft drinks, insurance -

I mean, you cannot remember half or quarter of the companies -

and maybe - what am I - am I defending Andre~., Crosbie? 

A.l-i RON • HEHBER: It seems like it. 

HR • SMALUJOOD : I am not defending him. I merely report to 

the House -

SOME RON. ME~~ERS: Oh, oh! 

MR. SHlu,LHOOD: - his opinion. 

A.l-i RON • ~fEMBER: Any hon. member would wish to defend his ~ampaign 

manager -

MR. SPEAKER: Order, order! 

MR. SHALLWOOD: vJell, I have no reason to thank Andrew Crosbie 

for managing my campaign. If he had not been managing my campaign, 

I might still be sitting over there, and some of the han. gentlemen 
. -

there would not even be in the House, and if they were, they would 

be over here. Andrew Crosbie is an able businessman but not an able 

political manager of a general election campaign. I can testify to 

that. 

PREMIER MOORES : You said it. 

HR. S¥ALLHOOD: I knoH, I said it, and it is not the first 

time I am saying it. 

:MR. J. CARTER: Would the ~on. member still have seen the Linerboard 

mill through? 

HR.. SNALUJOOD : The Linerboard mill would be operated by the 

company and the Government would not have nationalized it. John 

Doyle or his company -he is the principal shareholder,but there are 

thousands of shareholders -

SOME RON. NEMBERS: 0!1, oh! 

MR.. Sl:'!ALUlOOD : The han. ~~nister has to get up a lot earlier 

in the dav to throw me off. 

Hhat I plead ~oTith the Government to do - I 

hope the Premier is listening because I have learned something about 
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MR. S~.ALUTOOD : the Premier~ ~ unlike me - I can sit in this 

House and suffer dumb punishment by the hour, by the day ~ ~ut the 

Premier is not the kind of man ivho can suffer dull speeches gladly; 

but he can listen, he can -.;.;rork a·way at his desk and the loudspeaker 

is on and he can hear every word that is spoken in the chamber. He 

listened to a speech I rnade here yesterday . v7hen this bill was 

introduced, and he \vas not in the House at all,. he was not in the 

Chamber. I hope he is listening, and if he is not, and as the 

Hinister of Finance is not present in the Chamber, I hope he is 

listening; and if he is not, then the Hinister of Justice. I want 

him to listen carefully to what I am about to say, because it 

comes from my heart and it comes from my head, both. 

I think that every Cabinet ::-finister, 

every member of the Administration at the moment, if he had his time 

back -.:vould probably have said a plague on it and driven the owners 

to run it and to finish it and make a job of it. However, that is 

water under the bridge. 

Now they have the mill. You have t1·1o stories: 

one, an uncompleted and incomplete report from the Advisory Eoard 

they have set up, a board consisting of Bowaters and Price, indendedent, 

they are not rivals -

AN HON. MEMBER: (inaudible) 

MR. NEARY: The Power Corporation. 

MR.. SMALUTOOD : Yes. They are not interested in pulpwood, 

forests, anything like that. HoVlever you have the Board. They are 

there. There they are - all highly reputable men - all of them, 

every single individual person on the Board, highly reputable and 

decent and civilized. You have then,in an incomplete report - the 

report is not in yet - there is an interim report or a thing in 

passing vrhere they sP..y not to close it - they say they do not advise 

keeping it open under the existing circumstances. That is a far 

cry from, say, close it down. Later on they will submit another 

report which may be in greater depth and may offer a better 

alternative. 
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MR. S}'!ALUlOOD : Now, that is on the one hand. On the other 

hand you have the speech today by the member for Stephenville 

(Mr . . McNeil) in Hhich he marshals in a quite 

I 
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MR. SMALLWOOD: masterly fashion. You would think he was· a 

trained lawyer. You would think that he was a trained barrister. 

You would think that he was a man who was accustoBed all his life 

to marshalling facts and then reciting them, stating them, 

convincingly and in proper sequence because it was a superb 

speech. What was the effect of that speech? Not just what 

he said but the evidence he produced for us here today, what· 

was the effect of that evidence? That there is a distinct 

possibility perhaps .,not a certainty, a distinct possibility 

that with really efficient management,such as it has had for 

the first time from its inception in the last six months at 

the person of Hr. Slaney or Sweeney; I do not know the 

gentleman, I have never laid an eye on him. 

But given really down-to-earth,tough-

minded,business-like management, given that - and after all 

he has it up to 1200 tons a day, that is something, that -is 

something for a mill that was practically a cripple, that was 
. . 

almost decrepit, where everybody connected with it was down 

hearted and dispirited and discouraged. From that he has 

brought it to· a superh smooth-running machine turning out 1200 

tons in one day. That kind of management, skillful, _ down-to­

earth, business-like and sympathetic, wanting to make a 

success of it~and determined for his own reputation's sake to 

make a success of it,,_ given that kind of management a 

distinct possibility, a distinct probability that it can be turned 

about from a loser to a maker- of profit at leastt from the standpoint 

of operating cost. 

Maybe one day if it became that in the 

next two or three years it could be turned into a great enterprise 

breaking even, taking in as much money as it is paying out to operate~ 

it would not take too many years perhaps before they could begin 

paying some interest on the debt of the enterprise. 

Now there you have the two possibilities. They 

I 
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MR.. SMALLWOOD: say that this year it would take $55 million. 

'They' say! Wh~t say 'they'? Who are they? You have Mr. Sweeney 
-- -----;.·-- ·-- - -- -- -- - - --- - ·· --- - -- - --

telling the Financial Post, the great financial newspaper of 

Canada, tells it to_their co~responde?t~ ~andell Litchfield,_ 

that he can get the mill's operating loss. Now this is 
--- - '" -

no slouch. This is no farmer. This is no longshoreman. 

This is no logger. This is a man who has been running 

paper mills for thirty-five years. This is the man the 

Newfoundland Government, the present administration,were 

proud and happy and grateful to get _to come in and 

manage the mill, so his word must be worth something. 

He says publicly that he can get the mill's 

operating loss down to $14 million by the end of 1977. That is 

this present year. Six to eight million dollars loss next year, 

and th ree to six million dollar profit the year after. In other 

words in three years. 

AN .HON .MEMBER: Three minutes left. 

MR. SMALLWOOD: Three minutes left. Well; really I have said it all. What 

I plead with the government to do . - if the Minister of Justice would 

listen ~ find some good,solid~reputable~successful, efficient outfit, 

sell it to them, give them an endless time to pay for it, ~ut do 

not give it away. Do not assume the debt and say, ~ere,you take 

the mill~ you have the mill, ;we have the debt and the Newfoundland 

people forever,until the debt is paid off,will pay the interest 

on it and finally when it matures we will pay off the principal. 

Leave the debt to us • We will worry about the debt. You take 

the mill for a bargain. Not that. Not that. Future generations 

would curse your menory. But find 
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MR. SMALLWOOD: a good outfit , denationalize it, 

denationalize: Admit in effect,without putting it into words,that it 

was a mistake to nationalize it. Well, perhaps it was inevitable. 

Let us be generous about it. The Opposition were generous in 1972. 

They voted for you to go ahead and nationalize it. Okay, that is 

water under the bridge. What are you going to do now- close it down? 

You cannot do that. And do not close it down and then wait for a buyer. 

Do not forget what happened today in the financial papers across the 

United States and Canada and in The Evening Telegram here where there 

is an ad calling for tenders, practically for scrap~of a mighty oil 

refinery. Do not wait for that. Ah, well, wait and see. Time will 

tell. Do not take any chances like that. Do not let it close down. 

While it is still operating~give it a chance. And this offer made 

that was going to take ten or twelve or fifteen millions or twenty 

millions this year out of the Treasury - pay it, and cut down on other 

things that are less worthy - wortqy, but not so worthy as keeping that 

life in that mill. Can the government not do that? Is it not the right 

thing to do1 They do not want to be saddled forever as the crowd that 

let a beautiful industry just die. They do not want that. I plead 

with them to do this. Denationalize it. Find tip-top,experienced 

people to take it over on a good business-like basis and we will all 

call you Blessed. 

:HR. SPEAKER: The han. member for St. John's North. 

MR. J. CARTER: Mr. Speaker, without wishing to debate with 

the han. member who just finished speaking, I think his entire speech 

could be summed up in a few words, in a simple sentence -'I hate 

. - -
John Crosbie' - because that is the message that came across this House 

and there was very little else. There was a lot of rhetoric but there 

is no question in my mind at least that the hon. member was saying, 

'I hate John Crosbie.' And it is not without good reason that he does 

hate him. I can see that he has some reason for hating him. John 

Crosbie is the one man who managed- or without whose efforts the han. 

member would still be Premier of this Province -

AN HON. MEMBER: (Inaudible) 
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MR. J. CARTER: - And along with himself as Premier would 

be John Doyle as his 1st Lieutenant and John Shaheen as his 2nd Lieutenant 

and God knows who else as his 3rd Lieutenant, probably the member for 

LaPoile (Mr. Neary) -

AN HON. MEMBER: Sammy Davis -

MR. J. CARTER: - probably the member for LaPoile· as his 3rd 

Lieutenant. Anyway, Mr. Speaker, I will let it go at that, because what 

I rose to speak about are facts and figures and I would like .to debate­

to return, to get away from rhetoric, although rhetoric has its place, 

and I think the hen. member who represents the area for Stephenville 

(M~. McNeil) did a very good job. Some of· his points were well made. 

Still I think that while there is a time for rhetoric there is also a 

time for figures. And taking page 26, Table 10 of the Information 

Memorandum- Linerboard Limited which has, I understand, been made 

available to all members, I would just like to very briefly run through 

these figures and then let han. gentlemen.who will get up to speak after­

wards comment upon them as they wish. 

Mr. Speaker, we are told that the average 

cost of wood is $76.43 per cord and that the number of cords or units 

per ton of linerboard is 1.92. So what I have done is I have taken 

the costs as outlined on page 26~and I have taken the highest cost 

there and then I have searched through this booklet and where I could 

find a lower cost or the lowest cost I have put that in a column next 

to it. And using the highest cost for wood I find that the cost for 

wood in a ton of linerboard is $146.74 as on page 26 of this book. 

But taking the lowest cost for a cord of wood, in this brochure as 

$57.04 and multiplying that by 1.92 I come up 
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MR. J. CARTER: 

with · a cost for wood per ton of Linerboard of $109.51. There is a 

figure here, next, for secondary fibre at $4.64. I have had to leave 

those two figures identical because I cannot find a lesser cost,and 

other or miscellaneous, $14.09. And then the next item is water 

which the Minister of Municipal Affairs and Housing tells me theJ 

company does not pay anyway, it has not paid. So that is $1.92 per 

ton of Linerboard. But I will put that in anyway. Then there is the 

cost for fuel which is figured as $21.04 per ton of Linerboard. 

Now, Mr. Speaker, we know that the cost of fuel can only go up. It 

cannot go dowu. It is certainly not going to go down. Canada at · 

the present time is receiving, in the East Coast of Canada anyway, 

is receiving subsidized oil. And we are told that in the next few 

months oil is going to take another rise. And we are looking at very 

substantial rises in the cost of fuel in the years ahead. 

AN RON. MEMBER: Is the han. member talking about fuel? 

MR. CARTER: This is the cost. I am taking the figure, Mr. Speaker, 

from page 26, table (10). And the cost of fuel is rated here, cost 

premium as twenty-four and three-quarter cents per gallon. Eighty 

five gall~ns of fuel are used to make a ton of Linerboard and therefore 

they· come up with a figure,$21.04,for the cost of fuel in a ton of 

Linerboard. And what I am trying to point out is that that figure 

must go up. It cannot go down. It has to go up and will go up 

substantially. 

MR. MCNEIL: Will the hon. member yield for a moment? 

MR. J. CARTER: Yes, certainly. 

MR. MCNEIL: This is one of the things that the advisory board p~int~d 

out in its report, that in order to bring down a fixed cost like your 

fuel and your electricity,and if you establish a bark press you can 

bring down your fuel cost, your present cost by eighty per cent by 

using the bark off your wood which is now being trucked to the dump. 

And you will save the trucking expenses. You will save all your expense 
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MR. MCNEIL: 

that you had in trotting off this bark that is going totally as a 

waste. It could ·· turn into a- fuel supplement. 

MR.. J, CARTER: I thank the han. member for that suggestion. And 

there is no doubt that there is a great deal of merit in that suggestion. 

And I do know that in Grand Falls, for instance, some bark is burnt in 

a furnace and that is used to generate some power. But, Mr. Speaker, 

we are looking at tremendous increases in fuel costs. So the very best 

that can be saia, even giving it the most generous possible interpretation, 

is that that figure will remain the same. And I cast severe doubt, at 

least for the sake of argument, on that figure staying the same. 

Now power is listed here at $15 per ton of Linerboard. So in 

column one I put that down as $15. The ~on. member for Eagle River 

(Mr. Strachan) earlier in the debate --said that probably the Linerboard 

mill should be getting power at a subsidized price. Well, all right. 

So I said okay. Supposing they get power. for one-third their present 

cost. So in the next column I put down $5. Han. members will be 

interested in the total that I have come up with. Water,chemicals, 

$1.24, I left that the same in both columns. Sundry supplies, $10.12, 

I left that at the same in both columns. Now when we come to the 

column for labour, the labour cost per ton of Linerboard is listed as 

$19.44. Now assuming increased efficiency, I will put down $15 for 

the cost of labour. And this is not being generous towards labour 

because labour costs must go up. Surely when you look at the cost of 

a ton of Linerboard the labour content, the amount of employment that 

one ton of Linerboard gives in dollar terms is very little and ought 

to go up. If the Linerboard mill is not going to mean increased 

employment,what is the point of it. So again I am being very, verY 

optimistic in the labour cost when I put that down at $15 per ton. 

The maintenance of the paper machinery - it is called maintenance here 

and this is what they refer to - is $23.83. I could not imagine any 

savings in that. So I left those two figures the same. And administration 

and general costs, $39.95, I left them the same. 

In column one the cost - and this is 
---. 
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MR. J. CARTER: the cost of producing a ton of linerboard 

is $298.01. In the next column the cost is $246.34. Now 

remembe~, Hr. Speaker, that in column two I have shaved 

the cost to an absolute minimum. I would like any han. 

gentleman who wishes to to get up and dispute these costs: 

I cannot see how they can be made any less. And ·remember this, 

Mr. Speaker, that I have not added in any interest on the 

mill debt. I am assuming whoever is running the mill got it 

for nothing, nor that there is any d~preciation of the asset. 

And remember that if th]s were to happen somebody would still 

be .paying the - the government presumably - would still be 

paying the interest on the accumulated debt. 

Now I have added in two other figures and that is 

the interest on current account. Any business as large as 

the Linerboard Nill will have to have a certain amount of 

current account credit at the bank, rhat is going to cost 

them something so I put down -

fu.'{ HON. ME~1BER: In other ~·mrds working capital. 

HR. J. CARTER: Working capital, whatever you ~rish to call 

it,because the time between producing the product and getting it 

to market and getting paid for it -

HR. NEARY: Does that mean ski-doos, pick ups and -

}ffi.. J . CARTER : No, forgetting that now, forgetting that, 

forgetting the frills -

A..~ RON. r1EHBER: Linerboard has ski-doos now. 

MR. J. CARTER: I am trying to be serious. 

AN RON. MEl'-fBER: -people of course have to pay for the ski~doos. 

He is cutting all that out. 

~. J. CARTER: I am trying to be serious, ~r. Speaker. I put 

dovm $3, I just put down $3 interest on current account for that 

per ton of linerboard and then general repairs. I suggested 

that there would be $1 million a year general repairs for an 

operation that big. 
--·-~ -
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MR. J. CARTER: ·I am being as generous as possible, cutting 

the costs to the absolute bone and in column two, the cheapest 

column,I come up with $256.34, and that is assuming ~hat 

the people who are running the mill are getting it for nothing 

and that there is no depreciation of the asset •. 

Now I am told that the best we can hope for this 

year anyway is $200 for a ton of linerboard. Now I would 

like hon. gentlemen to get up and tell me how they will 

bridget that gap. I would be very glad and most hon. gentlemen 

across the way still have a speaking slot left and they are 

able to get up and I am sure that any future speakers from 

our side will gladly give way while a person makes an 

extended point. 

AN RON. MEMBER: Go back to farming savoury. 

MR. J. CARTER: I am sure that this will be the procedure that 

will be followed. So I will just leave that with hon. gentlemen 

and ask them to tell me hov7 they would cut the costs to make 

this into a going concern. 

MR. SMALLWOOD: Ask Mr. Sweeney. 

MR. J. CARTER: Remebering that this is assuming that 

whoever runs the mill gets it for nothitog. And that is a very 

big assumption. 

MR. NOLA..~: Why do you not vote to have Mr. Sweeney come before 

the House so we can question him. 

MR. ROBERTS: 

MR. CHAIID'IAN : 

Where is the Minister of Transportation, he -

Is the House ready for the question? 

The hon. Minister of Transportation arid Communications·. 

SOME RON. ME~illERS : Hear! Hear~ 

MR. MORGAN: Mr. Speaker, a few words in this debate because 

it is a very, very important debate. Today I listened very, 

very attentively to the member .for the Stephenville area 

(Mr. ~cNeil). He was,I guess~the member of the House of 
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ffi . HORGAN : Assembly most directly involved and concerned 

over this matter. Also the fact I feel that the MHA for 

~askaupi (Mr. Goudie) on this side of the House was very 

much involved as well and the consequences of closing the 

mill are going to have a bit effect on his district. 

I was _very disappointed this afternoon, in fact 

NM - 3 

this morning"Jwhen I noticed that despite the tremendous speech 

being made by the bon. gentleman from Stephenville9and despite 

the magnitude of importance of the debate,that the han. 

Leader of the Opposition chose not to sit in his seat to listen 

to -the bon. gentleman from Stephenville put forward his views 

and in fact his suggestions and ideas as to what could be done. 

MR. ROBERTS: (Inaudible) • 

HR . NORGAl : i-"Ir. Speaker, God knows at this time we - I would 

say ~re need a miracle, a miracle to aappen within six months. 

There are a number of questions that have · to be answered and I am 

going to attempt to answer some of the questions in my own 

view as a member of this administration who is 
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MR. MORGAN: 

part of the decision-making process who made this decision, a very 

agonizing decision, agonized as all my colleagues I am sure who will 

speak from this side of the House will also relay as well, a very 

agonizing decision, not over a matter of days -it was not a sudden 

decision - agonizing over a number of months. But the decision has 

been made. And unless something happens like a miracle in six months 

that mill at Stephenville will close. A regrettable, unfortunate 

decision with very serious consequences in the Bay St. George area. 

However, a number of questions have to be answered. Number one, should 

the mill have ever been built in Stephenville? Number two, should the 

administration of the day have taken over the operations of that mill? 

And number three, should we continue to pay subsidization to the tune 

of approximately $50 million yearly to keep the mill going? These are 

the very three significant and important questions. 

Now, Mr. Speaker, in dealing wit~ the first question, should the 

mill have been built at all, back in the period from June, 1971 to 

January, the administration of. the day made the decision which now 

we are seeing the consequences of. It was during that period that 

the administration of the day saw that the gross mismanagement of the 

construction of the project. It was then it was occurring. In October 

of that year, shortly after the. election in 1971 • . despite the fact the 
I 

administration was given severe warnings by the watchdog of the 

government, if you wish, the Dick firm, who was to be the watchdog 

for the government on tnis project, despite the warnings from that 

company to the administration of the day that there was gross mis-

management in the construction of the project, number one, inefficiency 

in the woods operations, no markets, no marketing authority set up 

and it was going out of control with regards to the spiralling cost 

of _construction, despite that in October of that year the administration 

of the day advanced money without the authority of the House of Assembly, 
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MR. MORGAN: 

without even the House of Assembly's authority or the people knowing 

it. There was $9 million advanced in the Fall of 1971 which the 

people of Newfoundland were not aware of. 

AN RON. MEMBER: Inaudible. 

MR. MORGAN: I am talking about October of 1971. 

MR. ROBERTS: (First part inaudible) -under the authority 

of an act of the legislature. 

MR. MORGAN: Mr. Speaker, in August of 1971 not only did the administration 

of the day not take heed as a warning coming from the company they 

engaged to be the watchdog on the project~ but guess what? They 

announced the construction of a fifth mill, a fifth mill. The fourth 

one had already been announced for Come By C~ance. It announced a 

fifth mill for Stephenville to be built side by side with the Linerboard 

mill - going to produce 1,100 tons of pulp sulphite. The fifth mill, 

despite the warnings that were being given by the companies who were 

keeping a close watch on the construction of the Linerboard mill. It 

was not until March of 1971 when the Province went down on the bond 

market to borrow money, when they had no choice but follow the 

prospectus - and in that prospectus they had to declare the situation 

of the Linerboard mill in Stephenville, it was not until then that 

it was realized by the people of this Province that the administration 

of the day had committed themselves, the taxpayers of this Province, 

to $75 million on a Linerboard mill despite the fact they only had 

authority to go to $53 million. That in my view is a clear example, 

a clear indication of where the problem began •. 

MR. ROBERTS: 

MR. MORGAN: 

MR. ROBERTS: 

MR. MORGAN: 

Again that is not a correct statement. 

That is where the problem began. Mr. Speaker -

That is incorrect. 

If the han. gentleman wants to call me a liar let him 

stand in his place and call me · a liar. In 1971 the prospectus was filed 

I 
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MR. MORGAN: 

that in that prospectus -

MR . ROBERTS: I am not allowed to call the hon. gentleman a liar. 

MR. SPEAKER: Order, please! 

MR. SMALLWOOD: (First part inaudible.) - was incorrect. 

MR. MORGAN: In that prospectus, Mr. Speaker, the Province's 

liability in Linerboard mill in 1971, in 
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MR. MORGA.J.'l": March of that year,was $75 million. 

MR.ROBERTS: No, it is not correct. Flatly not correct. 

MR.HORGAN: $75 million. It was only shortly after that that 

it was disclosed, after the prospectus was filed down in the bond 

market, shortly after, a month after it was disclosed Linerboard 

would not cost $123 million. It went from - what? - $58 million to 

$75 million, to $90 million, $110 million and now in March,1971 

upwar~ to $123 million. But the fact is the administration of the day 

knew this was happening and in June of 1970 and in March 1971 the 

information v1as disclosed • 

MR. SMALLWOOD: Is the Han. Minister aware of the fact that the 

mill at first was to have been 600 tons a day mill. 

That was raised· 

600 tbns. 

MR.HORGAN: I am saying that in June 1971 the Dick firm advised the 

administration of the day that the prospectus of the mill, the future 

of the mill, the feasibility of the mill was in question, based on 

the fact there was no management, _ther~ was no markets, there 

was inefficiency, and the construction of the mill was way out of 

proportion. Despite that, Mr. Speaker, I am dealing ~vith the first 

question: Should the mill ever been built? If a decision had been 

made then in June 1971, we would not have been in tte financial mess 

we are in today · with regards to the linerboard mill. 

MR.WHITE: Where would the Stephenville workers be? 

HR.SMALU700D: Western Canada. 

MR. WHITE: 

HON.. MEMBERS : 

}!R .MORGAi.'I: 

Yes. Western Canada. Right. 

Oh, oh! 

Mr. Speaker, in January 1972, after that, that period 

where the administration to9ay ke~t ganging on and hanging on and 

hanging on despite the fact they should not have been hanging on. 

Not only during that period were they hanging on lvith the skin of 

their teeth, their toenails and their fingernails but they were 

making decisions because of the linerboard mill and advancing more 
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MR.MORGAN: money, advancing more money to the linerboard 

mill for John. c. Doyle. Then, tonight to sit in the House of 

Assembly and listen, and listen to a statement coming from the 

former Premier. who I have great respect for, he knows that, 

_but to listen to him saying he would have John c. Doyle running 

that mill today if he were in power. Mr. Speaker, it is 

·atrocious. It is atrocious. 

~ffi.SMALLWOOD: I did not say that. 

MR.MORGAl.'l': The hon. gentleman can be read from Hansard.,1-'~r. Speaker. 

HE Has g_uoted as saying 

MR. SMALLWOOD: If the han. minister will yield? That is how 

traditions get boiri. That is the story of fishermen burn your 

boats. That is the story of three jobs for every man. That 

remark now could be reported. I did not say it. I said I 

was asked the question and in reply I said the company that 

owned it we would force them to run it. I did not mention 

uoyie •. Doyle is only one of 20,000 shareholders,the principal 

one. He is not the company. 

MR., MORGAJ.'l': Mr. Speaker, the han. gentleman in his speech- I made 

a few notes while he was speaking - indicated that he would have 

the owner of the company at the time when this party took over the 

administration of the province, in 1972,_ that he would have that 

company who was then owner still operating the linerboard mill in 

Stephenville. Oh, Mr. Speaker, }D-aY God- forbid! May God forbid, 

Mr. Speaker~ 

Well let me tell you a few stories of the 

han. gentleman of his companies who operate the mill in 

Stepaenville. The fact is.,Mr. Speaker, that when we took over 

in 1972- that we found there was a marketing company set up 

/ 

down in Nassau in the Bahamas, great expertise, great 

marketing expertise 1 a company called Javelin Export Limited. 

And guess what, Mr. Speaker? They were going to get five per cent, 

five per cent of the top of all marketing value from the linerboard 

mill for doing absolutely nothing. Absolutely nothing. One of 
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MR.MORGAN': John C. Doyle's companies. The han. gentleman 

who conceived ' the -idea of the linerboard mill in s~~phenville 

talks about the fact that - and_~e blames Mr. John C. Crosbie 
I 

for changing marketing compa~ies. Well~. 
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MR. MORGAN: ther~!is a good example of a marketing 

company- a marketing company down in Nassau in the Bahamas. It was 

going to get 5 per cent off the very top just for the mere - all the 

value - all the value, the marketing value of linerboard coming from 

Stephenville. Fantasticl And the hon. gentleman has the nerve to 

stand in the House and say he would have that company or that man and 

his company still carrying the mill operation in Stephenville. 

AN HON. MEMBER: (Inaudible) 

MR. MORGAN: Sure, Mr. Speaker, it was a fatal blunder. 

The hon. gentleman from Twillingate (Mr. Smallwood) says it was a fatal 

blunder by this administration to take over the Linerboard mill. I 

would say, Mr. Speaker, that if we did not take over,and if we did not 

happen to form the government there would have been a rebellion - a 

rebellion in the ranks of the Liberal administration - a rebellion. 

The han. former Premier says that - "Oh, it is a fatal blunder to take 

over the mill." Let me quote one of his colleagues in May, 1972 in 

this House of Assembly - the han. Leader of the Opposition. I will 

quote some of the speeches which are filed in Hansard. Now, the Leader 

of the Opposition: "The project is bankrupt - " 

AN HON. MEMBER: Was that Mr. Roberts 

MR. MORGAN: The bon. member from TNbite Bay -

AN HON. MEMBER: (Inaudible) I know that. 

MR. MORGAN: - the Leader of the Opposition - May, 1972 

after this party took over the government - took over the administration. 

AN HON. MEMBER: (Inaudible) 

MR.. MORGAN : - "The project is bankrupt. It is not being 

put through the legal state of bankruptcy. The government themselves 

alleged it was bankrupt in their statement of claim.'-' He goes on t -o say, 

and I quote - the hon. Leader of the Opposition who is now in this House 

of Assembly -"I was then, prior to 1972, part of and very closely 

associated with the Linerboard mill from June, 1971 on~· ·~te was. He claims 

he was not part of that, he and his colleague, Mr. William Rowe. "The 

- -
government's decision to take over the project is really, I think,the only 

way it will be finished. The project must be finished. That is why 

right from the start, indeed even during the election campagain I raised no 



May 10, 1977 Tape No. 2532 EC - 2 

r 
MR. MORGAN: quarrel with their announced decision to 

take it over." And when he says 'their' he is referring to this 

administratiQn. 

So, Mr. Speaker, that is one hon. gentleman 

who was a 

MR. SMALLWOOD: Who said that? 

MR. MORGAN: - a colleague, the Leader of the Opposition 

- the present hon. Leader of the Opposition. 

AN HON. MEMBER: (Inaudible) decision to take it over. 

MR. MORGAN: Mr. Speaker, may I quote one of the men who 

has aspired to become Premier of the Province, Mr. William Rowe, who 

admits - and he was very closely associated with Linerboard operations 

from June on - when he found that there were problems with John C. 

Doyle's connections with the mill's operation- the mill's construction 

- there were problems, and up until June he indicated in Hansard that he 

was not too involved. But as of June he became involved - more and more 

involved and closely connected with - because he was concerned about 

what was happening. 

AN HON. MEMBER: (Inaudible) 

MR. MORGAN: On May 4, 1972 in this House of Assembly, 

the hon. William Rowe, in this case the hon, member from White Bay South 

Mr. Speaker, I am quoting from Hansard - from the hon, member from White 

Bay: "The government could either walk away from the project and lose 

most, if not all of the investment - the construction jobs, the potential 

jobs in the mill and in the woods - " My hon. friend, the Minister of 

Justice, the Minister of Finance and other members of the government today 

are in a better security position. Then he goes on to say, "It. w~s o; the 

agreement, Sir, containing Canadian Javelin 1 s guaran-tee - the parent 

company - that under these agreements that the hon. Leader of the Opposition 

and I threatened-" - 'and I' - the two. In other words, there was going 

to be a rebellion in the Liberal caucus. Well, the hon. William Rowe, who 

was then a minister, and the hon. Leader of the Opposition threatened and 

were planning towards takeover of the project by the then government in 

December, in January of the year just past. 
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MR.. MORGAN: And, Mr. Speaker, this leads me to believe 

if the P.C. party did not form the government in 1972, and if the 

decision made by the ad!Dinistration, not by John C. Crosbie - one man -

made by the administration and backed by all the caucus members -

if that decision had not been made in 1972, that there would have been 

a rebellion in the Liberal government if they had stayed in 
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MR • MORGfu.'1 : - pmver because 't-Tilliam Rowe and the han. 

Leader of the Opposition now in the House of Assembly threatened) 

and I repeat, threatened - and were planning to1:vards the takeover 

of the project by the then Government of the day. 

SOME RON. MEHBERS : Oh, oh! 

MR. MORGAN : So, Mr. Speaker, the -

:HR. MURPHY: It is very good_to have on record. go ahead. 

MR. MORGAN: It seems that the Opposition today in the 

House of Assembly is completely split on this issue. The han. 

gentleman who has quite a strong stature, a large stature in the 

Li?eral Party in this Province, stands in this house and says it 

is a fatal blunder to take over the Linerboard mill, while his 

colleagues come out and say it 1:o1as the only decision to take. 

SOME RON. 7-1EMBERS : 

MR. MURPHY: 

~vhole debate. 

AN HON • t1EMBER : 

MR. MORGAN: 

Hear, hear! 

That is one of the best noints made in the 

Yes, Sir. 

}fr. Speaker, I talked about the Javelin 

Export Company and I heard some gentleman in the House of Assembly 

today say, "Do not make the debate partisan, do not make it 

partisan because 't·7e are talking about the livelihoods of all these 

people in Bay St. George 11
• I know· what it means to people who 

cannot find employment, who has a job and loses it. It was not 

partisan until a few minutes ago when the honourable the former 

Premier stands and charges John C. Crosbie - and attacks him personally 

viciously attacks him; blames it all on him 

today in Stephenville. 

for the situation 

Let us talk about a few things on 

~ismanagement in the past regarding the Linerboard mill. The 

han. member for St. John's East (Mr. Harshall) last night 

mentioned just briefly, maybe a bit too briefly - I do not 

know, Mr. Speaker, if I can or cannot refer to this matter 

if you feel I am out of order, you can probably indicate to me, 

Sir - but I am going to taU: a'!Jout a situation that occurred in 

/ 
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MR. HORGAN: September of 1970 - · September 22nd, in fact 

there was an agreement signed betw·een the Government of the day and 

John C. Doyle's companies, in this case Javelin, for the purchase of 

a building and buildings in Stephenville appraised at, and valued at, 

$8 million. But, despite the value of these buildings in Stephenville 

John C. Doyle, with the Government of the day on September 22, 1970 

signed an agreement to buy these buildings for $250,000 on the 

conditions, $50,000 do~vn now and $50,000 per year for the next four 

years. 

A.~ HON. ME}1BER: (inaudible) 

MR. MORGAN: Talk about mismanagement and waste in 

Government spending - wasteful spending -

MR. RIDEOUT: than the Burgeo Fish Plant. 

HR. MORGAN: Eight million dollars worth of buildings to 

the company building a Linerboard mill in Step~enville in 1970. 

MR. MCNEIL: Were they just sold and ~v-hat \vere they sold 

for? 

MR. HICKHAN: That was in November 1971. 

MR. FLIGHT: 1Jhat ~.rere they sold for when they ~.,ere 

eventually sold? 

HR. MORGAN: Hr. Speaker, the part of this little dracm 

is the part ~.;rhere $100,000 came back as a denosit to the Liberal 

Party - that part, I think, because of the fact.. is being dealt 

with, I understand, hopefully, in the near future - it came back as 

a donation to the Liberal Party, $100,000 of that purchase. It 

-came back, it came back to one known as O.L. Vardy. But, these 

are facts. These are not speculations. They are not sEal! charges.-

They are facts, and these facts stand out to be cor_rected by any<:me 

in this Province and to be verified by anyone in this Province 

because they can easily verify them. 

Then, ·last night, Mr. Speaker, -maybe no 

other Hinister will refer to this, but I was in the House of 

Assembly and I listened to the debate regarding that giveaway of 



}fay 10, 1977 Tape 2533 RT-3 

MR. _MORGAN: ____ _____ _ ten thousand square tni.les of timber rights, 

and I sort of squirmed in my seat last night when I saw the hon. 

gentleman, the former Premier of the P-rovince, trying to squirm his 

way out - it was pitiful. The hon. gentleman should have retired 

and gone back to writing books. I saw him last night squirm,in the 

House of Assembly. Mr. Speaker, I have to repeat, I have great 

respect for the hon. gentleman but I believe in the facts and the 

truth, ann the truth is that ten thousand square miles was given 

away to a company called -

MR. WRITE; 

MR. MORGAN: 

.1R . SPEAKER : 

Point of_ order, Mr. Speaker. 

·so~iet~ T~ansshipping. 

A point of order has come up. 

/ 
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MR.; WHITE: ~tr. Speaker, this afternoon Your Honour ruled that 

the member for Eagle River (Mr. Strachan) was out of order because 

he was not relevant to the debate but this is far from being 

relevant to the debate. 

MR. HICKH.AN: Mr. Speaker. 

~ffi. SPEAKER: The hon. ~~nister of Justice. 

MR. HIC~·urn: On that point of order, and this matter has been 

raised before, the timber rights as I recall it in Labrador 

were part of the Javelin Forest Products holding, and Javelin 

Forest Products was the company involved with the Linerboard -

MR. MCNEIL: Back to the present situation. 

MR. HICKMAN: - - and the builder thereof, but you know I am only 

talking about relevancy to the point of order. 

MR. SPEAKER: On the point of order, this afternoon hon, gentlemen 

will recall that when I interjected on the point of order, the 

hon. gentlemen to my right had co~enced on certain remarks on 

the Norma and Gladys , which at the time and indeed at any time 

I would have considered irrelevant to the Labrador linerboard issue, 

~fuat the hon. minister is referring to now is a matter vThich was 

debated last night on the same motion raised-by the hon. gentleman 

for St. John's East (Hr. Marshall) and commented upon by the hon. 

member for To;villingate (Mr. Sma}-h1ood) and relates as, I understand 

it, to timber holdings in Labrador related to the areas from which 

>vood would be cut, or could be cut for the Linerboard mill in 

question. So I could not rule that it does not relate to the 

Labrador Linerboard mill. 

MR. ~10RGAN: Mr. Speaker, the facts as I was saying speak for·· 

themselves~ and the truth, as the old saying is, shall prevail. 
-

And the fact is that a company called Soci~t~ Transshi!)pinll 

T-Vith the following directors of that company, Mr. Peter Ritter, 

R-i-t-t-e-r, Hr. Robert Fournier, ·F-o-u-r-n-i-e-r, and Nr. John Francis. 
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MR. MORGAN: These three were and are, I assume, they were-then, 

1971-72, directors of a company called ~ocie'te'_ Transs_h~pp:!-ng, __ 

which was paid the amount of $1,977,500. They w~re paid that 

amount for what? For what? For a letter, for a letter and one 

letter only, signed by the former Premier of this Province. 

The letter which ~vas read into Hansard last night, 

the conte~~~~ clear~y pointed out that they were being _ granted. 

this company in Liechtenstein was being granted 10,000 square 

miles of timber ·rights, not reserve, not a reservation of 

timber rights, as the hon. gentleman from Twillingate (Mr. Smallwood) 

tried to squirm out of it last night, but they were granted 

10,000 square miles of the Province's timber rights, the taxpayers 

of this Province. Hhat does that mean to the 25,000 people in 

the Western part of the Province who are affected? It affects 

them. It affects me, the people in Bonavista South, St. John's Centre -

AN RON. MEl'IBER : And every Newfo~?dland~r. 

HR. MORGA.~: In fact every Newfoundlander. They were paid that 

for coe little letter. 

Now, Mr. Speaker, any lawyer, a dimwit of a lawyer, would 

know that if the letter was of no value why would John C. Doyle, 

and that is who bought the timber rights for the amount I quoted, 

$1,977,500, if the letter was useless, if it meant nothing why . . 

~vould John C. Doyle pay to get that letter giving the company 

of timber rights1 Sure it vJas worth something. It was an outright 

give-away from this Province. And the han. gentlemen in the 

Opposition, a number of them have had the gall- to st~nd in th~ -

House of Assembly and label this administration with gross mismanagement 

with regards to the Linerboard mill. 

Hr. Speaker, the han. gentleman· from Conception Bay 

South was in that administration. 
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AN RON. ~ffiMBER: That is right. 

}ffi . MORGAN : The han . Leade~ of the Opposition was in that 

administration. The han . gentleman from Burgeo ~ LaPoile ~.;as 

in that administration, the same administration, and the bon. 

ge;::ttleman from Fogo was in that administration •. 

. !fR • ~IDRPHY : Burgee - LaPoile was • 

MR . "MORGAJ.\1 : 

in that -

Burgeo - LaPoile nmv, as it now in the House was 

SO. fE RON . ~1-BERS: Lal'oile . 

~. MORGA.i.'l : - LaPoile, for LaPoile, yes. In fact the han . 

me111ber for Fogo (Capt. ~nnsor) 
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MR. MORGAN: was a member of the board directors of Javelin Forest 

Products and the han. gentleman from Conception Bay South was a 

director of NALCO. Of course Mr. Callahan,who is now not in the 

House of Assembly,was also a member of the Board of Directors of 

Javelin Forest Products. 

But, Mr. Speaker, there is nobody on this side 

going to squirm away from the decision made by this administration 

and take over the Linerboard mill. It was not John C. Crosbie it was 

all of.us over here. 

SOME RON. :MEMBERS : Hear, hear! 

NR. HORGAN: All of us. But to listen to the Opposition members 

in the debate in the past they squirmed away from the decision to build 

Linerboard mill in Stephenville, squirmed away from it and let the poor 

old retiring hon. gentleman from Twillingate bear all the brunt, bear 

all the blame. It is a shame~ It is an outright shame! Cabinet is 

a collective decision making process and any-thing we do I bear 

responsibility and my han: colleague the Xinister of Justice and others, 

we all bear it- collectively. 

MR. DINN: But they did not before. It was not the way it ran before 

so they might not knmo1 -

. HR. MURPHY: (Inaudible) • Come on 'Tom' 

you are only young yet. Wait until you are here twelve or fourteen 

years and you will learn how it operates. 

MR. HORGAN: So, Mr. Speaker, the question of whether the mill 

should have been built or notj in my view in June 1971 7 with the facts 

and figures that I have available to me and were available to all 

members of this House, the facts and figures which were then available 

to the government of the day} 

that mill 

Hear, hear! 

they should not have gone aqead with 

MR. NEARY: 

}'lR. MORGAN: - in June of 1971. Mr. Speaker, in January to Harch of 

1972 the question mark was then - and on the second question. should this 

administration take over the mill or not~ And I think that all members 
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NR. HORGAN: of the Opposition and you can read Hansard, they all 

agreed there was ~imply no other choice. There was no other choice. 

There was no other option. There was no other alternative. We had 

to go in and take over the mill. And of course history speaks for 

itself from there and the consequences are that here we are in 

1977 seeing the result of something that a decision was made on from 

June till January of 1970-1971 and it is a very unfortunate one. 

Of course the third and most important question 

should the government continue to subsidize the operations of that 

mill? And,-Mr. Speaker, the hon. gentleman from Stephenville today 

I must say made a very convincing, a very, very convincing speech. I 

think almost that if I did not know the details myself of the situation, 

the best I have been able to cope with the details over the past nuwber 

of months, that he ~..rould have almost convinced me that we should do 

something; we should not close it down. The han. gentleman from 

Eagle River talked, Let us give up some of bur services, give up some 

water and sewer, give up some road work, let us sort of sacrifice it. 

He wanted some sacrificing of services to put extra money into the 

Linerboard mill. 

Mr. Speaker, the people who spoke in the debate 

in the Opposition, in fact I think two bon. gentlemen mentioned it, 

fo~ the hon. gentleman's information from the Port au Port Peninsula-

the han. gentleman from the Port au Port Peninsula - I will be 

cluing up before eleven o'clock and you can adjourn the debate. 

Mr. Speaker, the hon. members '\orho spoke a couple of them mentions the 

slap in the face to the taxpayers of the Province, a slap in the face 

to close down the mill. Mr. Speaker, I can say and I will say sincerely 

that the Minister of Finance, my colleague the Hinister of Justice, in 

fact each and every one of my colleagues on this side of the House of 

Assembly are sincerely hoping that we can find some way, some possible 

means like I mentioned when I opened the speech tonight, the debate, a 

miracle within the next six months so ;..re do not have to close down that 

mill. It is not a slap in the face to the taxpayers. In my travels 
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MR . NORGAN : people say , Look you cannot afford to put in $54 million 

a year or $40 million last year it was , $40 .5 million, $54 million this 

year . People are saying. it is not going to cost $·54 million. '.Jell look 

at the past year. It cost $40 .5 million last year. That speaks for 

itself . 

NR. DINN: It ~.ras projected at $25 million . 

HR . MORGAN : Now there may be some points that ,.;ere brought up by 

the hen . gentleman where there was some mismanagement , I am not going 

to a r gue that. 
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MR. MORGAN: But the decision is an 

agonizing decision, a decision we do not want to make. 

We do not want to see the loss of jobs in our Province 

but what other alternative do we have as the administration 

of this Province today? 

Mr. Speaker, we are open, 

we are open to hear them. And I say in closing, we 

all hope for a miracle between now and six months time. 

Thank you very much. 

SOl-lE HON. MEMBERS : Bear , hear ! 

1-fR. SPEAKER : 

au Port . 

The hen. the member for Port 

. MR. HODDER: As it is very, very close to 

the closing time, I move the adjournment of the debate. 

MR. SPEAKER: The han. gentleman has moved 

the adjournment of the debate. Is it agreed we call it 

eleven o'clock? Agreed. 

It being eleven o'clock this 

House stands adjourned until tomorrow Wednesday, May 11, 

1977, at 3:00p.m. 


